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� � ；_ˍ̅ũđgtҋȉǟ»ˍ·ĀɊ٦ΘǼʿǱӤĉʖ˟ϼ�ÏЉ

[ŢÏؠŪĐdׇǣ；_ˍũ˓«٦Θ�ӤԉėŪĐ̂̇đã׵ՄЉȾ

¡@ŞɲйĐϔӴچˍ«ԏ٦Θ{ĩƎ،@TǦب@Îpđtҋ׏dه

ƮˍĤЉ˗Ċӗ˺ņ»Ҝ[Ţ˗ĊqĀ@ӧȱTķЉӋŽȱѹdɷɅ@

׷：ͫس٦ΘˍĐĬӚІǱ٦ΘƊÏЉ»ˍȄ�@úo@ԏˇǭ˅չب

ΛÎ@й̅̈āظՄɖƎ@ŪĐ»ˍwװĵЁ˶Љй̅ظͰd׏ÎÒđ

Ș�@فǣŝ͚Љӆ׷ņ˟ȋ؄Љɖ¥ІǱ@TǦŽĐ͕ȳȱѨ@�é

ӋŽЉȱՖņ»ˍȄ�dũ̮ԔǸѱpǯ：Ó̅ն>�pѼљg̮

ph?Љ˅قɅ@ǣщÂѡؑ̇ˮаՄͰ@ĚӋŽȱѹЉȼտņùӚ@

ˉ�ӦʩԬƙ@˿Մ̇דĵ̮pщÂЉװ@mՄ˿Ӛٚáˍ̅Љ�ń؝

ŪȱѨ̐ŪżСɇŧٮ@�¨Ĥ׏ÎӋŽ@̇ħּ͓ņ͚ǐЉɦħ@v

̇üĺйĐц»@Ş͖ɲӦЁŪ˗Ċģ׫ȋՑõqЙװĵņúȸqĀd	

� � ̐ǥÜƷTŖ̅~Җ٦ΘĴŪŸBΘǼĐcgڋĐģ˟ϼĐЉˍŽ

ģˍ̅ȱѹϓ@̅ףɊǇˍc¨�c˗ĊģˍӖѲՌȢׁΠpđtҋ；

_ˍũ٦Θׇ«̕ՃvĎԤƊpЉ،̌ІǱ@v�»ˍ·ĀӦˍ̅ȱѹ

�γҝҧğ٦̾׵Θ；_ˍӦŪˡІǱЉؕ¤@ƮйĐչםɶˇȡЉ˟

ȋ؄ՑõƮ�Ⱦه»ˍ·ĀЉʩǱd͖ƙ@wȌ̊ũӆʽˍŽȱѹ֥ן

ģȼëІǱЉķ˶@ʫ¢ǣ̐Ū»ˍ·ĀչםЉҤғ@Û̊�ˍ̅ȱѹ

γϓձ@ǋՋŪľϤ٦Θ；_ˍЉІǱ͙ѕd
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|R(	

� � 1841 Ș٦Θ؏ŹɅn«̆@ĚũΔˇȡ֤̎ףӼŢ͕ȳѾՐeė

x̫Ҍfóպ٦ΘǼï@٦ΘȉӛزΨ؍ˍĐɴγgǇȣВϒĐh@٥

�ВϒγϨƕҁӺϩпω>Theodore	 Joset,	1804-1842?d٦Θӣ͖͕

ȳӦׇ«ɊՃˡ»ÎЉǇˍȱѨؕ¤@ķ͗ɴ،d ӣƙŢЉ»ˍƕ؏

ưɊԑԌϏ�ْЉΨ؍@ַєê٦Θ@ˢ 1842 Șũ[ϮƳِؼԮȱѨ

mkȣӋŽģǒӪ@ǟ٦ΘǼ�γفĺ[ŢÏؠ»ˍЉ֩ӞХ@ŞγЁ

Ʌ Թё®γg˟ϼh?�Ǵˢ<ؠĕǼģÏڋԏҠƚétΘЉgؤ˶

ΔȯЉҜͻѸţd	

� � ٥É@ũ؏Ź˫̌ȉ̇͸ϊɎӋ§фƪª̅>1848?ģŗկʵ|

ɥƪª̅>1860?ũή�Đγżǳԉ{̈ādïӇũϤ}Љԇƕːז

�һôֹ̯ƶ؜gӋѫbǐh@ġؠҶ؏ֹƾ̠YĚ׻؊ήӋ§фƾ̠

Љï֫Zcμٙ͞ЂӇģӅƵ{ЉײЅˌΪɻ@�ģkؑγԉ{Ƶƿӈ

ՖЉ؜ײ>ĚӋ§ф؜ײЉï֫?dɅӇîôֹŗկʵӋˡΪĴƾ̠c

	ƻÍЉƾ̠Ѳdاï֫?ģ˄ǑՈ؜ײŗկʵזىǵ<؜ײ

� � v@چˍ«٦Θ�˵；_ˍ̅īk«֯˫ȱѨЉ@�m[Ϯģή؝

sˢ 1849 Șũ٦Θ�ǺפϷήϚɈkȒγ̌gЈgđgȘЉŪЌ@ȱ

ɴˍŽcƾ̠ģǒӪd1860 Ș�@ׇkȏЉӰƇ【ЍІǱ@ˍ̅ĺũ

ׇԾȄ�Љ[ƙȄѕȎcȄ{cͭɽģ΢ͫ»ˍ@ИӤɅ ׋ӰҠª̸

ũ٦Θ�ȳɌ@пωɾ˅γTǉ̌ЉʧՕd1890 Ș�@ŗկʵ|ɥƪ

ª̅̂ˢ٦Θ�γ΢ͫ̈ā@vˢ 1897 ȘՖѨӋǐ̅؜@×Ʌ؏ֹю

）>ŗկʵŻɎƾ̠ï֫?ģÌ֋՘ɻd	
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� � ˶Ӥ}【@ΘǼĐ̄׵ՄЉ；_ˍȱѹ�˵�ˢ[ĐžזЉӋͥη

ĞҺ_ˍȣŽd1842 Ș 6 ̆ 7 【@ũ֣زѾҼėx̫ҌïÑ«ƚ̆@

�ˢҠƚétŵg[ϮhƳِؼԮӦЩÙcԮvϼЉ٦Θ٥ȣ；_ˍŽ

ӋͥηĞҺŽӨԬƨżщ@� 1859 ȘkƁ：ίǟ˓ȣȱѹŚ׵ζς@

×Ʌخҝוɋª@�ˍ̅ʹǉǟƳِؼԮЉ϶Ū֑á@ˢžז 16 ԥɑ

ʙéè（Ū͟ӧȱ˟ЉҮŽd1888׍ Ș@˟ЉӋͥηĞҺҮŽˢ 12 ̆

7	【ӨԬ٥͏ϛуd՟ҮŽũԎɴrđȘɅˢ 1938Ș 12̆ 8【ԼԬо

Ӌ：Ùd1946Șˍȯǟ٦ΘǇȣ�ϒĐē̢γgˍĐh@ɚϥՊ_ˍ	

ŦBӋͥηĞҺ_ˍȣŽ
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>Enrico	Valtorta,	1883-1951?ˢ 1948Șǩӑγ٥�ˍĐ_ˍ@gӋͥ

ηĞҺҮŽh˅љγgӋͥηĞҺ_ˍȣŽhdγѰĵ̮p̅նЉщÂ

ȣŽ͕уİˢ@ق˅ 1969 ȘԹєӤӋŽ[＞ٯƅbp@ŽÏЉȣ̵c

ˀՖģԽٟѲi׵˟�һd2000 чȘ@ˍǇӋӺ̊§фptʈ[Ţk

Јpđ�͜זӇæÎӋŉ@ˍĐǟׇȣ�͑Ɏȳ_ˍȣŽЉӻسуİ˅

Խγ[ԉ͜זӋ{ǥŽ@һˆđÔ�[ԉӋ{bӋ٭ˢуİp@ġԽǿ

mÑɼǖ[ŢٛЉ[ԉӋ{ȽҳϢϬѣ@ԴחӦ[ԉծӋЉÕԩņм

ъ@vˢķȘ 10 ̆ɮо[ԉ͜זǌӋȻʵdׇ͕˵kј[Ճ˗Ċԩĵ

ЉԴϤd	
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� � ɴѨˢ 1945 ȘЉÓˍ׏Ԭй>Ó׏й?˵٦ΘˍĐǇˍcй̅ņ

˗Ċ·ĀҘұЉ[ɏ@�ˢ[ϮЉ[ɏĐŸ@˵ÓˍМϥƾ̅ņeÓˍ

ƀf˫̌ЉֹÓŪچ@w˵ˍĐӦ̐Ū¨ɇȱѨңǕӏҴЉƁɻdÓ׏

й؝mՖ̇̀ҁӋϓר@Ǡ؍Ŏ֑Ǉˍ̀ҁģӋϓƙ@i˵٦Θģİή

Ñ：；_ˍ[˗áύй──ÓˍМϥƾ̅ģÊŒáύйЉҮҝ׽dÓ׏

йĞ�ˢȖկז[rǳٯ：ȦЋȍԬÏ@֣תˇҮǭ�ՃTיԤ@Ʌ 

Ýʲׯؤ׏ҝ׵וȱЉ：˭：ȦdÓ׏йũn͂Ֆ̇Ӌͥηϡbɏǥ

Ž@؝m±̌ͦ；׫؏ˆ@˫oņڂ˯ŭ̇Ȼʵ@װ�ĵȌ̊ũȄ٢ģ

ĔӠ˶ؑï ĠúɦɚуcмъɶɣՄĕíڅؾЉoϣk˧dTǦũ[

ĐȄ�Љ[ƙЇْ@ũׇԾΖו�­ɴ،̄пӋЉ˶íd	

� � eÓˍƀf˵̐Ū；_ˍ̅٥�[˗ƀѪ@ˢ 1928 Șôå@ũ【

�˶̌ҙ̔ӈй͕̅̎ףȳəɋѓȞ˶@ʲׇ׏ȣ：ȦÏҵҶֹÓ@Ʌ

 ÝםӤžזˍĐ[ɏdeÓˍƀfخ˵[˗Łƀ@�٥�_Ҧ˵ɤ：

éҁٖɕŝпω>Andrea	Granelli,	PIME,	1892-1976?@įէ˵ՃˡՈ

Ӧԉ{˗ĊЉk«vΉŤŪd׶
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� � gpϮh>֭ŘȫԮӤ֢٨ŪkȏЉөљ@Ϥ}Љή�?Ğ˵Ҡƚ

étŵ³ÁbŪ@Ĭ̇ԉ{ӍǮ@bɅ͒ΆŐ{cԑԌϏ{cęȢ{ņ

	ԤЉйĐdذ΄Ҷê Ǯ�@�ή�ĸѰ×ǘɴγԉؠ}Άؿ

� � ũ٦Θ؏Ź˫̌@ˇȡũgpϮhkȒǵŰŪ؏ؖżСˍņ；_ˍ

ƐƁdƐƍםɁҠƚétŵƙЉ֢٨ŪɅ@；_ˍ̅ũή�ƐƁөŬӧ

ȱɺǰ@ёқ̐ŪЉˍĤģϸΨ؍ ΘȄ�Љԑҁ{ƕ@ɴγˍĤ̓@

љγg׏ˍţhd1860 Ș@ˍ̅ġũֽؙӧȱӋˡΪǥŽ@˵ҵƳؼ

ِԮӋͥηĞҺҮŽƙ@٦ΘѱpȣӋŽ@�ӊѝ̅Ӌ{ӋˡΪĴ͸Ĉ

Ͽ>St.	 Francis	 Xavier?γ_§@ˈġĸӋˡΪĴ͸ĈϿŽdg׏ˍ

ţhӼ˗γ St.	Francis	Yard@[˗ĸƸîȏ̇˱【Ȭȡ{ţ̓Љ˗ĊȾ

Ʒd}；ïɁ׏ˍţ̅ҝוk̫。Ű֨@ĸγgӋ�ԣƕԮh@gӋ�

ԣƕhǩ˵ĦӣgӋˡΪĴ St.	FrancishЉ[˗مյd	

� � êmpđtҋnđȘ�@Ё˶Љ�ϒĐɚϥՊ_ˍŞɲˊĤƎ،@

؏ưҀȱ˟Ž@vɈêڂƱɚ{Љʞ͐֔һŽŬdϸˢѱp͏tϼ：ɷ

τІ@ֿ�ҀȱȄ�˻´dɷɅ@ɚ_ˍÝ͏Ń҄Ĵϼʞüӧȱ˟ŽЉ

֋϶@ӈ̐ŽпωϥثĴ>Giacomo	Zilioli,	PIME,	1898-1960?ģĴĐˍ

Ĥ£ў̹ŪƤϛκؼȻʵج�֌@˟Ž̄җˢ 1950 Șȱɴ@ĸγgκ

@ц»�ƙ؝ŽؼŽh@˟Žvؙ̇kɻǥƾĸγgżѨƾ̠hdκؼ
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w�ˌΪŉĖümTǦօşǐȤdêm 1957 Ș@κؼŽÝ˰ĸγgӋ

ͥӋԳŽhd	

	

ŦB̎ʎěïЉӋͥӋԳŽ>1990Ș?	

� � Ε׼ƾѫ{ĩڊכθżѨƾ̠̂ŻӖmTǦƾϴ@�×ɅŞĐÏخ

ӈˢ 1994 Ș´ֹdTו@ŗկʵ|ɥ̅îkИũ͖Đγƪѫʫ¢ˍӖ

dnȘɅЉ 1997 Ș@ˍĐӦІǱŐĵ�@ǟĞӋŽʎě@˟ЉӋͥӋ

ԳŽũĞŬ˲Ԯkԥ˟：ȦÏ׵ȱɴ}ւdˍ̅ũׇԉ΄ĎӍЉŪĐ@

ҵҶkˡف»ˍ@kˡفɊoˍӖ@ŻӖɏӦؼЉɴ،d
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� � �ˢ׻؊ήזЉӋ§ф͉̾ȱѹҿǴˢ͸ϊɎӋ§фƪª̅dª̅

ũ٦ΘЉ͙ıį�ׁΠê 1848Ș@˵ѱk«ʌΘЉƙŢƪª̅d	

ªƪ­ ΘɅѨĚІϤͦ；̇׫ƶÍԹר：@̯ן�˵ƪƶ@sΫ

Ӣ͛u@ˈ͖μ̯ٙƶɴγƬ­Ёābɖd	-
	 ȘªƪɈê;ŢgӋ

ѫĖ̅h֌ü@ǟgӋѫbǐh>04IKE�'E� KA��AIMRE�2MFAMCE?ƻÍ؜

ʲê΋¸ֽؙkȔ：ǁdبԏƻÍΥΥ،：@vŞɲظՄ@ª̅ؠҶ؏

ֹƾ̠c؜ײ�ģȘӅЃȶӇЉȝշɻ@˄ǑЃ{ņ¼ЃЉ΋Ŋd�

	

ŦBżСĻϝǥŽ	

ϸˢȄ�TˠƎú@ŪˡT˔ɲ϶@ªƪ­ˢ 1916 ȘʹǉםɁ׻

؊ή@ũץԾȱɴkؑª؜ģçƾ؜ckɻƻÍ؜ckؑӼ;˗ƾ̠�

ģюρЉӋ§ф؜ײdũ˓«ȱѹҿЉ[ؑ@̇kȣǆ²ԇŚЉӋŽ@

~.. 
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ĸγgżСĻϝǥŽh@ˢ 1930Ș 5̆ 10【оӋ@�żСɴγªƪ­

ϴ·Љ[ɏd	

� � ӋŽ̢ٛǴˢĪÙɋӧȳ@͕̇؍ȆųЉѐ̘˞̞Ʒ˃͈՟：ųȱ

ѹϓ@vũđƸųЉȗفvĢچȱ̇k：ťىd͕؍ņÑ«¶؍ÎĩԹ

ª׋ɴγ؍ȩdǥŽЉkѬؙ̇؆͂@。ǰد˵ىǳ[ȳϱгdȆ：Љ

̞ƷũȱѹϓŁţȼɴk«؏ˆЉ̞Ȩ@vũؒ͂˃ʴԏk«؏ˆЉȨ

ЉԪ」̭͂cĪÙ̢ٛЉԽٟc͂ؒרʨÏ׍ʘȼ；ӷ̗ċרdÏז

վǖƚȽЉ٨֕ËŪгņ；ح�Ƅ@ŭγǥŽƎΓmTǦӴȽdׇؑÄ

ȼɴ̐ŪЙЁҹՅЉȱفȨņ̞ȨѨ؍cǛȬЉىЉˍŽ@�ĪÙťث

ѹϔӴdˍŽӤ}Ȝdͷ̇˅Āו@�§Ͻԏũȱɴ˶Љϕɨd˿γ׵

ՄЉ˵@ˍŽũ͂ٯϮ�bp@ɊŇǪbטЉ׻؊ήҰɓԮ׏זÎ×Ï

ȿƮһ֫ؾªbɻ@�{̇јزיƉśЉɦՊdӋ§фª؜˫ȘԹљ�

g;Ţª؜h@ӈӋ§ф؜ײ˿Ȭγ{УЉĸƸ˵g;Ţ؜ײh@ٚи

ª̅ ӣ;ŢЉ̡ΜdĚ�}；ƙҁªƪ{˕ΥՅΕǦ@�Ƭ­Љ̈ā

ǣտ@Ɋk؏ư׫˵�̐Ūԉ{γ_@Յձԏԉ΄ÕԩЉǘ¡d	
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� � ˫ˢ1849Ș@；_ˍ»ˍƕȉ ê٦Θ�؏Ǳ»ˍo̸dpđt

ҋç@بԏ٦Θ�{ĩƎú@；_ˍɇ˕Жoē@ˍ̅ˢ1929Șũ֣

@ԤЉǵŰȱѨӋ�ƚфŽdӋŽï֫γkȣϐɺי٦Θ�ȋ[ɏTز

ϸɤҁŗ̀пω>Giuseppe	Carabelli,	PIME,	1874-1936?ʼ�٥�_�

ĳ؈dӤ1949Ș՟Žē̢γŽĐ@ϸˢɷɅ٦Θ�ĐЉʿǱ@ˍ̅ˢ

1961ȘǟˍŽ׵ȱɴ}；Љ͆ͅ@¨ɇɅ חêpĒ{d؝m٦Θ�

ȋĐ@̇ˍɇw ӣǣǺЁ˶�˵΢̓ЉٸӜΆ@ӈs˿̇k：ר�˵

 ӣ΢ͫйĐdϸˢ�­Մá΋ʟٳɶêīk«Θĩ�̸@̎ɐͦ«_

į�ĠӦȻʵ@ˍ̅ǣ͖ʦĦǛǑɨȢd͖ƙ@ӋŽ_§Ӌ�ƚф׫】

i˵΢ͫЉ_§@Ş͖ͦȘ6̆29【Љ_§Тщ@˿ϸ_ˍՉӣêӋп

ªֽؙ؜ЉΘĩγ΢ӰӨԬоцщ@�Ճˡȏ ЉÂȳ@װĵ̐Ū΢ͫ

ЉظՄd	

	

	

	

	

	
	
	
	

ŦB˫ȘЉ٦Θ�Ȅ̸ƾ̠	

, 
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� � ٦Θ�Ȅ̸ƾ̠ˢ1935Șȱɴ@1952Ș˿ĸï@Ğљ٦Θ�Íѫ

Ȅԟ؜@ȱ̠֋϶Ϛ٩ȗǵņ�̕ψƕѲйْ̅Ըʞ֖@ЖЉ˵γօş

ǐȤЉϺƼʫ¢ӑ̸ŻՓ@ϸٴɕٯɧț̅փֆѶϥd՟̅ˢ1859Ș

ɴѨˢɤ：é@×_ՄЖ̓˵ˍӖؽȘdѱk�̠،׸�Ӏпω

>Vincent	Bernardini,	1887-1962?@̂�Ӌ٘˞[ƾЉ̠Вd	

� � ѱp͏tϼ：ɷïƘ@ƾ̠ԹӼŢ{ɍ϶γ΋֭żŪ@×Ʌ�γ¼

Öֲü؜ײdЁ1941Șȟ٦ΘΏ؟Ʌ@【̐{϶ǀ�γǃ԰ėˡЉͭ

o͉ٝżŪdӁȘϚ【֭̐ˇȡÆ՗ƾ̠׵؏ԺҫņԿ؍רك@vǌ�

ƾ̠γgӣϸƾ̠hd	

� � ׇɻЁ˶�һ³יЉǔǒƾ̠@яʆ；_ˍɧț̅Љ»Ҝ@γǒϴ

ʫ¢̇ՆɄņŭԲЉŧٮϴ·CɅ v׈˅œcƾϴ{˕Ǝú@ИӤÒ

đȘ�ç˅γמʹǔǒ@gđȘ�җ͔ǔǒ̈ā@И 2012 ȘÝɋֹd

٦Θ�Ȅ̸ƾ̠Љƾϴ¦љg٦Ȅ�h@ӈġϸˢγɧț̅Ǵ̠@ˈġ

љgɧț�hd	

� � ՟̠ˢ 2010 ȘϚ՚ǉγnҐ͙ıȱѹ@×_͂˵×[k«˫̌Ϥ

�ȱѹЉ¡Ʒ@ϸȜ«TķՖՑcٯnǳӈv؃væЉȱѹҘɴ L Ŧȼ

@ũՖՑoħêkǉЉԽٟԟԭ̢ٛȾه@Ʈ،ИȼЉءİcӯѣcǖ

̇ϔӴЉ̞ņk«ҙĵ͕؍ЉˡȼƅЉȱѹϔӴdÏרЉԽٟԟԭwį

Յˢ_ȭņ_̭͂ЉՖՑodo΋ȳХӟņ�϶ʐÊͭеХٟف˵՟˶

̌ЉÙųՖՑd	
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� � ƾ̠ɅˡЉؙǴ：͂˵пωǒӪ@ׇȣnǳٯȱѹ̇ҳŦԽٟЉϋ

ƒcȗǰىņ׸Ǵѣӷdخθũ 1935 Ș֤ƾ̠ķ˶ӧȱ@�ȱѹ̢ٛ

˿γ˟ĪÙɶ˟ŕͻtȳЉƙՋd͖̠˵ҵՃˡȄ̸قńɅ@ũ٦Θͧ

֯˫̌ɴѨЉȄ̸ƾ̠@ŞγØ̇ҹՅЉÀ°ģȱѹÀ°@ɴγ̐ŪȄ

̸ˍӖ͙ıÙѸģڂѮůȄ̸ІǱЉ̓աd	
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¸[k�BM�×*ÚX¬t<é�}|R,iµ	

� � ĵŵȋЉӧ֛ҵҶ̇ɻІǱװŞچˍ«Մ׵»٦ΘǼȜ̌˫m؝

ƙ@ks_ՄЉˍ͉̅̾ņ͙ıȱѹЉͷԎiٮϤ٦ΘũpđtҋЉַ

չd	

� � ԛʃ̘ՅձÏŪ{ĩˢTķȘם�єê٦ΘЉ͙ıd˫ˢΔȥνȘ

ؑЉe˟ǄҪɒfȉ̇ԛʃ̘̓ЉՔְ@įՅ̄˫ˢΔçȉ̇ĞǮͫũ

ԛʃ̘̓Ǯ�@֟ձ՟̓˵ΘǼĐ͙ı̄ɜaЉĞǮͫ̓bkdԛʃ̘

̓Ǯͫ：ר�γΦͱ{@ƚ¨Ƥ[Ţ»ҜǇˍ@Ş͖×ׯؤЉˍĤ̓c

ҎČӓę̀٣ŊȄǒӪg＜Ī͂h@įէ˵͖Đҹ̇Ūϸ；_ˍɇȱѨ

Љ¨�ҿٮģӍԎd	

� � 1875 Ș@Ȋڃƙˡ»ˍ̅ũΘǼՃרԛʃ̘ӧȱmkɻμٙӅȶ

̅ƕЉЅ؜١──�：ǫª؜@ͦȘȗŭ̇ŜđӤÒđƚ�»ˍƕǮˢ

͖d؜ÏЉǥŽ˵ʜ̕xЉҮŽͅȳȱɴ@˵٦ΘáӴЉ˟͑Ɏȳˍ

Žd1949 Ș[ԉ{ͫÕņŢɴѨɅ@ũÏŪЉ»ˍƕЙҵز؏@úo

ЉՌӴׅΥΕ�d1975؜ǫª：�@͗׏Ԡײ Ș@»ˍ̅ũª؜Ԏɴ

ЈŁȘbئ@ǟbŎn٦ΘһŪdŨŪІǱŐĞÉՑõʎěӧȱɁǁ@

�٦Θˇȡʫá�Ϥ˶һǖӷŤЉŪЌvʬ�：ǫª؜ģϐƫÓĳϐ

̲@Şӈչɴγˇȡϵ̸@vˢ 1978 Șvn٦Θ：ƾáύй�϶@ũ

ĞˍŽԽһęì͉@ķ˶϶�Åƹ̀ҁģ̥͋@ИӤ 1997 ȘÝvףn
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٦Θˇȡϵ̸ҼѶϥd2003 Șϸ٦ΘΤԟƾ؜ʨɽɋª@˅ȱγطȾ

	Ӫd̠؜Ոƾط

� � Ȋڃƙˡ»ˍ̅ˢ 1885 Ș؏ֹҎČӓę̀٣dŞę̀٣Ʌ ІǱ

זˢđȘɅ֔Î�ˢԛʃ̘̅ˍ«@׊ֻ 144 ԥЉɎ̢ʏ˞ſ@˅ȱ�

ҎČӓª؜ģę̀٣b϶dª؜ģę̀ٯ٣ǻ˶̌̇rđ�ŊȄ@Ɋo

ʣύcԤϥƸͅņʻ�ęì͉ѲȄ�dę̀٣ɴѨç̌Ӥ 1934 Șؑ@

ͦȘȗŭáύpđgר�ŉ@ęԬאÔԍpĒÜdáύϓĉʖTķգ

ј@×[ЈãbȲÒ˵[˗ոϓcֽЈãbȲp˵Ǆė>֝ė?˗cֽ

Јãbđp˵;˗åϓ@ϳӤ̇Ԟ˗åϓ@˵٦Θ�γ[Ճ˗ĊԜԋՌ

ӴЉġkˮձd	

	

ŦB٦Θ：ƾ：ƾŽǒӪ>ïҎČӓę̀٣?	
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� � ϸˢ³زȋ[ɏ@ę̀٣ŊȄظՄǩֽЉǒӪ@»ˍ̅ˢ˵ĺ＜Ī

΄Ԭ֔һŨŪӧȱǥǰ@ˈĸγg＜Ī͂hd1935 Ș»ˍ̅؏ưѵõ

˟ӋŽģƾ̠@Ё˶＜Ī͂ȉ̇ŜđÒɹ{ǐ@̓ͫʨֽnЈ{d˫̌

Љ＜Ī͂Ǯͫ：ƚ˕ ӣًɎc̕ԈѲŪ@ϸ»ˍƕʔ˂ ΘȄ�@Ʌ

 īk̫Óˍ̓ՃքټϷ̪ЉǮͫwï Ȅ�ģǮ�d˟ӋŽũ 1938

ȘоӋ@vńĸγػɎӋͥŽdũѱp͏tϼ：ɷɅ@＜Ī͂Ӧԛʃ̘

̓kȏǮͫ【ЍƎúdػɎӋͥŽ؍ïЉѡŪ¦љγg：Ūh@˵ֽؙ

ƼѫϞ̀ЉŪˡdũ 1967 Ș;¡х͔ю{οˆλӷτѮ�ï@ͦ׌˟

Șוѷ@Ǯͫ̅׫ũ＜Ī͂ѸţοˆτѮ@̇˶�­˿̅ǟkyȆųЉ

τѮʥũػɎӋͥŽŽى@θɅɊȟר؏ưοˆ@ƁفƖՋdˍĤǣ̈

ā՟ŽĐđgȘЉˮbðпω>Rene	Chevalier,	MEP,	1909-1981?đã

ǡˑdˮпωՈԛʃ̘̓γėĐЉц»[ɏ@ũ�̈ā̌ؑˍĤƎӤp

Ē{dˍŽЉѶֶѸţ̂kȢ�ȮӤėwǼ@ˢ 1957 Șũ՟Ǽ̻͇ή

ȱѨǥŽģƾ̠d	

� � ҎČӓę̀٣ҙ̔Ʌ@»ˍ̅ʈ＜Ī͂Љ̸ַ͍қ٦ΘˍĐ@Ȅ{

γmīՇȄ�@£ز؏＜Ī͂d1976 Ș@ˍĐǟ＜Ī͂áŎ@ІǱɴ

}；Љԛʃ̘ӷŤ@ӈػɎӋͥŽөŽwٌīՇ˟Ŭ׵ȱd1982 Ș@

�ˢһǖɆkԥЉ；_ˍ�ʝȸҋɔѱp[ƾԎɴ@ؙՖ˟ȱЉػɎӋ

ͥŽdЙؤnđƚȘ@ȉãˏˢΘgĴĐģ΋ƙЉ＜Ī͂Ǯͫ�§ʚӏ

Ҵ@ɴѨmg＜Ī͂bĤhŧٮҠʚɀ͖ɞթd	 	
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å 8¬��×éßs�Á/��C�_W¡	

� � d×ï֫˵ôֹˢ؜٦ΘЉˍĐª˵؜ÔԥЉӋпªזѮůɡцڂ

1931ȘЉԉėҮª؜@ŻӖ ӣؕنc̬ȃcȬȃcͲ؍cŗɲcͱ

ٓcͯȃcȦ؍cцȃcȱǙcцǙcċ΋cϯҪ�Ӥ٦ΘЉªϴɴγ

пӑ{ŊdĪѬˋпω>ġĸĪѬϛ@Thomas	Conney,	S.J.	1896-1985?

˵Үª٥؜�،o@×� ӣɥϊԣЉпωˍʠĉʖӾ֐ח>ġĸӶɸ

щ@Daniel	Finn,	SJ,	1886-1936?cŗéԉ>Richard	Gallagher,	SJ,	1887-

1960?ѲdӾ֐חпω؝mũª؜ˍʠпƾ@wξԷˢ˄ج[Ţ˗ϓ@

ǣ٦Θ˫̌ӆĪƾЉքϛǨ：d�̂ũ：ȁǵѲزǼ�ΐÎЉӆĪІʤ@

áŨ˗ϓվǖ@ġډĆªϴʱ֔Īϓ@ŵǣ٦Θ�Љ΢ͫӂ¦׏ԬЧ

Ѡd	

� � ũѱp͏tϼ：ɷτІïƘ@ԉėҮª؜Ӧ٦Θ�Ȅ̸ƾ̠Şֽׯ

΋Ǻ@Թɍ϶γӼŢ΋֭żŪģŊȄǒӪd[Ţ；_ˍʊɷʯüĖ̅ũ

͖̌ؑɴѨ@ʫ¢{̈זād٦ΘΏ؟Ʌ@ϸˢҷe ӣҽ٨ņɥϊԣ

Љ֌׸˃ʚ@ÐٮªϴkȢՄַɁǴˢ[ѨŪĐЉΨ؍ЉӋӺϩª؜d

Үª؜ˢ1945Ș8̆׵؏@ӣȱא̇@ �؜pЈrđĸпω˷؝@؈

mר�Ǵˢ٦ΘˍĐ@×�Љ׫êmTķŢǐņŪĐ̈ādׇsпω_

øˢ»ˍȄ�@�Ĝ˶ʼ�m¥׏[Ճ˗ĊvĎÕԩЉՌӴd؝mʫ¢

пӑŻӖ@ª̂؜γѥşƾѫ؏ֹӀƾ@ġĠӦй̅ˌΪ@¡Ʈáύ

e؜Ӑf�ʿؓпωǣй̅ЉÓЍ̈āӦքϛdª؜Ż١m՗ƚԏĸЉ

ǇˍْԸ@ĉʖȉˈ٦ΘˍĐ_ˍәʝ[͉̈́d	
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� � ϸˢˇǭЉؕ¤@ˍȯ»¨רˢ1964ȘՍˏҮª؜@vϸ٦Θˍ

Đ�϶@͕ȳ˰ĸγgӋпª؜h@Úº：ǥª؜ùӚdИӤmđȘ�@

й̅ϮƊģˍӖˇѵ˅չ@ˍĐׅ͗´˄ǥªϴCӦ͖ķ˶@Ӌпª؜

пŌƾ؜ˢ1970Șũķk؜ŬÏɴѨ@Жïϸ٦ΘˍĐcΨ؍ˍĐc

ӊѝ̅cɧț̅ģˡΪ̅ĵֹd	

	
ŦBӋпª؜	

	

ŦBڂѮů˟ţЉ»Ҝ[ȳͫǮ	
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ª؜：͂Ø̇[ՃĵϭЉȱѹ@Ǵ[Ţ˗ԟɋӧȳ@�ԴЁ˶ˍ

̅Ȍ̊ǟ¨�̐ŪĊЉٗ˺@˵ՃˡżСǇˍ˗ĊӦ̕ˡȱѹҙĵЉ¹

áտɍ@Ȍ̊ԝ͖ԩĵĴј˗Ċcј˧ӦǇˍЉÇҒdηϙ̇·ȱѹЉ

϶ӴӦֽؙڂѮů˟ţׇk»Ҝ[ȳţ̓ͫǮؿȐЙֽ@qЙֳ˳dӋ

пª؜Љ[ԉbĹǥŽˢ1956Șȱɴ@ƙՋǴϤ�[ŢʋԷ_Ӏȳ@

Ʈ�϶ҟӴϦϬϰǰىcҍӴ̞ƷcΰӴϋƒcӷǾǹżȣņՀذЉԽ

ٟŦ̥@v�Ϥ�ˡȳԩĵũk֛dˍŽÏרѡؑǛˎ@ũǰ̛̣ىc

ѣɹņуƓىѻoǱϤ»Ҝ[ŢȜ�Ŧ̥@v�̇֞Љȱѹˡ;ǟгņ

гХҙĵũk֛@˵TįƚɈЉȱѹןϵd1967Șª؜ũ̕ċՌȱ׋

mkȣ˟ȱѹ@ĚпŌƾ؜：͂@�ӦïӇũȱѹ̢ٛvTЙљdɊ˓

	Љ_̢͂ٛҠʚmĞ ЉǑցd؜ǥŽӦª؜ӈՏ@Ӌпªٮ
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�æ(	

；_ˍ̅ũ٦ΘЉ»ˍĐӣ1860Ș�ʿǱӤ˟Ǆcɡءc΋վģ

ͱǬѲŪɅ@ ӣ҅ԣƙˡ»ˍ̅>Ǉȣƙˡ»ˍ̅PIMEЉï֫?ŭ

�٦Θ�γżŪ׏Î[ŢÏ̈ؠād1860Ș10̆[ӼѾҼeċx̫

Ҍf@gڋĕǼϼ؛Ԯ�ėóպқӼŢ@Ñ«̆Ʌ@ȉ̇пωɊΘǼ 

êgڋĕǼėѬǧ͸Ņ@ͦŁγ٪ǃgڋЉӼÖ؏ȻʵdgڋĕǼ͖Ʌ

ڋԬdјјŞҒ�Ɉg׏}ԬmTǦƈ΋Ȅѕ@ɠũɷï@：ƚγю׏

@Թ̓иγg͖kȏЊ¤ǵǸTͩbŪĥ˿ר]@؛ȋІǱưҗ̇׫

ĕǼĐЉ»ˍȄ�@Մê1898Ș[ӼѾҼeǱʒ٦ΘϼŬǠ̫f@ё

®˟ϼgđgȘbɅɾֻ׊ІǱd͖˶gڋkȏŪˡ：ƚ�˵̓׬b

Ū@ã�̇TǦ»Ҝ̓ԇѲdبԏ˿ƚ¨Ƥ；_ˍЉԑԌϏҁͫПםǮ

Ӥ͖@�ģŗկʵ|ɥƪª̅ũgڋĕǼėѬ؏ư»ˍ·Ā@ϟϫŽw

ũ͖ȱѨ@ɴγgڋĐ׵ՄЉ；_ˍ»ˍѩd×Ʌ@Şg˟gڋhҎÎ

ȋĐѸţ@»ˍȄ�Ɉ�ɊϟϫŽĺċʿǱӤΐͭ﹞ģgڋƆ@ˍ̅É

ɅӧȱӋɎӓʵŽģӋˡΪĴŽѲd	

ѱp͏tϼ：ɷɅŢÕÏɷ@úorcÔđȘͫس�ΦЉΛÎ@

gר̕ڋƮڂ：�c؋Хǵģ؍ٳٶѲŪáϤm՗ƚǜǰĐdɢûЉǮ

�ϮƊ@̄җІϴ1953ȘЉХЫǬÔ̓：ίdίαɅ@ˇȡӧȱÑǳ

Ӣ˶ɉһĐǄһαͫd；_ˍ̅îɊй̅̈āģˌΪˡفĖüαͫņس

ͫ@vĺ�­»ʷцمdŜđȘ�@γŝɲgڋŵǮͫЉظՄ@ŗկʵ

|ɥ̅̂ˢ1940Ș؏ֹkؑՆͅT：Љƾ̠@ӤɷɅ1954Șũgڋŵ
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͕ȳ؏ֹӋǐƪƾ̠d՟̠ԤˢɷɅІǱԗÿЉĐŸ@ӤÔđȘ�ȉ̇

ˍ«ÒЈĸƾϴdīƙ�ˢٓ̓̕ЉΞ|ǥƾ@ϸͧé˶ӋͥӋɏו֜

̅Љªƪˢ1965ȘôѨ@˵ÐΘ˟ĐԾ٥ؑʸ̇ϙѨ̠ӪcѰĵˇȡ

̓ΝȲŜϣҦëЉǥƾ@ɴγȐʨɂƙ֍ĠՋЉÙѸdŗկʵ|ɥ̅ˢ

1969Șũڂ：�؏ֹŗկʵǥƾ@¢ĐÏմǗƷȵǩո@ˢ1972ȘÝ

؏ֹkɻ[ƾŗկʵӋǐ̀؜d؅׭΀ƾ̠î˵ϸɧț̅ˢ1953Ș؏

ֹ@�ˢgڋŵֺšזӦ；Êזvϼ@�ɧœȄ̸ǐ؅׭΀ńĸd՟̠

˫̌γȄ̸ƾ̠@Ֆ̇ǥƾרcç[cٯ[cӑ̸ģȄ̸Ѳƾר@

1955Ș˿ƎֹƛؑǥƾÔȘëӀƾdӑ̸רՖ̇ęìc׋Ƹc׹Խc

ԺҫģԿكѲըѕ@ӈȄ̸רǠγϾ̸Ʌʉ֫ȄѕϼЉƾϴӈՖ@Ôđ

Ș�̂̇֜וkĒrЈĸƾϴd͖ƙ@ ӣɥϊԣЉӋڌآٯƪª̅w

ũ[ŢÏɷɅ ê٦Θ@ç˶ˢή�Ʉːͻ̈؜ײā@×ɅІǱˍӖ@

vˢ1977ȘũэӽŲ˼ÊԮôѨ̨ȳӵ̀؜d	
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Lx1��<é�·�(�®D	

� � ϟϫŽ˵gڋĐϤƹ̄ĪӅЉӋŽ@Յձ͖Ū[ŢҁģԑԌϏҁˍ

ĤÕķІǱŽĐЉ͙ıdpđtҋ؏ư@[ŢÏؠáϤӀņŧģÒŢӏ

֭ѲЉˇͻĀЕd٦Θγmúȸؘā@ˢΣňזȱѨm֭ρ@TǦ֭{

γɥϊԣҁģęȢҁ；_ˍɇd»ˍƕˢŁ̏êg֭ڋρʫ¢ϔؼ

ād٦ΘŞγͫ͝ŪЉ֫�@ӦÏŪëȢãؤ@ˇͻ̎ħ＜：Աʺ@˕

đȘؑ@ҍдģͺځŪkȏׅΥІǱmȄ̸dŞɲӰƇЉȱѨ�ģgڋ

ĕǼЉú׊ІǱ@՗ƚ{ɊΘǼʲ gڋǨ×˵ǧ͸ŅǮ�@×[՗ƚ

˵ԑҁ{ƕd	

� � ũgڋ»ˍЉÉԬӇɎӺӃпω>Giovanni	 Spada,	 PIME,	 1867-

1950?ˢ 1900 Ș®϶ŗկʵ|ɥ̅ũǧ͸Ņ̝ƕϻזӦΣňזvϼ֔

һЉŨŪoЉk«：ɺؑӨԬ_【Ȼʵdϸˢ˟єǮЉ；_ˍǐȤƎ

ú@٦Θ�ϒĐˢ 1901 ȘӧȱįǑҎÒЈ{ЉǥӋŽ@�Tƚa£T

ƜǑҎПƚ¨ɇ@ӈϟϫŽũԑҁˍɇϲ́˞ײϴ>Anthony	Simplicio	

Gomes?֌üpǅɴ@ϸɎпωʼ�٥�ĳ؈dׇȣÙųŋɎȳ̢ٛЉ

ȱѹˢ 1905 Ș 5 ̆ 8 【Ԏɴ@ɴγbɅ֜וŜãktҋ@gڋĐŏk

؏ˆnÓПЉ；_ˍŽ@vɴγӋشÉ̅cƵƪ̅cؽȘ̅Ѳœ̅Љ̡

Μd͖ŽĐЉ¨ɇ֛ç�ɥϊԣņęȢЉ֭մcƙҁŐ{ņΨ؍ЉԑԌ

Ϗєͫγ_@بԏȋĐІǱ@ׅΥ̇ԉ{ӍǮ@TķŢҁЉ¨Пũ：Ó

҈п[Ďجɴk«¨�ŧٮ@Ǝ׏йĐ֦ͫ˧ЉÕԩd	
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ŦB2003ȘȱוӄªɅЉϟϫŽ	

� � ՟ŽЉпӑ{ŊũpcnđȘ�@wظՄμٙgڋƆcgڋŵ�Ӥ

ͺځŪkȏЉˍĤ@ИӤ 1932Ș＜ƷזӋɎӓʵŽģ 1955Șΐͭ﹞Ӌ

ˡΪĴŽȱɴγ͔d1949 Ș@ϟϫŽē̢γŽĐdɷɅ@γmǑҎЁ

˶Ɋ[ŢΛÎЉͫسģTˠƎúЉ̐Ū¨ɇ@ӋŽˢrđȘ׵�ȱγ}

；Љفւd1990 Ș@٦ΘĪϓխ՜ƲŊ̅ǟbæγpҐ͙ıȱѹ@

2010Ș˅æγkҐ͙ıȱѹd	

� � ŗկʵ|ɥ̅ˢ 1887 Ș؏ưũg̈ڋā@պáר�Ū�ӋŽ϶Љ

ǧ͸ŅӢ΋ŨŪw˵ϸϲ́˞ײϴ֌ü֔։@ȱɴӋϪéƾ̠>ŗկʵ

ӋϪé̀؜ï֫?dƾ̠ˢ 1900 Ș͕ȳ؏ֹ@ç̌γϺƪ̠@Ĭ̇n

đĸƾѫ@vs�ԑҁÍѫγ_@×ɅTˠʿȱ@ˢ 1903 Ș٥Éúȱ

mÑȣ̠Ӫ@êm 1924 ȘÝƎȱϤ}فĺΣňזЉӋȻٕϊ：͂@v
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ˢnđȘ�ΤչγƪƷƾ̠d【ͻ̌ؑ՟̠kȢ´ը@Ӥ 1945 Șɋ

ը@ƾϴwؠҶƎú@Ӥ 1953 ȘɴγgڋĐ̄：ЉkؑƪƷƾ̠@̂

pĒmЈĸƾϴdׇɻØՃȳȱѹ̢ٛЉƾ̠@ϸ˱【Љƙҁªו֜̇

ƪôֹ@بԏƬ׉­tģӅğ@ȉvϸԉ{ªƪѶϥd	
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¬X¯^<éjÁÞn�\¿		

� � ũӋɎӓʵŽȱɴbï@gڋƆĐЉ¨ɇՄĠӦȻʵǩظՄïɁǧ

͸ŅЉϟϫŽɶӇϐͳήӋӺϩǄӅ؜ÏЉӋŽdÑԤЉȻʵщÂŭϸ

ϟϫŽЉпω_ʚd	

� � 1923 Ș˶@ϸˢgڋЉ{ĩƎ،@；_ˍ̅؏ưǢʅŪچğӧȱ

˟ˍŽdũ 1924Ș 2̆ 11【@kҿ̇ȾهøЉ；_ˍɇǚ¨nЁ˶Љ

Ǉȣ�ϒȎƚˋ_ˍ>Domenico	Pozzoni,	PIME,	1861-1924)@Դиٗγ

˟ӋŽҀĄҝ֋@v¥իɴѨҀºƲŊ̅dЁ˶Љ；_ˍ̅ũ̝ƕϻז

ȉ֔mkƂŨŪ@�ǘũ＜ֽȉ̇ЉϟϫŽmdӦ͖ķ˶@ӊѝǝԫƪ

ª̅Ցõũΐͭ﹞ӧȱҮ̅؜@iؙ̅ՖǥŽˡ£ˍĤ@ɻ�ˍ̅Љӆ

ɭ£Ԏũ͕ІǱڌ：ǰǂՑõЉgڋƆ@ӈ×˶TǦԑҁǐȤi˃ʚũ

՟Đӧȱ˟Žd1928Ș 11̆ 13【@；_ˍ̅ũͷ̇ѭχӇЉɞͽp@

�ȟÀʉɈ�ˢ＜ƷזӦѤɿӅזvϼЉŨŪd	

� � ×Ʌ@ɚϥՊ_ˍʅ ӣԅԣЉ̐Ѻ̅ƕ̢Ǚпω>Adalbert	

Gresnigt,	O.S.B.,	1877-1965?ҀõȱѹoǊd̢Ǚпω̂ՖՑċxЉֲ

|：ƾЉ[Ţȳ̠Ӫ�ģ٦ΘڂѮůЉԉėҮª؜ЉŜĵ؜ȱѹdɚ_

ˍğ¨Ё˶֫ũċxЉ̢Ǚпω@Ȍ̊�ӚȱkȣҋɔӋƪǥɎԣ>Ӌ

Ɏӓʵ?Љ[ȳˍŽdīkˡف@�iũ¨[Դи[ȳՖՑũ٦Θ̎ɐ

γ{ʨħd̢Ǚпωˢ 1929 Șǔ mç͗Ŧ͆dkƮɻ、@[ȳȱѹ

T＜ħּ͓@̢Ǚпωˢ˵҉ĵm×�Ñ�ȱѹȎ>A.H.	Basto ņ M.	
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Van	Wylick?Љɏɕ@ǟӋɎӓʵŽȱɴkȣ̇ťىņǧƅЉʕĘȤȳ

ˍŽd	

	

ŦB˫ȘЉӋɎӓʵŽ	

� � 1932 Ș 12 ̆ 18 【@ɚ_ˍêӢ_ʚmоӋÙщdӋɎӓʵŽˢ

1949 Ș͕ȳē̢γŽĐdƚȘ @ӋɎӓʵŽũǽʕcˍӖcײЅņ

й̅̈ā׫ʂΤmЙЁЉՌӴ@�ӥũņؼǤпω>Carmelo	Orlando,	

PIME,	1907-1979?ģڂɎтпω>1930-1993?̈ā՟Ž̌ؑ@пӑ{

ŊȐѯʛӋɎӓʵŽЉ_�ĳ؈γggڋĐ_ˍhd	

� � ӋɎӓʵŽЉȼϕɴkʏlđƸ̛@ʦ϶mҽ٨ȳťćɤɔЉՖՑ@

¶Ȩʦ϶mťʘγ_ٔdŽÏЉХ̞î˵ʦ϶ѐ̘˞ȳd́ىЉ̒、γ

nĵŨņ؀ѳ@ة��Ҍػáks[ŢǎȯȱѹЉԇŚͬłd	
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� � ũӋɎӓʵŽЉƙרȱ̇kǥǰ@˵gڋѱđn「Љѫ֭ɻ�϶Љ

ѫ֭ǍdɅˡȱ̇gڋӋɎӓʵӼ˗ƾ̠ģțїŤЉnǳ̠ٯӪ@ϚɈ

ԑҁˍɇڈø˃ʚ@įɟĜŞՖ《֤To˶ظ�Ͱӈˢ 2008 Ș´ֹd

Tו@ׇɻ̇ԏrđmȘ͙ıЉƾ̠@Յձmאĕ«tҋ̕Ճ˗ĊԜԋ

Љַչd͖ƙ@ũˍŽЉՃ̇فˮɥg̈ڋā[ɏ：͂@ˢ 1967 Șȱ

ɴɅγׇŪĐʫ¢Ĵ٘й̅̈ād	 	
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{w:¬b~.<é_dJ³�­N6�Õ]	

� � ũŵȋІǱbï@ΐͭ﹞kȏȉҝ̇̓ԎӍǮ@̇�ˢċفЉÇΆ

̓@̕ėЉϷǜ̓@ՃفЉԊϸ̓@�ģՃċЉڋ٨ů̓d1912 Ș�

ï@ˇȡv̎ξԷˢІǱΐͭ﹞Đ@ĐÏ_ՄЉ֨זՖ《½̇ 1902 Ș

٢ЉІǱ@Ʈė˭ԮӤ̤̘Ԯk×@זǵؽģ×ɅȱɴЉז﹞：ՖЉ׿

ȏЉƈ΋Ȅѕ@îϸю{ІǱŐǥՆͅ׏Ԭd	

� � ĞǴɤ：éŗկʵ|ɥ̅ѱn̅Љ̐Ūӊѝǝԫƪª̅˫ˢ 1930

Ș�ˢΐͭ﹞：﹝ֽؙזȱѨª؜ģ՘ɻ@v؏ˆǥŽ¢̐ŪˍɇĠӦ

ȻʵdrđȘ�ç@ˍ̅̇ɤũ͖ĐȱѨ˟ˍŽd1953 Ș@ХЫǬ̍

ǰĐ：ί@ˇȡңɖʩԬÓÕɺǰՑõǄһαͫ@vˢӁȘʶáХЫǬ

̕ДӷŤɅفЉŤŪģֽؙǵŪÕpđrԍȗˡŀ@�γȱŽb϶dӋ

r¼ˡΪĴ；_Žˢ 1955Ș 3̆ 25

【ϸЇӼƣ_ˍ>Lorenzo	 Bianchi,	

1899-1983?_ʚƨżщ@ķȘȗǄ

ƛő϶@˵Ё˶ĐÏ̄ٯЉȱѹ

ϓd	

	

	

ŦBӋˡΪĴŽ	



28 gڋĐ 

 

� � ՟Ž�͑Ɏȳȱѹ҉ĵ[ȳÇҒӈȱѨdˍŽЉרى˵ҍϰ。ǰى@

vՖ̇ǖˢ[ŢϔӴЉ؆͂dÏľǧʘų@Ý�ӷѣɹ�ªٟ@�Ѣٚ

ԇŚпӋЉѡؑdˍŽՖ̇n«ťʘ؍Îĩ@׏Î：؍ɅïˡįՅ̇ȅ

ĲÑפЉԪ」ȼ̭͂@ƭ¾；_ȷ؏Ñɽּ͓ɻ̇׏ÎлЉŢȢЉ{@

Ɂo֚˶wįՅ；ӷ̇�[ȳȱѹ͊́oЉ˙ʘȳՖՑdˍŽЉÎĩՖ

ˢp͂@؍ƙ˵�ǖ̇[ŢϔӴЉ͊́�˃̛@Ýװ϶nɼ[ȳ：؍Ӧ

n«͕؍：ʘ؍qЙǣɲdӋŽÏϸđp̚ʘų˃̞Ҙɴ@տɍˍ̅ҵ

ʆđp؍�ɇЉՓզ@ӈ˓ȣشХ：уİģӋ΅ͳî˵ȱŽ˶@ϸӋɎ

ӓʵŽַ֖@įՅÑ«ŽĐЉؕ¤Ǖäd1994 Ș：Ҡª˶@γѰĵ̮

p˅قɅɻʫ¯ЉÕԩ҈п@ǟуƓĺïʩє@vϸәʝ[͉̈́_ʚо

цщd	

� � ͖ŽЉǴ̠ӋˡΪĴǥƾ˵ˢ 1955 Ș 10 ̆Ԏɴd؝mϒؼģˍ

Ӗ@՟Ž٥ףôˢˇȡՙÜЉÅԕqüйdӋˡΪĴÅԕqüйϸÅד

É٫cӊѝ̅ƕ֐̀שпω>John	Collins,	SJ,	1912-1997?ģԢŢ̽É

ϴ¯նІ֛@ˢ 1964Ș 9̆ 17【ɴѨ@Ӥ}ȉĕ«tҋdÅԕqüй

օѥЉԉ{Ǯͫʫ¢ҝה˹ĀϸՃˡȏĀ@»Î٦ΘɅ@γЁ˶ɷɅד

ΪoЉqüd͖ҘұЉǇ】γgؿγϑécؿγˌΪc`˵̈āh@_

Մ̈āǣտγ՟ŽЉˍĤģ×ИҊǐǴ@ډĆйŊœ϶١@؁׸ɴѷÃ

ӂɫ@̇ՑõŪÅԕCīkˡف@ʈйŊЉÅԕӔج׸ӝɴԻ@ׄוџ

µѕȞ®֊nũҝΪoظՄңɖʯüЉйŊ@Ζؔسוdׇ˵Ճˡ̛̾

	ʳdװ��ĀøЉ̹דĵ[ȳװ 	
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Ó�P¬"~!�<écn�r(��O_<	

� � ̕gڋĐ̇TǦө̇ЉǋǐĪ̓Ʈԯïţ̓cѮŤ̓cϐͳή̓ģ

：д̓d�ˢٝٺǵӞЉ：д̓Ğ̐˵k̫�̑Ʊγ_Љ̓Ԏd̑ͪĞ

ǮˢȬ̕ėت،̀Ҫ>ͫŢɅ˅ĸrԉҪ?@ÉнγǋǐХč̑ǮÇ@

�ĞǮˢΘǼХƆŅ@ũΔkآȘؑȏķƠ{ģÒĸÍƷםǮ˟ǄҪg

ɷίЉŪס׃}͸﹝�@w�ʦХγ̸dɷɅ@͖Đwɴγ՗ƚÏŪڋ

ˡ@ֽׯgڋŵЉ؋Хǵ˵˟єͫԖʳ̍ǰЉӍǮŪ@Ş͖Ё̑ͪ˧{

ɷɅ־ŝĞǮŪ˶@ІϤ՟ŪȉչɴǜǰĐd	

� � ˍ̅̇ɦ͖Ū：ͫس׷ЉظՄ@ˢ 1952 Șǟ؋ХǵՖγgڋĐЉ

Šǉ»ˍ٥@چ�ĳ؈˵ɤҁضɒיпω>Luciano	Aletta,	PIME,	1910-

2000?d؋Хǵãγ：д̓coÇȀģpÇȀ@ө̇kХзƁáϵЇ

ӴЉӷǾǹ@ˈ؋�Хγĸ@Ş͖՟ŪЉӋŽw�ЁŪϓ֌──ӷǾХ

>¦љ：ځХ?ӧȱ@ˢ 1953 ȘũoÇȀ>：ՋόƁӦױȫbؑ?ʨ

ֽ˝ǵזԎɴ@ĸγӋǐǥŽd[ƙ՗ƚĪӅˍŽȱѹ׫˵϶Х̒γ_@

ǥŽ͕فįՅ�ӷǾХЦȱЉХϋdӈϸˢֽؙ̓ǰwƚ�ӷǾХɻȱ@

�ɈǥӋŽӦׇ«ԉ{йĐؿȐĵʑŪԩγkٮdӤ 1957 Ș@Ӌǐǥ

ŽӏķֽؙЉϐͳήɴγϙѨŽĐ@ϸˢǶѨ͖ĐƚȘ@ˈӋŽ˫Șȉ

ІǱ̇[ӼգЉӋՏǌոҘcֲу̅ģ͑՛ŧѲœ̅@ˍĤƚחnĒ{@

ͦȘẇ՗ƚ{ْ΅dͦ«_【Љհזŭ�Ȭ̕՞cŢգģӼ˗׏Ԭ@

ɴγ˫̌ũ՟ĐǦ̇Љ̕Ճ˗ĊԩĎbŪd͖ƙ@ӋŽwؙՖ̇ˮɥ[

ɏ@ʫ¢˹׈ԠŉģˌΪϓ֌Ѳ@Ʌفî̇ӋϟϫțїŤd	
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� � 1963 Ș@˟Љȧёǰˢ：д̓̕فȱɴ@ĸγȽԧצ@ɴgڋĐ

̄˫ЉÓÕǰצbk@ˍ̅Şɲˇȡ̇Ցõ׵˟ІǱ՟Đ@ˈǟӋǐŽ

ХǵǥŽ˿ĸγӋîΪé؋@γ[ɏЉŪȏҵҶ̈āǮͫ֯צɁȽԧם

tŽ@ؙǴˢȽԧצӋǐŽĐd1979 ȘˍĐʈ؋Хǵē̢γϙѨЉ˟

ŽĐ@Иê 1996ȘÝ׵˟ҎÎȽԧצӋǐŽĐd	

� � пωǣˍĤיɒضθ՟ŽȉԹʎě@ˍĤȉַêӋǐŽ@�ЁȘخ

ЉΩɞ�¾˱【Ӯ@ˈũ 2010 Șضпω׉tđŁȘ˶@ˍĤũӋǐŽ

γ�ӨԬҋɔȻʵd˿ϳ˵@Иê}；@ũ̀فo�̇؋ХǵӋîΪé

tŽЉǠوd	

	

ŦBӋîΪétŽĞγӋǐŽ@�ӷǾХӧȱd	
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ŦBӋîΪétŽę؉	 	
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�
�¬Ù.�<	

� �  ٶ@ÊȘؑזw˵ɷɅЉ_ՄǜǰĐdΔ̋؍ٳٶ@ХǵĐ؋m؝

 Ӧԁ̙ȀcԀԃήcϐٓՌĵљγŜǵ@˵�ǋǐ{γ_Љ̓Ԏӏ؍ٳ

Бdũ̓؍ٳٶ�ċЉٱٲǵǵӞ@˵Ԅ׶ģ̭ϷӉŪ@v�Ρ՗ƚƐ 

ƍdŜđȘ�̏ӤrđȘ�ç@ר�ŞŢÕÏɷė׃ЉŢ֭ņͫسũ՟ 

ԤȱȀė˟̓dÔđȘ�@ˇȡǟױήƈ΋@ІǱɴnǐ̓ٛסƆCġ 

ǟnǐ̓kȏǵuƢȗ@ІǱɴͺƆȄ̸ĐdبРֽؙkȏ؏ưІǱ@ 

	ҡҚwȮ�Ӥ՟Đd֨ז

� � »ˍƕũ 1960 Ș�؏ưĺnǐ̓Ѳ΢ͫйĐ»ʷцمdӋͥӋɏ 

̅ͧé˶ҁضʝ̕пω>Octaaf	 De	 Vreese,	 CICM, 1900-1996）更於鯉

魚؍一ȏ@ÉɅȱɴӋثĴ�ǥŽcӋثĴ�țїŤ>Ϥ˅ɴȄȫ?c

Ɏżƾ̠ģ՘ɻd×[�ˢ؍ٳٶЉɎżƾ̠ǥŽ>ϤɴןŬ?ƙ̇k

Ӌͥǹ@տɍշ�ĐÏ΢ͫdǣ：ƚ¨ƤͫؑǇˍЉԉ{΢ͫӈՏ@Ӌ

ͥ¾ϗƮ�­Љ̊΋Ջم@қ�­ƚk׵ȝ�dӋثĴ�ǥŽˢ1979Ș 

ē̢γŽĐ@˟ӋŽˢ 1990 ȘũͺƆȱɴ。此外，聖母聖心會也在該

區ôѨ；_ˍ˹μ[ƾģ˹֐й̅̈ā[ɏ。
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ŦBӋͥӋɏ̅ƕضʝ̕пω	

	

ŦB؍ٳٶӋثĴ�ǥŽ	 	

t 糞 ,.. ~ 
．潯 ..:. l·

t ], 
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C�_z2Gdé�vf&�/
	

� � Ґأ}mżǳйĐЉ»ˍȄ�@ɷɅ٦ΘȄ̸֛ٝ@ˍ̅ǣˢȄ؝

Љϒ١i̇ɻؕ΂d٦Θ΋ŊbǐΜӣ 1863 ȘՃϮՃρГkؑ΋Ŋǒ

Ӫ@_ՄϸΗϻÓĳѲŐԬȱɴ@Ǡ¢ũ΄ӰoȄ�Љ΋Ŋ�ǒd՟ǒ

ӪՖ֦̇ǇΈЉӋ�ƚфŽ>ӋɀɈŽ?dĞǴˢӋÓ̅Љ΋Ŋ»̅ז

ˢ 1884 Ș؏ưũΘІǱ@ӁȘϚßũӋ�ƚфŽӨԬǽʕd1901Ș΋

Ŋ»̅זЉǒӪˢή�ԇƕːזԎɴ@ҌnđȘ�@΋Ŋ»̅זӦ΋Ŋ

bǐÕķՙÜγ΋ŊҘұd�­Ʌ ȱɴЉ˟̅ɻ@ˢ【ͻ˶̌לŚ׵

ШƔd˟Љ΋Ŋbǐ̅ɻˢ

1967 Șũǧ͸Ņ[ؑזԎ

ɴ@ϸ˶�ΘСɸ֠ٿ>Sir	

David	 Trench?ʭȓdÑȘ

Ʌ@；_ˍЉ΋ŊǇ̅úÎ

͖֦ǇΈϒͫ̈ā@ģɅ^

ģɎŢЉ΋Ŋ»ˍ̅iúڀ

Î×[@vǉͦȘm̆ѱp

«_【γgӭ΋_【hdç

̌ĸγӋ�ƚф΋ŊŽЉˍ

Žķ˶ӨԬ；_ˍȻʵģӋ	

ŦB[ؑז΋Ŋbǐ	
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Ó̅ǽʕ@˵٦Θ½ՅǇΈĵkЉщʕŽdγװĵg΋Ŋbǐh׵ȱ@

Ӌ�ƚфŽˢ 2018 Ș 2 ̆ȟӨԬҙŽщ@˻˶םӤ�ːӢ˶̅ŬҵҶ

̈ād	

� � īkӦȄ{̇Ǖäؕ¤ЉˍĐ͉̾˵�ˢͺځŪňҾِԮӦȻːז

vϼЉӋӺϩͅѸȄ{ǥŽd՟Žˢ 1957 ȘȱѨ@çĸgӋӺϩͅѸ

Ȅ{Մϥհʠɻh@˵ˍ̅̇ɦˢgڋĐظՄƚsˍŽ äĵˍɇƎú

ЉظՄӈȱѨ@�ƈԼϟϫŽӦΐͭ﹞ӋˡΪĴŽbؑЉѡإdç˶@

՟ǥŽĬӨԬɦɚуcӋ΅ģžʝӋo@ӈƴװӋoîũϟϫŽӨԬd

Ё˶ ӣúʙ：ЉӋͥηĞҺ»ˍƪª̅̂ˢ͖؏ǱÐ【ëɩזϣ@ũ

זw؏ֹɩ@ؑ˶Ŋȕüp�Ȭ̕՞ģŢգˍʠ@ӈũը٢ģȄ٢ז«

ϣқÍѫģȄ{dũ̄çrȘÏ@̂̇֜וrĒ{ɩא@זĕ{ْ΅@

ĦɈԉ΄ĵ�Љϥɣɴ̙dׇsƙҁªƪwʧՕֽؙȬԉ؜ײЉօѥأ

ǳdǥŽˢÔđȘ�̏�ÎͺځŪӋ§фŽĐd	

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



36 ˟ϼĐ 

 

a�(	

� � ٦ΘВϒĐɴѨˢ 1841 Ș@ӣưg٦ΘǼģ×ŁţÔ״Ūˡhӛ

�ԴӺϩпωγ٥�ǇȣВϒ؍Ψ٪ר¨«c؈Đ@ϸˍĐĳˍ؍Ψز

փֆѶϥd»ˍƕˢ 1849 Șũ}；Ǵˢ˟ϼЉԂήĐȉ؏ư»ˍȄ

�d1860 Ș�@[ӼˇȡѾՐeċx̫Ҍf@٦ΘВϒĐЉѸţʿ：

ӤĉʖȇTƚ˓«˟ǄҪ>ĚǝǄҪ?@»ˍȄ�ˢ˵ʿǱêgڋĕ

Ǽc：﹝ĐcՃքĕǼcėٓcεΟ͸ѲŪĐd1874 Ș@٦ΘВϒĐ

ē̢γ�ϒĐ@ѸţÝk͏ʿǱ@ĉʖ˟ǄҪc͚œҪ>Ěɡء?ņ΋

վҪ@vƲٯ�пω>Timoleon	Raimondi,	PIME,	1827-1894?γ٥�Ǉ

ȣ�ϒ@ķȘ 11̆ 22【оӋɴγ_ˍd	

� � ˢЁ؛пӑ{ŊŜԤ»ˍ@ѸţTךɤІǱ»ˍo̸@Έ׼ˍ_ٯ

˶ЉóպŪB٦Θģgڋ>ϼ؛Ԯ�ė?@ףΌ֟Ё˶�ǴΔˇȡѶֶ

Љ[ŢÏؠŪˡ@¡ƮˢϤũ˟ϼ̕רɴѨ：ΊĐ>1867 Ș?ģՃք

Đ>1880Ș?@ɅӇ˿ɴγ【Ʌ٦Θ；_ˍ»ˍƕЉ：̐ρd	

� � 1898 Ș@̡ʽeǱʒ٦ΘϼŬǠ̫f@ӼŢĺΔȯё®gڋϼ؛

Ԯ�ċcΐū͹�ėŪˡģֽؙpЈƚ«زǼ@γ̌gđgȘd�ɁЉ

˟ǄҪԹõãγ[ŢѶͻЉǝǄҪģӼŢѶͻЉg˟ϼh@ׇԴиˍ̅

wظՄ׵˓»ˍѵϿ@ΥΥ�Ճքņėٓγ»ˍ[ɏdӼŢё®˟ϼ

Ʌ@ҵ�_ˍkИʒǱ˟ϼё®ŪЉϒͫȄ�@Ʈ 1905 Ș@Ȏƚˋ_

ˍҵ�Ʌ@ũ˟ϼ٥ÉȱѨ：﹝Đ@ˈ͖˟ϼЉІǱӦ»ˍЉ׏ѕɛɛ
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Йؕd1926 Ș@；_ˍ̅ʈ˟ϼõãγ̕ĐcՃĐņزǼĐ@˟ϼ̕

Đ�Ճքγ[ɏ@˟ϼՃĐ�：﹝，γ[ɏ>ĉʖÇ̉cԂή?d	

� � ҮʖӈՏ@ѱp͏tϼ：ɷï；_ˍũ˟ϼЉІǱ@_Մ˵�：﹝

γ[ɏ@ֵǞċӤ҆Ȁcoͭ@ėӤ͸Ϸc：ţ@ՃӤÇ̉cԂήdӈ

 ͫس@ǵЉ»ˍ·Ā@îϸՃքЉ»ˍƕփֆdģӤp͏：ɷɅل٨

Θ@ɃƚӍǮˢ˟ϼ³יŪĐ@；_ˍ̅ũ˟ϼׇsйĐփ֛˿׵ՄЉ

й̅̈ā�ńd	
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ÁÅ¬Y<é»��(��_y%	

� � 1861 ȘĞǴȬ̕К˟ǄҪ>Ě}ǝǄҪ?ЉՃքŪĐ͚٦ΘВϒ

ĐѶϥ@bɅTǦпωêՃք؏Ǳ»ˍȄ�dņՃΡпω>ġĸǄՃΡ

_ˍ@Simeone	Volonteri,	MEM,	1831-1904?˵ѱk�ũ՟Ԥ»ˍЉп

ω@ӈķ̅Љ̝пω>Gaetano	Origo,	MEM,	1835-1868?î˵̄ÉũՃ

քǉǮ@׫­�ħêЁŪǮͫЉּ͓ģ˃ʚdTa@ѱkؑǥˍŽ£؏

ưŒ϶@Ӥ 1870Șȉ̇nЈrđĸˍĤˏǮՃքđp«̓Ԏ[d	

� � 1912 Ș@Ǉȣƙˡ»ˍ̅Љ֌ΐ»ˊƕҽƧǄпω>Angelo	

Ferrario,	PIME,	1876-1933?Ɋɤ：é١Ѓŝ Ʌ@ӦŢҁЉĳɇȯ˴

пω>1872-1947?־ŝՃքĐ»ˊ@vˢķȘ 12ּ̆ ķ̅ЉlłϿ

пω>Emilio	Teruzzi,	 PIME,	 Ϸ�cՃټҶũΐ΍cؠ@?1887-1942

քcڂ΁Άc֙Ɇc：ΊcԨǐήcЇ͸ΨcֱpcͩڂɲcڋӰήģ

ΊӿѲŪȱѨģѶϥđrؑˍŽģǥŽ@ĉʖ�ˢՃքЉӋɏŽdׇs

ǥŽ【ɅІǱγȜ«_ՄˍĤŧٮdϸˢˍɇˏǮק׬@пωظՄ،׆

֡ΌŜáʧՕˍɇdʽ 1922 ȘЉȘƀٚи@՟Ū̇kĒrЈrđĸˍ

Ĥ@ã�ũpđp«ŧٮ[@ˍʠՄϥӇ̇đp{@̇ףkؑӋŽcđ

ؑƾ̠ņpЈÔđĸƾϴd1924 Ș@ؙǴˢՃքӋɏŽЉǽМƾ̠ô

ֹd	
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ŦBӋɏŽ˵；_ˍũՃքЉ׵Մ»ˍچ	

� � 【ͻ˶̌@ՃքĐħê【֭ïɻ̎̇ЉШƔ@úo΋АϖϘ@՗ƚ

ˍŽģǰǂԹͣ@TǦ；_ˍɇ͛ˢ٤ԄģЂЃ@̇s˿Թ͡Ǐdɷ

Ʌ@˗ˮɎпω	>Giorgio	Caruso,	PIME,	1908-2004?׵ŝՃք@»ˍ

Ȅ�Ɉ�ҵҶ@ˍŽģǥƾɋª@̇TǦˍɇƎú@ϸgؑӋŽģȻʵ

[ɏ̈āpđn̫̓@v̇Ŝؑˍ̅ƾ̠d1949 Ș@ɷɅѱkʄɩז

ӇũՃήْ΅@ӈƾӂՄϥЉͭؠǮͫؠҶƎúdӋпǥª؜Љ׵˟؏

ֹ@˿�ՃքkȢɴγŻӖпӑ{ŊЉʰѿ@Иê 1957 ȘŞʿÈםӤ

ԛʃ̘˟؜Ӫγ͔d	
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� � ；_ˍɇũ 1955 ȘȉƚחÒЈ{@ĉʖTǦͭo{dϸˢ¨ɇT

ˠƎ،@ˍ̅ˢͺԚԆǥǵoīȱ˟ӋŽ@��̃Ğ�ˢ̓Ïӣ 1880

Ș� ƚ͏˅ȱЉǥŽd1959 Ș@ӋɏŽȱѹǅɴģоӋd1964 Șϸ

ˢٜٛȾهϴՑ@пωȕüӱɹoǺ@ũgǣف΋hĺˇȡёŪȱɴ͂

ɺ@ɴγˍĤ̓g�ƚф̓h@vؙ̇ǥŽd՟̓ç̌ϸˮɥփֆѶ

ϥ@ĺ̓ͫʫ¢ϴ·ՓҨ@Ʌ ˮɥǟѶϥ͍vͫ̓ףӣҘЉg˅œϴ

ֆ�ĵ�йh@ɴγ٦ΘǦՅĬӚ�TӚáŎЉĵ�йɺǰd̘؛̇·

̜̳пω>Adelio	Lambertoni,	PIME,	1939-2006?ӣ 1968 Ș֛ʼ�Ӌ

ɏŽ_�ĳ؈@�wγͭo{ģօӻ：ПŜáƦ֚Ͱü@ɈĴϼ˃ʚً

éŪʄõ＜ȗģˮًÑ̓d͖˶@ŽĐǟ»ˍ̈ā�ǱӤЇ͸ήkȏd

1979 ȘӋɏŽ͕ȳɴγՃքŽĐ@ӈՃքĐkИϸǇȣƙˡ»ˍ̅փ

ֆӤ}d	

	
ŦB�ˢǣف΋�ƚф̓ЉǥŽ	 	
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ä�o¬°�K<és-Z��_i	

� � ͫ̓@ԤЉǥǼ@˵k̫ǋǐ̓״Ճքȋ[ɏnÓزϷ̪̓�ˢټ

ÐƱ؞@ÉнįׁΠӤȬ̕ΐūՋέ̖ÇƗ̓Љ؞ƺɎƠƵdͪ؞ǐ˧

٥ÉםÎ͸ٓՌЉټϷ@×ɅnɺɅ{ãèєǮՃքټϷ̪c：﹝ټϷ

�ģɿډȀŲ΄kȏdټϷ̪ȱ̓Ӥ}ȉ̇pЈƚȘ͙ı@ϸˢ̓ͫ

�．Ϸ˽ټγϴ@ˈ�gټϷhúoģ̪h>Ěˈ״?Љg̪hγ

ĸd	

� � 1864 Ș@ņпωӦ̝пωʌټϷ̪ʧՕģ»ˍ	@ÑȘɅ@̝пω

γm�̓ͫ�΅@ņпωîγͪ؞ǐ˧nđn{�΅dɅ @ˍĤ­ʞ

áѡŪӧȱǥӋŽņƾ̠>1920 ȘôѨЉgΧ΀ƾ̠hЉï֫?@v

ƤӋӺϩγټϷ̪_§dʽ̓،Դи@ϸˢ̓ͫЙ¨ӋӺϩ̂ˢ΋Аá

ͷ˶ٚؼǟ�­řׂ@�̓ͫÌħ΅þ@ˈǟ×ƤӺgпˮhd	

� � 1875 Ș@ټϷ̪ÐǼ̓ͫЊȉْ΅@ɴγĸò×ǘЉˍĤ̓d

1879 Ș@ӋՏ̅̅ƕцӺϩпω> Josef	 Freinademetz,	 SVD,	 1852-

1908?ʌחՃք@v̂ũټϷ̪»ˍdkȣ˟ӋŽũ 1890 ȘԎɴо

Ӌ@Ħ�Ğ̇ǥŽdцпω̂ũ՟̓γÑĸƪƶ�΅d�ũ 2003 ȘŞ

ũÏŪģ٦ΘЉ»ˍȄ�@ϚˍǇӺ̊§фptæÎӋŉ@ɴγ҈ªӋ

{d	



42 ˟ϼĐ 

 

	

ŦBҝɋªɅЉټϷ̪ӋŽ	

� � γ٦ΘˍĐŻ@وϷ̪Љц»Ȅ�˿؏Ǳ˟kټ@Îpđҋtҋ׏

ӖmTǦӋĮЉ̙ǘd1917Ș@̓ͫ؈˷?1975-1890<̀^؞ɴγп

ω@bɅêɡȃģͱǬ»ˍdī̇rĸĞҁټϷ̪Љªƪ@ãèǴˢ͸

ϊɎӋ§фƪª̅ģǝԫƪª̅d1979 Ș@؞ɒˮпω˷؈@�ũ

1992ȘԹƲ�γ٦ΘˍĐò_ˍd	

� � 1920 Ș@Χ΀ƾ̠؏ֹ@γټϷ̪ģֽؙ̓Ԏ�ӖӼ̒dИӤ

1959 Ș@՟̓̇kЈgđn�¨ɇdب�ԏÔđȘ�@٦ΘҝΪԶ

ׂ@ϴ·şس@̓ͫґґםɁȋĐϳɶêƙ΋ǉǮ@̓Ï{ĩҶΥΕ
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Ǧ@�ͦȘ 5 ̆٥_【@ŜˏЉ̓ͫˍĤŭŝ Ӎ٥kŽ@ɮо_§Т

щd֫γǋǐ{@̓ͫũȻʵ[եɔe；_ҝfЉǋգύ̐@Ӥ}�̇

Ș،ˍĤӚ�ǋǐ՞եɔ@Tٮ�Ϥˍ̅̐ŪĊ@i˵̕ՃԜԋЉġk

Յձd	

� � ӋӺϩǥŽ̂ˢ 1948 ģ 1962 Șɋªd1990 Ș@٦ΘĪϓխ՜Ʋ

Ŋ̅ǟbæγnҐ͙ıȱѹϓd	ֽ̄k͏ɋªˢ 2004 Șǅɴ@vˢ

2006ȘϚӏĵŢˍѐ˗ҘұُІgt＜Đ˗ĊןϵÄӲƩhd	
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B9¬t���Y<é@r��¬<	

� � ：﹝˵；_ˍ̅̄˫Љ»ˍچbkd»ˍƕɊΒή>Ě}【ЉԂ

ή?ˁ֝：ȑǵê：﹝»ˍdŢҁЉ̨Ʒ٧пω>1837-1920?Ӧɤҁ

»ˍƕќпω>Guiseppe	Burghignoli@MEM@1833-1892?ģņпω

>Luigi	Maria	Piazzoli@MEM@1845-1904@ĚɅ Љņ_ˍ?@ũԉ

΄ĵ�bp@˵٥ʄê：﹝Љ»ˍƕd1860 Ș@Ǉȣƙˡ»ˍ̅Љٯ

пω>ĚɅ Љٯ_ˍ?ê：﹝ʧՕЮѧ̓@ʨҎņŻӖk�ĸĭ׸٨

эЉǦȘγ»זŊd1863 Ș@Юѧ̓ӧȱӋ�ƚфǥŽ@ӁȘũͯՌ

̓ӧȱӋǄɎӓǥŽd	

� � pđtҋ@ˍĤ{˕ΥƎd1924׏ע Ș@٦Θ�ϒĐÏҮ{ĩȉ

Ӈ@ӋזÔđrԍ@Ё[pԍÒĒƚ{γ；_ˍɇ@ÔĒrЈ{γɩח

ŽÕ̇Ôđrؑ@ǥŽî̇nЈÔđmؑd1926 Ș@kɻ֯：ӋŽˢ

：﹝؂ǵȱɴm@ĸγӋǄɎӓŽd�：﹝γ»ˍ[ɏЉ˟ϼՃĐ@٥

�ĳ؈˵ӼŢҁћфȎпω>Richard	S.	Brookes,	PIME,	1892-1980?d

˟ϼՃĐخθͧ�ɁЉ˟ϼĐγǥ@ف�ў�θؓנ@Ƀˮٚk�ĳ؈

T֟�ɲ�ɻظ@ɻ�ũ 1931 Ș�ϒĐʹǉγ˟ϼՃĐΈךѱp�ĳ

1900-1989?dЁ˶˟ϼ	PIME,	Valva,	D’ayala	ɧпω>DiegoٹĐ──؈

ՃĐĉʖ：﹝c͸ϷcÇ̉cԂήѲŪ@：ƚ̎ϳІǱ@ҷeӋŽ@Ө

ԬȻʵЉŪچwĬӚ®϶ͫǮ@ͦ«»ˍچ：̺k«̆ɾӨԬk͏_【

Ȼʵd1937 Ș؂ǵӋŽ˿ŞħٜٛШƔ@Ĭ̇ё϶：﹝֨>ͩٸǜ?

͂ɺ�Ӣ˶ӋŽ@ИӤɷɅd	
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� � ɷɅ@；_ˍũ：﹝ЉІǱҵʆbïЉżж@ǟ：﹝֨>ͩٸǜ?

ӋŽ˰ĸγӋͥӋɏŽd×Ʌ̑ǉ˭ǐ˧ġ��Àǟ：﹝ٓדԮЉè（

ŎnˍĐ@1961 ȘϤũЉӋͥηϡbɏŽʭȓd͖Žˢ 1979 Șē̢γ

ŽĐ@ŽÏˀˆmn«׻؆@ãè ӣՃքĕǼ：Ί̓ЉӋͥηĞҺǥ

Ž>ϸβȺ͢׋ɴ?cΐ΍Љnϝ ̋ǥŽ@ģ؂ǵЉӋǄɎӓǥŽ@

տɍȮҶ»ˍƕЉ�ń@ķ˶Ǳи；_ˍũ˟ϼЉ»ˍ͙ıd	

	

	

	

	

ŦB؂ǵӋŽ	

	

	

	

	

	

ŦB2011ȘЉӋͥ

ηϡbɏŽ	
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� � ԏ˟ȋ؄ІǱ@{ĩƎ،@：﹝ŽĐãèũب 1990ņ 1992Ș@ũ

ɚ_ˍ̀؜ÏƎՖМцϝtҎȻʵ[ɏ>2000 Ș˰ĸγӋϝtҎȻʵ

[ɏ?@�ģũӋͥӋɏǥƾÏՖМцȷ：ٻǥŽ>2000 Ș˰ĸγӋ

ȷ：ٻǥŽ?@мͰ[ŢӋ{շ�ׇƂkȢՅձ[ƙ；_ˍɇңǕĵ�

ЉŨŪd		

	 	



 
 

˟ϼĐ 47 
 

�g¬�A�¬��<é4i��¬<	

� � ӣ 1840 Șư@٦Θ；_ˍ̅ȉũΘǼ�ƙŪĐ؏Ǳ»ˍȄ�@̄

çũԂήǺפՖѨƾ̠ģ»ˍѩ@×Ʌ�Ȯê：﹝kȏ@Ýͼԏ̘̓ê

	Ç̉ȗĞdח

� � ũÇ̉@ĞǮͫũ͖ԤǉǮȉ˕ЈȘ@�­đã׵ՈнÉǽʕ@Ƥ

к[Ţ»ҜЉпؼ@Ȫǂ٦ίڈЏdɠ»ˍƕ�ũpđtҋçũ͖Đȱ

Ѩƚ«»ˍچdˍ̅ũ͖ĐЉ˫ȘІǱϔӴ@˵ũ̓׬Ֆһ»ҜͫǮȳ

ЉǥŽ@ũ[ȳȱѹÏ׏Ԭ；_ˍщÂ@ʈՃˡ» ЉǇˍ@ԩĵˢ̐

ŨЉϮƊÏdЁˍĤƎúӤkǉՆͅ@ɾӧȱˍŽӍج˿ƚˍПd	

		 	

ŦBћфȎпω	 	 							ŦBĐٹɧпω	

� � Ǉȣƙˡ»ˍ̅ћфȎпω˵Ç̉Đ»ˍÉ׾@�ˢ	1926 Ș�˟

ϼՃĐ_�ĳ؈@ѶϥѸţĉʖ：﹝cÇ̉ģ：ȁǵЉ：ΨģХƒdЁ
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˶̇ԉҁϺƪ»זŊĴk{ģϺƪˍȎÕr{Ėü»ˍdӣ͖»ˍȄ�

wʩǱӤÇ̉，d	

� � Ҷ�Љķ̅̅ƕĐٹɧпωũ�Ïʔ˂m՗ƚƙˍɇdʜ�Љƀ

Ŀ@Ё˶Ç̉Õ̇ˍĤҌkЈrđ{BÇ̉，̇gđg{coֱnđr

{cpֱn{c͊İǵp{cͭΉϷr{ņ،ԆȲr{dĐпωũÇ̉

»ˍЉɦɣ˵żСˍӦ；_ˍЉѭχɃöδdįș@；_ˍƾ̠ɃԹǐ

،Л׵@ɴγ˃ʚ»ˊȄ�Љǘødoǘo@�բγũƾ̠»ˍͧŖـ

	Ŋ»ˍγ�dז«

� � Ç̉ө，ٓ̓̕ũ 1927Ș 6̆ 29【ՖѨm˟ǒӪ@�gӋ�ƚф

ģӋ§фǇɇhγ_§Ӌ{@ȱѨ；_Žv؏ֹǽɎƾ̠dпω­Ŝá

ê×�̓Ԏ֚ג@բղ˟Љ̓ͫģ»ʷцمd˱【ЉˍŽ×ǘ˵»Ҝ׸

Ƹىϰό̓ǰ@͕؍ïƒ϶ҍΣͺođƸ̛@v϶ڄΣǚo٦Θ；_ˊ

рɎƾ̠d	

� � 1952 Ș@Ç̉ɴγϙѨ»ˍچ@͖˶ȉϸƙҁ»ˍƕvϸŢҁп

ωʨ̱d[Ճ»ҜЉ»ˍˡȳwŞ{oЉչĀӈַʬmȼȳd֐˺ڂп

ω>1911-1971?؏ưҀȱ�ˢͭ̓פЉӋ�ƚфӋ§фŽ@Ӥ 1958

ȘŒ϶оӋdי�bпω>1914-1987?γ�ˍĤӍ̅˶֯γΔΎ@×

ɅǟˍŽǰىϸХ̰ϰ˅γϰόdӋŽЉ̍́i˅γ؀́@ÉɅӄ˟ģ

˿ʬ֧à@ȱ׋˟ЉĿՍy@˿ũŽƙĠμ;ŢЉgػɎӋͥhӈȱ׋

mkȣӋͥǵdįՅ；_ˍ̅Ïvؿҏ̼҇̓˗ĊЉЙЀ@iũ¨ϥo

ʨħÕ׈ЉԴחˡȳd	
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Ŧ B ǽ Ɏ ƾ ̠ ן Ŭ	

ǵϋ�Յ϶ڄΣٰɴЉ

g ٦ Θ ； _ ˍ ǽ Ɏ ƾ

̠h@ӈ͕فϋƒ�į

ՅĞ̇ďٕg；_Žh

> ȉ Ů ƃ @ ٢ p g _

ŽhÑƸ?ģgрɎƾ

̠hd	
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Ñ�¬�É<éÍ/6b�¥�¬<	

� � Ò׬ĉʖ؂Ϸ�̕kȏÒ̫֯：Љ̓Ԏ──o̓coֱc͊İǵc

ÇǾcΡǾcԘӷŪc،ԆņͭϐϷ@ŁפԹرÓǵc：âǷcՋمǵ

ņ：ȑǵţҲd	

� � ؂Ϸ˫ˢ 1926 ȘȉũÒ׬oֱ̓ȱѨӋǐÓɻģ؂ϷċţЉӋɏ

ǥŽ@Ё˶Љ̐ŽпωÚ�؂Ϸƾ̠̠Вd1962 Ș؂ϷӛزÇ̉ϙѨ

ɴĐ@ɈɯɬˍĤڂ˗ΓÉϴ֖n؂o֨Ķɮţ¶Ū͟@�ӧȱӋŽb

϶d˟ӋŽȱѹ֋ҌŜđԍÇ@ˍĤХ؆ǵƠƵʞüpđԍÇ@×٢ϸ

_ˍȡʶ͐Լ֟d1966 ȘӋϗחŽȱɴ@ϸ؞Ʒ͠пω�٥�̐Žd

1967Ș 2̆ 15【@ϸʆɎˍĐɎĊآ_ˍ>Joseph	Julian	Oste,	C.I.C.M,	

1893-1971?ӨԬоӋ؏ȓщd	

� � ӋϗחŽ͕؍ɳʥЉđƸ̛ˆũ֯�Љ�һ@vؿkӮЉŽٯ̄ى

Ïbп͂@ĥ˳ԉ΄˗ĊЉ̓וٯTӚىЙ¨Ӧţ̓ӂ¦̇ؕBǰ@چ

ЙЀ@iٚá»ˍƕǡ׵ЁŪ»ҜЉȱѹ

˅Ād	

		

	

	

ŦB؞Ʒ͠пω	
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ŦBÓˍƀƀǤ؂ϷӋϗחŽӨԬоӋ؏ȓщ	

� � ŽˢחθӋϗخ 1979 Șē̢γŽĐ@�˶�_ˍәʝ[Şγͷ̇

��пωįΈɁץĐ@ՄͰɤ：éӋͥηĞҺ»ˍƪ©̅Ėü@ϸ̩̀

Мªƪ>Luigia	Mindassi?ѶϥӋϗחŽ@×�ªƪú�Ėüd̶ҾϠ

ªƪҵҶũÇ̉ӋŽ̈ādˍĐˢ_【ΈпωêӋϗחŽ_ʚȻʵ@v

Ӧªƪ­Ɂ־Ĵ؂<̓׬ϷӋŽc،Ԇ̓ӋŽc؁׸ţӋŽņضÓϷ̓

ǰ?@ͦ̆ӨԬk͏Љ_【Ȼʵdũƾ̠±̌@ϸؽȘĖüpӨֹks

ɹƙ·Āқ̓ÏÍѫdخθŢҁTķ@ׇsɤ：éªƪũ؂ϷkӤā

Ӥ 1988 Ș@Ӧͫ׬ȱѨ֛ΐĝɞթd1988 Ș؂Ðƾ̠´ֹ@ӋϗחŽ

˅�Ȼʵ[ɏdӣ 1994 ȘӤ}ǴÇ̉Ӌ�ƚфӋ§фŽѶϥ@ͦ_【

Έпωï ؏Ȼʵd	
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ŦBӋϗחŽ͕؍	
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Ô²iC�<éÛ�O�_d	

� � ،Ԇ̓ôȱˢΔȥνȘؑ@˵k̫ذƱЉǋǐ̓Ԏ@ĉʖ׭ĉc

ȷģڂŜ«Ʊͪ@̓ͫ�āֺγϴd،Ԇ̓�gԆhγĸƸ@ԆͿʛͭ

ԃ@úoֽׯЉg͹ӗhg：jh̓Ԏ@Й¨˱【˵ͭΜÈ֟ЉӉ�ƭ

Ūˡd	

� � ،Ԇ̓ӋӺ̊ǥŽ@ˢ 1928Ș 6̆ 24【ϸĳɇȯ˴пωоӋd͖

Žįէ˵[ƙĵ�Љ̙ǘ@ЊŞȱŽģɮо֋϶ÕkĒrЈÇ@nãb

kϸ٦ΘҀʪ@×٢Ɋɤ：éĄʞd˱【؝ˊ̅·Āƙ@ИӤ 1951 Ș

ǀwÚֹ̓ԾЉǥƾ@ĽȴmTǦ̓ÏƙЉǥƼǩոd【�>1941-

1945	Ș?ï@؁׸ţ̓ͫ̅׫êǥŽ̊Ȼʵ@Đٹɧпω̂ջ֎،Ԇ

ЉˊĤǐȤξɏ»ˊdÔđȘ�Ʌ@ǥŽЉǇˍՌӴׅΥԹ؁׸ţЉǥ

ˍŽņĶɮţֽؙЉӋϗחȻʵ[ɏĦ�dǥŽӣÒđȘ�؏ưѡһd	

� � ՟ŽƙՋ�Ʈ͒ΆЉ̓׬ǥŽ@�϶m[ȳЉȱѹ̒、ƮؽгЦϋ

г?dׇјؽƆЉΰ΁@θɅһÎѦÏπԿɴžЬЉٳгϋƚʦӣؽ<

гƂ֯Ь@ؤξؘͭ@γЁ˶̄�Љȱѹ̒、@ɟÀ؁֯ֈ@ؿkӮ{

ƕӚ֔϶@įՅЁ˶»ˍƕǣȱˍŽđã׵ՈdˍŽ͕̇فkػİ@ţ

͌oΔ̷̓иg；_Žhn«：Ƹ@ȅĲՖҟӴЉϦϬϰӷѣ@׈ӷԽ

ѣįʦÊÎǰƎúǍÏЉÊҤ@˵[Ţ；̇ىÊ�϶Cֽǰׄٛ׈ٟ̇

ȱѹϔӴbkd	
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� � ˊŽ͕ѨفЉ؆͂oɳʥРđƸ̛@˵；_ˍЉ_Մտɍ̓ա@ҋ

ɔӊѝγʗˌÐ{٘ӈ͛d͕ϋoΔ̷Лêȱɴ【̌ AD1928@�[Ţ

ȱѹ»Ҝ է@ũȱѹϋoՙˮȱɴ【̌@ǲՅTٵ@�϶ˢӋŽȱѹ

î֯ҹՅ@˵[Ճ˗ĊԩĵЉ¡Ʒd	

	

	

	

ŦB،Ԇ̓；_ŽՅձm

；_ˍũ̓׬[ЉІǱ	

	

	

	

	

ŦB̮pïـϋЉХ֒уİ@í̇đƸ

̛ņȌӡ˗ In	Hoc	Salus	ЉҬǚ IHS@ɤ

ɕ˵ԝ͖>đƸ̛?ɈˌdХ֒уİտ

ɍżС˵gՌХhcg·Хh>�ï

2:4?@īƙġį�Դ̩ϩ϶�ʺХáͭ

ЉХٓ@̇١·{ͫЉɤɕd	 	

I I 
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ÎÐ4Ìu«ãe�é��)El��<	

� � 1923 Ӥ 1937Șؑ@Ё˶ΘӼˇȡγӧȱŵͭ؍Ɔ@ٞ�Ǯˢŵ؍

：ţ̓Љͫ׬ʲם@vϸˇȡփֆȱǰǄһd׮˧ѱȲŜtģȲrt»

{ˢ 1929 ȘםÎ˟ϼÒ؁׸׬ţѨ̸@Ð̓̇pđrؑؽгЦɴЉ̓

ǰdӃ׮ٻǐсķ˶ȱɴ@_Մũ׵Մ[Ţѷ【ԾӨԬук@×Ʌ̂˅

�；_ˍˍŽģ؂Ðƾ̠@bɅÝַγρֹțїŤ@Ϥ˶϶�Őն̓

ād	

	

� � 	

	

	

	

	

ŦBсŽÏɳ̇Ğŵ׬؍：ţ̓ˢʲ̓ïЉμό	

� � ٿٽƮ×�ǋǐ{k͆¨ƤͫؑǇˍ@�āֺγϴ@œӬͫ̓ͪ׮

ģӂ͘dʲ̓ç̌@ϸˢֽؙkȏӕ͵ЉŨŪȉԹ˟ϼ：˧ͪ׭ɻ�

̇@̓ͫͷ̇įӉЉֺϷ@س�γϴdǦ˕̓ͫŏ̇ͦ；͗Ԭ˕ǥ˶@

ϸԂ؂ĪזҝȂڋ ŝŵ؍ţөŪӉј@˄ɴɅÝʼɁԂήȂڋԮֽؙ

ˀ֑d：רã̓ͫîʅˏȄȚ·@ɶҝg֑ր�hêė΄Ȅ�dǦ˕Ι

b';--~- -
-~~ ,'-- . .,'子,` ~--! /"11: 

` 
.` 

`, 
佩
'

` 
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ɽƭؐЉ̓ͫ�T͕ЁЉˡȳʮعņϞ̀ו【@T�ӷʡmʲ̓Љ֏͐

ņўԕ@ףʈÓǐЉ؁Ԧѡm@͎pʆȱŐЉȱǰ֋@�сŽņרã̓

ͫЉ̓ǰiԹʁʍ֛ d	

� � Đٹɧпωˢ 1932 Șʨ̃ћпωγ˟ϼՃ_�ĳ؈@؏ưêÒ׬

Ĵ̓Ԏ»ˍ@�Ͽɱǋǐ՞@vӌի̇ƾղЉԉ{»זŊĖüˍ̅Ȅ

�@Şũ»ˍɨȢՉä@ɻ�ĦɈ̓ͫЉ¨�dĐпωʨՎ؁׸ţ̓Љ

ωӅɅ@ѴɲÉϸˍ̅á؁γ̓ͫĺʆȱŐ֘ŝсŽģרãǰƥ@ַ�

ʌʍnˍ̅@Æ՗̓ͫ【Ʌ̇؁˶

֘ŝdϸˢ̓ͫօѥ@ˍ̅iT˶

̇ϓŉʨΪ@�̓ͫЉϴ·֯γƭ

Иê@זã̓ͫ؏ưĠúɩר@ו

1935ȘЉѬĔѷ@ϸĐпωγÐ̓

ْ̓ͫ΅@Ð̓˅Ƥ；_ˍ@vǟ

сŽ�nЈÇʜʭқˍ̅˅ȱγǥ

ˍŽ@ĸγgӋͥmӻǥŽhd	

	

	

ŦBͪ׮Ӄٻǐс˵�đgtн׮Ӄٻγ

ĸЉсŽ@γɅ{ҋɔ×нÉӈȱd	
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� � ǥӋŽǰѽoíog；_Žhn«Ƹ@ǰىսѨkǡХđƸ̛dс

Ï[ɳЉĞ̇̍ďņďӏ؝ğ@͙�нÉЉп_ώwʀê̓ïЉ؂Ϸ͹

Ծ@̓ͫЉǐ[Ӥ}�ͷ̇ˀˆнÉп_ώ@iͷ̇٦̥ņʕ̦dӋŽ

ÏġīȱkـϋХԿЉуİ@�¢Ȼʵb϶dЁ˶Ȼʵҝ˗˵ʏl˗@

у�ʏl˗ǣѴdИӤ̮pɅ@ȻֲـTɱǣѴ@Ĭ̇׫ãЉ̓ͫר：

ʵҝ˗˵ǋǐ՞dخθ̓[Ƶƪ@Ð˵˗ЗЉ@�Ƭ­į�̉̉oĩŪ

ӗեөȳЉe；_ҝfņeӋͥҝfd	

� � ؂ϷЉ»ˍ[ɏ@ӈŽĐwũĐÏ׬؁ţ×Ʌɴγ；_ˍ̅ũÒ׸

˃ʚÑɻƾ̠@É˵ˢ 1948 Șɲ؁׸ţˍĤՄͰ˃ʚg؂Ðƾ̠hҵ

Ҷד�@ϸĐٹɧпω˜֌mЈÇ

ªԓdđȘɅ@ġӦÇǸ̓cļǐ

̓cХΚƆɴѨgŜӏƾ̠hdƾ

̠ʆկ̠ВϸÇ̉；_Ž̐Žпω

ʼ�@vփֆԬˇģҝ֋@ӈĴҐ

ըѕͦ˲̌̇ÑѷˍʠeӋҝfd	

	

	

	

ŦBҋɔĐٹɧпωЉgٹɧŽh	
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� � РХǾ֭ρȱɴņй̅ҝΪƭַ@ǩ̸͉̅Ǝú@̓ͫϴ·іγب

˅œ@ˢ˵Ɋˍ̅֘ŝӣȈЉǰƥ@ġĵ֌֘ŝсŽdĬñpkɹ˫Ș

ȉםɁgڋǮ�Љ̓ͫʹǉT֘ŝнǰ@ϓ̸ʸ͍̇êϤũף˵Ǵˢˍ

Đd1980 Ș�@՟̓ǰǉĸγgٹɧŽh@�ҋɔĐٹɧпωЉ»ˍ

ùүdׇؑ̓ǰ̂�γпωǒӪc؂Ðƾ̠ըǍc̅ӆԼӂǍ@ϤũĜ

չɴևϓǍd	

	
ŦBÓˍƀ̇ؕ؁׸ţmӻǥŽӨԬ_§Тщ	

� � ̇׫ͫ̓@ѷ˶ء׵θʈсŽչɴ；_Ž@[Ţ»ҜΔˮcخͪ׮

ȏºٵӷņυσêǵٓʕунÉ@Ş͖ͪ׮�ӚȹĊ̐ƱƷƽԫҥՋ

ɔdӤˢҍЇ：o@î׫ũˍŽԾӨԬ@ǘũ˵̕ՃԜԋЉġkǱϤd

ИӤ 1966 Ș؂ϷĐȱѨgӋϗחȻʵ[ɏhɴγ՟ĐЉ[ɏ@ˍĤׅ

Υַê՟ԤĠӦȻʵ@ӈǐсvŝͪ׮ɻ̇@˅ֹg؁׸ţțїŤh@

ИӤ 1971Șɾ´ֹd	 	

~- •=-tt1111.• 一,._.,....... 一·
天璸暐瑤主祆· 度全．＇ ｀ 若士尋聖訂元心
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±�¶É�¬<éËÊ�_��Æ�	

� � ԂήĪ˶ġљΒή@ˢ 1898 ȘӼŢё®˟ϼ˶@{ĩÕnĒ@ã

èӍǮˢͼ΋cŵ؍͹ռcԒ΍cؽԳģ٨ήkȏdЁŪĞǮͫ�āֺ

ģʟ΢γϴ@¨Ƥͫؑ¨�d˫ũ 1849 Ș@٦Θ；_ˍ̅ȉũԂήǺ

ՖѨƾ̠ģ»ˍѩd×Ʌ@̨Ʒ٧пωcņՃΡпωģќпωˢפ

1860 Ș�؏ưɊͭ֨êԂήɅ@Ýˁ֝：ȑǵïɁ：﹝»ˍ@Ş͖Ԃ

ήɴγ；_ˍɁ˟ϼՃĐק׬»ˍЉ[ַѩd	

� � 1861 Ș 1 ̆ 21 【@ќпωũԂήǉǮɅ@ȱѨmkؑՆͅҔǥ@

ǑҎŜđĸƾϴЉƾ̠dɷï@ĐٹɧӦћфȎÑ�пωṽϒ١Ԃ

ή@�­պks̐Ū{ْ΅Îˍ@ũׇs˟ˍĤ˃ʚp@1934 ȘˍŽ

ϸũПǄԮЉkؑѼؚ̍ǰםɁn̳ǰЉkȔžŠɺӪ@ĦĸgӊѝӋ

ɏŽh@ķ˶ũˍŽȅĲÑ¶؏ֹmϺ̠ņƪ̠@ĸgɎӐƾ̠h@γ

ԂήĐѱkɻ；_ˍǥƾdɠΏ؟˶̌@»ˍȄ�´ِ@ӊѝӋɏŽģ

ʾmp @Ӥ׫ƾ̠ׯͨ 1947ȘɾɈ�əɋdɷɅ@ˍĐˢ 1952Șǟ

ԂήõγϙѨĐ@ķ˶փֆϒؽ١ԳǼٛסƆЉ΢ͫˍĤd	

� � rcÔđȘ�@：ʄŢÏķӘєǮ٦Θ@�wķ˶ȴÎ：׷֌׸c

ʇԭģȧÀ—ȄdԂήũׇ«˶̌ЉȄ̸ІǱԗÿBɎƕĪזc̶ǰ

mĐÏЉȄ̸ІǱdˇȡwũ͖˶ũԂ׊c̟ήՌƚؑȄȫÞ֛@úז

ήɍ˄ֺŪ@װ�ĵІǱȄ̸ģӧȱɺǰ@ɴγ԰˲˟ȋ؄d1961 Ӥ

1976 Șؑ@Ԃήǩ̸{ĩ̇Ôɴħ¿ˢԿ̸׋d；_ˍ̅ĉʖŽĐc
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ˮɥcª̅Ѳwˢ͖וѕ[ў̹؏ʒй̅̈ādĐÏ{ĩTˠƎú@ˍ

ĤiT´¬Ǝ@˱【ȣԎˢn̳ǰ》>Ϥ˶ҟ̶˟צ?ЉӋɏŽT˔

϶@úoŪ؇֬ȫģҟ̶˟צĀȄ@ӋɏŽӦɎӐƾٌ̠nΔʎḋՅ

ģ͖@٦ΘˍĐũԂήɎԉԮӧȱkɻ˟ӋŽd	˟ŽϚɎŢŴ̴ˍĐ

_ˍģˍĤʞü@ˢ 1969 Șȱɴ@ǉĸγgӋԐ˞څģӋחȻЎ

Žh@ѼљγgԐחpӋŽh@γԂήcԒؽģؽԳĐЉˍĤʫ¢щÂ

ϴ·ģ¨ɇŧٮЉ·ĀƁɻdԐחpӋŽͨ̇ׯԂή；_ˍǥƾņԂή

ӋͥțїŤ@γйĐ̈āb٢@ӥøІǱŁפЉц»Ȅ�dũmđȘ

�@ԐחpӋŽŢҁЉ÷ϜyпωģɤҁЉԍ҂Ǔпω>Mario	

Marazzi?ũԂԒؽĴ；_ˍ[cǥƾģԒӸё϶�ǁ�Ȼʵ[ɏdׇ

sȻʵ[ɏÉɅɴѨŽ

Đ@ĉʖХ҃ӋӺ̊Ǉɇ

ŽcؽԳӋƚڅǇɇŽ@

ԒӸӋ˞Ɏ̊ŽģԂήǄ

	ԮӋْͥƀŽd֐

	

	

	

	

	

ŦBԂήԐחpӋŽ	
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� � ˇȡˢ 1961 ȘʈԂήæγ˟ϼѱk«˟ȋ؄Ʌ@ԂήӍǮmTǦ

Ȅ{Ӧżǳ{ƕ@йĐ̈ā̎ӚׁoǮͫظՄ@；_ˍ̅ũׇוѕ[ʼ

֛mʃօb�ń@Ǩ×ˢˍӖӦײЅȄ�od1962 Ș٦Θˮɥũŵ؍

pӋŽ_�ĳחԂήй̅̈ā[ɏ@Ɋoй̅цéȄ�d˶�Ԑֹ؏ז

]cǇȣƙˡ»ˍ̅ԍ҂ǓпωˢÔđȘ�̏cmđȘ�ç̈ā՟؈

ɏ@�；_ˍũԂήbϒͫȄ�Ӧй̅̈ā˿׏k͗d	

� � [ŢÏŪǭąЉַչ@¥�ɃƚĞÉ̈āÏŪЉª̅ Θ̈ā@�

­iƈԼm٦Θй̅Љ̈āѡؑdӋͥˬ�̅ªƕˢrđȘ� Θ@ª

ƕkȢũӋ٨l̀؜źˍ@՟̅ˢ 1963 ȘũԂήôѨԂήӋӸΪ[

ƾdʗ̊̅ªƪɊÏŪ Θ@ˢÔđȘ�ũ͖Đ؏ֹ；�ǥƾ@՟̠ˢ

1976 Ș˿ƎՖ；�țїŤ@īƙġ؏ֹ՘ɻdԂή|Ϊ؜ײˢ 1973Ș

ôֹï@ҾŢ；_ˍцé̅˫ˢĐÏ؏ֹgŒˮ՘ɻh@kȢvϸʗ̊

̅ѶϥdŒˮ՘ɻӢֽԂήٛסƆģɉһĐ@̈āօӻ：П@×ɅІǱ

γ}；Љˮɥ֕٨̅Ԃή՘ɻdɊ�oɻ׀įՅ@ЈƚȘ @̐Ūˍ̅

ģƙ Љ；_ˍª̅ũԂήĐЉϒؼcˍӖģй̅ˌΪ·Āˡفŭ̇׵

：Љքϛd	
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£S¬°�<é$W��À���a����	

� � ；_ˍũ҆ȀЉ»ˍȄ�˫ˢ 1926Ș؏ưdêɷɅЉ 1949Ș@_

ˍƲΈǇȣƙˡ»ˍ̅֓;ыпω>Ambrose	 Poletti,	 PIME,	 1905-

1973?̈āЁ˶Љ˟ϼՃĐd֓пωբγ҆Ȁ̇ɐՄՖϙѨЉˍֶ̅

Đ@vˢ 1951 ȘϚɈӏņ，ЉˍĤ׬ҕ׭űzɯɬ®á：ǁӨԬȻ

ʵ@ˍĤç˶Ҍ̇pcnđ{@ׇǩ˵҆ȀӋӺϩŽï֫dÑȘɅ@ˍ

̅ϚˍĤ̑|¹ʞáӏņ，》kƂֺŪ>}ņ΃Ԯ?ȱŽ@Ğĸγ҆Ȁ

Ǆ̀̓；_Ž@ؙǴˢ：﹝»ˍѩdӋŽˢ 1953 ȘԎɴ@ƤȄ{ͅѸ

ӋӺϩγ_§@בńĸγӋӺϩŽd҆ȀĐՖѨ@ӛز：﹝@ç˶Љ̈

āѸţĉʖoͭc҆Ȁc͸ٓՌņɿډȀŜŪd	

� � ũƙҁ{ƕО[@֓пωԹՈγ[ΘפƊoЉgЛ؍{h@Şγ�

ͦ；ŭɇ͗ïɁҽΚפƊ@ĖüפƊǈŊаբԹ：٫ׅؠáƊЉ»ˍ

ƕdׇs»ˍƕɃƚũ 1949 ȘÕϵڇʢ͍ɅԹʓϽmk͟˶ؑ@×[

ĉʖӅ͹ĩˍĐ֋̀ϥ_ˍ>Alfonso	Maria	 Corrado	 Ferroni@1892-

1966?@�Ϛ׵ٮ˶׳ʡmkЈƚбC�ģЇӼƣ_ˍו΋ؕ˶@Ş

ԳԵՂՁӈԹդЁ�hrd͖ƙ@֓пωӦ՗ƚ̇ąøЉ׬ҕؕ¤Ӳ

ƭ@iӦפƊЉӼˡ֭մ̇Ǖäؕ¤@vϚßѶ̇̿̚dׇγ�ũ̐Ū

ԉ{[֗Ɉmg˟ϼbϝhЉҢԥd	

� � ũpđȘ�@ӏņ，ֽؙ̇ksϸԉ{ģ΄{ʸ̇Љ͒ȳè（d҆
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Preface	

In	 the	 19th	 century,	 the	 Catholic	 Church	 expanded	 its	missionary	

activities	from	Hong	Kong	 Island	 to	mainland	China,	 including	 the	New	

Territories.	It	had	an	important	impact	on	Catholicism	throughout	Hong	

Kong	and	even	southern	China.	As	population	grew	drastically	 in	Hong	

Kong	 in	 the	early	20th	 century,	 the	Catholic	Mission	here	built	different	

kinds	 of	 church	 buildings	with	 the	 characteristics	 of	 the	 community	 in	

mind,	 such	 as	 the	 social	 background	 of	 the	 church	 members	 and	

interaction	with	the	traditional	Chinese	culture.	After	the	Second	World	

War	(1939-1945),	due	to	the	change	in	political	situation,	the	missionary	

work	of	the	Catholic	Diocese	of	Hong	Kong	was	limited	to	the	area	of	Hong	

Kong.	With	the	influx	of	refugees	in	the	subsequent	decades,	demand	for	

social	 services	 increased	 rapidly,	 and	 the	 Church	missionaries	 tried	 to	

meet	their	needs.	In	the	1980s,	with	the	approaching	of	the	Handover	in	

1997	 and	 the	 speedy	development	 of	 new	 towns,	many	parishes	were	

formally	 established	 to	 facilitate	 missionary	 work	 and	 church	

constructions.	After	the	reforms	initiated	by	the	Second	Vatican	Council	

(Vatican	II,	1963-1965),	there	were	concrete	requirements	on	liturgical	

space.	The	appearance	and	functions	of	church	building	not	only	needed	

to	stress	its	mission	in	order	to	implement	the	Vatican	II	liturgical	reform,	

it	was	also	necessary	to	establish	effectively	a	local	Christian	community	
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so	that	the	believers	could	feel	welcomed	and	at	home	when	entering	the	

church.	 It	 should	 be	 beneficial	 for	 spreading	 the	 Gospel	 to	 the	 wider	

community	as	well.	Therefore,	it	was	essential	for	the	Catholic	Church	to	

strengthen	 their	 interaction	 with	 the	 local	 culture	 and	 to	 take	 urban	

planning	into	consideration.		

This	 booklet	 will	 introduce	 some	 Catholic	 buildings	 by	 three	

geographical	 divisions:	 Hong	 Kong	 Island,	 Kowloon	 and	 the	 New	

Territories.	 At	 the	 same	 time,	 it	will	 introduce	 some	 aspects,	 from	 the	

perspectives	 of	 religion,	 culture	 and	 education,	 of	 the	 century-long	

missionary	activities	of	the	Catholic	Church	in	this	city	that	is	known	to	be	

a	 place	 of	 East	 meets	 West.	 Through	 these	 missionary	 activities	 and	

Catholic	buildings,	it	will	describe	the	relationship	between	Catholicism	

and	 social	 development,	 such	 as	 how	 the	 community	 changes	 or	 the	

planning	of	new	towns	affects	missionary	works.	In	addition,	this	booklet	

also	will	trace	changes	in	local	missionary	activities	through	these	historic	

sites	 to	present	objectively	 the	development	of	 the	Hong	Kong	Catholic	

Church.	
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Hong	Kong	Island	

In	April	1841,	three	months	after	Hong	Kong	was	opened	for	trade,	

the	 Catholic	 Church	 in	 Hong	 Kong	 was	 established	 as	 a	 Prefecture	

Apostolic,	separated	from	the	Diocese	of	Macau.	The	first	Prefect	Apostolic	

was	 Fr.	 Theodore	 Joset	 (1804-1842),	 a	 Swiss	 diocesan	 priest	 and	

representative	of	the	Congregation	for	the	Propaganda	of	the	Faith.	Since	

then,	 the	 fishing	 village	 officially	 established	 a	 relationship	 with	 this	

religion	 introduced	 from	 the	West.	 The	Western	missionaries	 began	 to	

relocate	here	from	Macau,	a	Portugese	colony.	In	1842,	a	church	with	a	

quarters	was	built	on	Wellington	Street	in	Central.	Hong	Kong	Island	was	

taken	 as	 a	 stepping	 stone	 for	missions	 in	mainland	 China,	 as	 the	 land	

across	Victoria	Harbour,	including	Kowloon	Peninsula	and	the	inland	area	

further	beyond	(later	leased	as	the	“New	Territories”),	was	still	ruled	by	

the	Qing	government.	

In	 these	 early	 days,	 the	 Sisters	 of	 St.	 Paul	 de	 Chartres,	 which	 has	

arrived	Hong	Kong	in	1848,	and	the	Daughters	of	Charity of	the	Canossian	

Institute,	which	has	arrived	in	Hong	Kong	in	1860,	were	already	there	to	

serve	 the	 Chinese	 grassroots	 in	Wan	 Chai.	 The	 former	 established	 an	

orphanage	called	Asile	de	la	St.	Enfance	at	the	site	where	it	is	now	Johnston	

Road.	 They	 also	 founded	 a	 school	 (predecessor	 of	 St.	 Paul's	 Convent	

School	 in	 Causeway	 Bay),	 an	 almshouse	 for	 the	 elderly	 women	 and	 a	
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hospital	 for	 Chinese	 women	 and	 babies	 (predecessor	 of	 St.	 Paul's	

Hospital).	The	Canossian	Sisters	founded	various	institutions,	such	as	St.	

Francis’	Canossian	College,	a	hospital	(predecessor	of	Canossa	Hospital	on	

Peak	Road)	and	a	Home	for	the	Blind.	

Apart	from	the	Central	and	Wan	Chai,	Aberdeen	was	another	early	

missionary	site	established	by	the	Catholic	Church.	In	1849,	the	Catholic	

Mission	acquired	a	999-year	lease	on	a	site	in	Tin	Wan,	near	the	coast	of	

Aberdeen.	 A	 church,	 a	 dormitory	 and	 schools	were	 built	 there.	 In	 the	

1860s,	the	ship-building	and	repairing	industry	were	growing	in	this	area.	

The	missionaries	 often	 preached	 to	 the	Chinese	and	 foreign	engineers,	

dock	workers,	sailors	and	fishermen	there	until	the	industry	diminished	

in	Aberdeen.	Since	then	the	priests	started	to	make	irregular	visits.	In	the	

1890s,	 the	 Canossian	 Sisters	 began	 to	 serve	 the	 fishing	 community	 in	

Aberdeen	 and	 established	 the	 Holy	 Family	 Convent	 in	 1897.	 Later,	 it	

founded	a	private	school	(predecesor	of	Pui	Tak	Canossian	Primary	School)	

and	a	charity	clinic	that	provided	free	medical	services.	
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Cathedral	Of	The	Immaculate	Conception:		
A	Base	For	Missions	In	Mainland	China	

To	date,	the	most	important	Catholic	building	on	Hong	Kong	Island	is	

still	the	Cathedral	of	the	Immaculate	Conception	on	Caine	Road.	In	1842,	

the	 first	 Catholic	 Church	 in	 Hong	 Kong—the	 Immaculate	 Conception	

Church—	was	 built	 at	 the	 junction	 of	 Wellington	 Street	 and	 Pottinger	

Street	 in	 the	 then	 Victoria	 Town.	 However,	 it	 was	 destroyed	 by	 a	

devastating	fire	in	1859.	Although	another	one	was	built	on	the	same	site,	

the	Catholic	Mission	decided	to	sell	the	land	in	Wellington	Street	and	build	

a	new	church	at	No.	16	Caine	Road.	The	new	Cathedral	of	the	Immaculate	

Photo:	The	Cathedral	of	the	Immaculate	Conception	
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Conception	held	its	 first	Mass	on	December	7	 in	1888.	Fifty	years	after	

completion,	 a	 solemn	 consecration	was	 held	 on	 December	 8,	 1938.	 In	

1946,	the	Holy	See	elevated	the	Vicariate	Apostolic	of	Hong	Kong	to	the	

status	of	“Diocese”	with	Bishop	Enrico	Valtorta	(1883-1951)	appointed	as	

the	first	bishop.	This	“main	church”	as	it	called	in	Chinese	was	renamed	as	

“cathedral”.	To	comply	with	the	liturgical	reform	of	Vatican	II,	 the	main	

altar	was	moved	forward	to	the	center	of	the	transept	in	1969.	The	seats,	

furnishings	and	decorations	were	also	re-arranged.	In	October	2000,	Pope	

John	Paul	II	canonised	120	Chinese	martyrs.	Before	that,	a	side	chapel—

Chapel	of	Our	Lord’s	Passion—was	converted	into	the	Chapel	of	Chinese	

Martyrs	 and	 Saints.	 A	 box	containing	 relics	 of	 16	Chinese	martyrs	was	

placed	under	the	altar,	and	two	patterned	stained-glass	windows	with	the	

theme	 based	 on	 the	 Chinese	 martyrs	 were	 installed	 to	 represent	 the	

communion	and	prayers	of	all	Chinese	martyrs.	These	arrangements	 in	

the	Gothic-style	 cathedral	manifested	 a	 fusion	 of	 Chinese	 and	Western	

cultures.		
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Hong	Kong	Catholic	Centre	in	the	Central	Business	District	

Founded	 in	 1945,	 the	Hong	Kong	Catholic	Centre	 is	 aimed	 to	 be	a	

central	 location	 for	 religious,	 social	 and	 cultural	 activities	 of	 the	 local	

Church.	It	is	located	in	the	Central	business	district,	and	was	used	as	the	

office	for	the	Catholic	Truth	Society	of	Hong	Kong	and	Kung	Kao	Po	in	the	

early	days.	The	Catholic	Centre	was	also	an	essential	venue	for	the	Church	

to	get	close	to	the	believers.	Besides	having	departments	for	publications	

and	religious	articles,	the	Catholic	Centre	is	also	the	main	distributor	of	

two	Chinese	Catholic	publishers	in	Hong	Kong	and	Taiwan—the	Catholic	

Truth	Society	and	the	Kuangchi	Cultural	Group.	It	was	originally	located	

in	 the	 five-storey	King’s	Building	 on	Connaught	Road,	not	 far	 from	 the	

General	 Post	 Office.	 It	 later	 moved	 into	 the	 neighbouring,	 newly-

renovated	Grand	Building.	On	the	third	floor,	it	has	the	Immaculate	Heart	

of	Mary	Chapel,	which	is	open	daily	except	for	public	holidays.	There	are	

Masses	in	the	morning	and	dawn	to	fit	the	busy	schedules	of	the	working	

class.	The	 long	opening	hours	allow	 them	to	attend	Mass,	 to	pray	or	 to	

have	a	moment	of	contemplation	before	or	after	work	and	during	lunch	

hours.	Many	Chinese	and	foreign	white-collars	who	work	in	the	Central	

have	spent	the	most	sacred	moments	of	their	lives	here.		

Kung	 Kao	 Po	 was	 founded	 in	 1928	 as	 the	 first	 Chinese	 Catholic	

newspaper	of	the	Catholic	Church.	Its	office	was	located	in	this	building	
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before	moving	to	the	Catholic	Diocese	Centre	on	Caine	Road.	Although	it	

is	 a	 Chinese	 weekly,	 the	 first	 editor-in-chief	 was	 an	 Italian	 priest,	 Fr.	

Andrea	Granelli	(PIME,	1892-1976).	Thus,	Kung	Kao	Po	can	be	described	

as	 a	medium	 for	 communication	 between	Western	 vision	 and	 Chinese	

culture.	 	
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Our	Lady	of	Mount	Carmel	Church	in	a	Catholic	Settlement		

“Ha	Wan”	 (now	 known	 as	 “Wan	 Chai,”	 referring	 to	 the	 area	 from	

Arsenal	Street	to	Happy	Valley)	was	originally	a	remote	area	in	Victoria	

Town	 with	 only	 Chinese	 residents.	 Over	 time,	 European	 merchants,	

Portuguese,	Indians	and	Africans	came	to	reside	here,	turning	it	into	an	

unusual	multicultural	neighborhood.		

In	the	early	days	of	port-opening,	the	Hong	Kong	colonial	government	

allotted	 the	 land	 on	 a	 hillside	 in	 Ha	 Wan	 as	 Protestant	 and	 Catholic	

cemeteries.	After	the	cemetery	was	moved	out	of	Victoria	Town	to	Happy	

Velley,	the	Catholic	Church	built	some	housing	estates	on	the	site,	renting	

to	the	Chinese	faithful	and	Portuguese	migrants	coming	from	Macau	for	

work.	It	became	a	Catholic	settlement	known	as	St.	Francis	Yard.	In	1860,	

St.	Francis	Xavier	Chapel	was	built	nearby,	which	was	the	second	church	

built	in	Hong	Kong.	The	Chinese	word	“wai”	(�)	for	St.	Francis	Yard	(


��)	might	be	inspired	by	the	traditional	walled	villages	commonly	found	

in	Hong	Kong	and	Guangdong	province.	There	is	also	a	sloped	road	named	

St.	Francis	Street	on	the	way	to	St.	Francis	Yard.		

By	the	1930s,	Bishop	Valtorta	began	the	preparation	of	constructing	

a	new	church	in	response	to	the	growing	number	of	believers.	He	received	

a	 generous	 donation	 from	a	 benefactor	 surnamed	Wong	 to	 purchase	a	

piece	of	land.	However,	the	preparatory	work	was	suspended	due	to	the	

outbreak	of	the	Second	World	War.	The	bishop	resumed	the	preparation	
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after	 the	war	 and	 sought	 donations	 from	 various	 sectors	 to	 cover	 the	

construction	 cost.	 Father	 Giacomo	 Zilioli	 (PIME,	 1898-1960),	 the	 first	

pastor	 of	 the	 chapel,	 and	 the	 laypeople	 actively	 contributed	 Requiem	

Masses	to	raise	funds.	The	Holy	Souls	Church	was	finally	constructed	in	

1950.	A	primary	school,	Ki	Lap	School,	was	also	attached	to	it.	Apart	from	

evangelising,	the	Holy	Souls	Church	also	helped	many	deprived	families	

by	providing	relief	supplies.	In	1957,	the	Holy	Souls	Church	was	renamed	

as	Our	Lady	of	Mount	Carmel	Church.		

	

Photo:	The	old	Our	Lady	of	Mount	Carmel	Church	before	demolition	(1990)	

Ki	 Lap	 School	 was	 suspended	 in	 1994	 due	 to	 a	 sharp	 decline	 of	

schooling	population	in	the	area	while	the	prestigious	Canossian	schools	

remained	there	to	provide	education	to	young	girls.	Three	years	later,	the	

diocese	demolished	the	church	in	cooperation	with	a	property	developer.	

The	 new	 Our	 Lady	 of	 Mount	 Carmel	 Church	was	 rebuilt	 inside	 a	 new	

building	at	the	original	site	at	No.	1	Star	Street,	Wan	Chai.	Today,	in	this	
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multicultural	 area,	 the	 Catholic	 Church	 continues	 to	 focus	 on	 both	

evangelisation	 and	 education,	 nurturing	 the	 spiritual	 and	 intellectual	

growth	of	the	people	in	the	vicinity.		 	
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St.	Paul’s	Institution	in	Causeway	Bay:		
A	Rare	Religious	Complex	in	Downtown		

The	St.	Paul's	Institution	at	Causeway	Bay	Road	belongs	to	the	Sisters	

of	 St.	 Paul	 de	 Chartres.	 As	mentioned	 above,	 the	 history	 of	 the	 French	

congregation	 in	Hong	Kong	can	be	dated	back	 to	1848.	 It	was	 the	 first	

foreign	female	Religious	congregation	to	come	to	Hong	Kong.		

Soon	 after	 their	arrival,	 the	Paulinian	 Sisters	 immediately	 realised	

that	many	infants	were	abandoned,	with	most	of	them	being	female	and	

on	 the	 verge	 of	 dying.	 Taking	 care	 of	 these	 infants	 became	 their	 top	

priority.	In	1851,	the	Sisters	received	funding	from	the	Society	of	the	Holy	

Childhood	in	France	and	moved	the	orphanage,	Asile	de	la	Sainte	Enfance,	

to	a	large	coastal	property.	To	meet	the	needs	of	the	orphans	and	of	the	

society,	the	sisters	began	establishing	schools,	hospital	and	an	almshouse	

for	the	elderly	and	the	sick.		

Space	 became	 inadequate	 as	 the	work	 of	 the	 Sisters	 continued	 to	

grow.	 In	1916,	 the	Sisters	decided	 to	 relocate	 to	Causeway	Bay,	where	

they	built	a	convent	along	with	a	novitiate,	an	orphanage,	an	Anglo-French	

school	 and	 a	 private	 hospital,	 St.	 Paul’s	 Hospital.	 In	 the	 centre	 of	 the	

complex,	there	is	a	magnificent	and	solemn	private	church	called	Christ	

the	 King	 Chapel.	 Consecrated	 in	 1930,	 this	 chapel	 reaffirms	 that	 Jesus	

Christ	is	the	pillar	of	life	for	the	Paulinian	Sisters.	
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Photo:	Christ	the	King	Chapel	

The	chapel	was	built	in	Neo-classical	style,	with	gigantic	Corinthian	

columns	at	the	main	entrance.	There	is	a	sizeable	dome	at	a	cross-shaped	

intersection	 on	 top	 of	 the	 chapel.	 The	main	entrance	 and	 the	 two	 side	

entrances	are	built	with	porticos.	A	bell	tower	is	attached	to	one	end	of	the	

chapel,	and	the	sloping	roof	was	constructed	with	double-layer	Chinese-

style	tiles.	The	huge	columns	form	an	open	colonnade	around	the	building	

and	support	the	balcony	in	the	attic.	In	the	interior,	one	can	see	the	arched	

ceiling	and	a	 spiral	 staircase	 to	 reach	 the	attic.	The	classic	decorations,	

colourful	mosaic	tiles	and	sculptures	of	angels	add	a	lot	of	flavour	to	the	

chapel.	This	elegant	church	carries	a	unique	and	distinctive	architectural	

feature	that	is	rarely	seen	in	the	city.	Without	much	change	for	decades,	it	

stands	as	if	it	was	frozen	in	time.	More	importantly,	stepping	inside	the	
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chapel	from	the	busy	streets	of	Causeway	Bay	surrounded	by	skyscrapers	

is	like	engaging	a	retreat,	allowing	people	to	escape	temporarily	from	the	

madding	crowd.		

Next	to	the	chapel,	St.	Paul's	Convent	was	called	the	“French	Convent”	

in	the	early	years,	and	St.	Paul's	Hospital	is	more	commonly	known	as	the	

“French	 hospital,”	 both	 of	 which	 indicates	 the	 French	 root	 of	 the	

congregation.	Even	though	there	are	not	many	foreign	sisters	stationing	

in	Hong	Kong	nowadays,	the	service	target	of	the	congregation	remains	to	

be	 the	 local	Chinese,	giving	a	 real	example	of	 communion	between	 the	

Westerners	and	the	Chinese.	
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Aberdeen	Technical	School:	A	Model	of	Arts	and	Crafts	

As	 early	 as	 1849,	 Catholic	missionaries	 had	 come	 to	 Aberdeen	 to	

carry	 out	 missionary	 work.	 At	 the	 beginning	 of	 the	 20th	 century,	 the	

number	of	Catholic	believers	grew	along	with	the	increase	of	population	

in	Aberdeen.	Converted	from	a	cowshed,	the	St.	Peter's	Church	was	built	

on	the	hillside	not	far	from	Aberdeen	town	centre	in	1929.	Fr.	Giuseppe	

Carabelli	 (PIME,	 1874-1936)	 from	 Italy	 was	 appointed	 to	 be	 the	 first	

rector	there.	In	1949,	the	church	was	elevated	to	the	status	of	a	parish.	

Owing	to	expansion	of	Aberdeen	after	the	Second	World	War,	the	diocese	

renovated	 the	 church	 in	 1961	 as	 the	 number	 of	 parishioners	 reached	

2,000.	Most	believers	were	from	Aberdeen	town	centre,	but	some	were	

from	Ap	Lei	Chau,	a	fishing	hamlet	then	across	the	harbour.	Most	of	the	

believers	were	 fishermen.	 Since	 they	 often	went	 fishing	 or	 worked	 at	

other	 ports,	 they	 were	 not	 able	 to	 attend	 every	 Sunday	 Mass	 and	 the	

diocese	was	lenient	on	this.	St.	Peter	is	both	the	patron	saint	of	this	church	

and	of	the	fishermen.	In	the	past	decades,	on	every	June	29,	the	parish’s	

feast	day,	the	bishop	would	go	to	the	port	near	the	Holy	Spirit	Seminary	to	

hold	a	blessing	ceremony	for	the	boats,	using	a	rite	from	the	West	to	fulfill	

the	spiritual	needs	of	the	local	fishermen.	
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Photo:	Aberdeen	Technical	School	in	its	early	days	

Located	in	this	area,	the	Aberdeen	Technical	School	was	constructed	

in	1935.	It	was	originally	named	the	Aberdeen	Industrial	Institute	before	

1952.	 Social	 leaders,	 such	 as	 Fung	 Ping	 Shan	 and	 Sir	 Robert	 Hotung,	

donated	 to	 fund	 the	 construction	 cost.	 The	 school	 was	 established	 to	

provide	 vocational	 training	 for	 boys	 from	 deprived	 families	 and	 was	

managed	by	the	Society	of	St.	Francis	of	Sales	(Salesians	of	Don	Bosco).	

The	Religious	congregation	was	founded	in	Italy	in	1859	with	educating	

young	people	as	its	main	goal.		

On	 the	 eve	 of	 the	 Second	 World	 War,	 the	 technical	 school	 was	

requisitioned	by	the	British	government	as	a	naval	base,	and	later	as	an	

auxiliary	hospital	for	the	wounded	soldiers.	When	Hong	Kong	fell	into	the	
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hands	of	the	Japanese	at	the	end	of	1941,	the	Japanese	used	it	as	a	military	

base	for	seaplanes	to	guard	the	south.	However,	in	the	following	year,	the	

Japanese	 government	 declared	 it	 as	 a	 “free	 school”	 and	 allowed	 it	 to	

continue	providing	tailoring	and	shoe-making	classes.		

At	that	time,	the	boarding	school	was	regarded	as	remote.	It	provided	

a	regular	and	balanced	community	life	for	the	boarding	students	in	line	

with	the	Catholic	tradition	of	the	Salesians.	Boarding	became	optional	in	

the	early	1980s.	It	was	completely	suspended	in	the	1990s	but	was	re-

introduced	since	2012.	The	students	were	commonly	known	as	“Heung	

Kung	Tsai”	 (Boys	 of	 the	Aberdeen	Technical	 School)	 or	 “Tsz	 Yau	Tsai”	

(Salesians	Boys)	since	the	school	is	run	by	the	Salesians.		

The	school	was	 listed	as	a	Grade	 III	historic	building	 in	2010.	The	

main	building	is	an	early	example	of	modern	architecture	in	Hong	Kong,	

being	built	in	the	International	Modern	style.	It	consists	of	several	linear	

three-storey	blocks	of	different	design	crossing	each	other	and	arranged	

in	an	L-shaped	plan	onto	an	elongated	site.	In	terms	of	the	design,	it	has	

certain	Art	Deco	influence,	such	as	the	long	straight	balconies,	portholes,	

distinctive	columns	and	the	square-shaped	tower	embedded	to	the	main	

entrance.	The	Art	Deco	influence	can	also	be	seen	internally	in	the	design	

of	the	main	hall	and	the	main	staircase.	The	Shanghai	plaster	and	polished	

terrazzo	finishes	are	typical	of	the	period.	
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The	Annex	Block	at	the	back	of	the	school	is	the	priests’	quarters.	This	

three-storey	building	has	detailed	drawings	on	the	walls,	a	flat	roof	and	

windows	in	metallic	grilles.	Although	it	was	built	at	the	same	time	as	the	

school,	 the	 architectural	 style	 is	 more	 Neo-Classical	 or	 Neo-Georgian.	

Besides	 its	 rarity	and	 architectural	 value,	 the	 school	 is	also	 a	model	 of	

Hong	 Kong's	 early	 industrial	 education	 history	 since	 the	 Industrial	

Revolution	and	a	symbol	of	industrial	development	in	Wong	Chuk	Hang.	
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The	Béthanie	and	Our	Lady	of	Lourdes	Church		
in	Centuries-Old	Pok	Fu	Lam	Village	

While	 several	 important	missionary	 stations	 on	Hong	 Kong	 Island	

continued	 to	 develop	 in	 conjunction	with	 the	growth	 of	 the	city,	 a	 few	

other	major	church	institutions	and	historic	buildings	receded	from	their	

functions,	reflecting	city	transformation	over	the	century.		

Pok	Fu	Lam	bears	witness	to	the	history	of	mainland	Chinese	moving	

to	Hong	Kong	 in	different	eras.	As	early	as	 in	 the	Qing	Dynasty	 (1644-

1912),	Pok	Fu	Lam	Village	was	already	recorded	in	Xin'an	Xianzhi	(Xin’an	

County	chronicle),	indicating	that	the	village	was	inhabited	at	least	from	

beginning	 of	 the	 Qing	 Dynasty.	 It	 is	 among	 the	 oldest	 indigenous	

settlements	 on	 the	 Island.	 The	majority	 of	 the	 villagers	were	Teochew	

people,	who	mostly	believed	in	folk	religions.	Having	a	Catholic	village	in	

the	 neighbourhood	 was	 thus	 an	 unusual	 scene.	 This	 Catholic	 village,	

Taikoolau,	was	the	living	quarters	of	the	workers	at	Nazareth	Press.		

In	 1875,	 the	 Paris	 Foreign	 Missions	 (MEP)	 built	 the	 Béthanie	

Sanatorium	for	the	care	of	elder	confreres	in	Pok	Fu	Lam,	with	around	40	

to	 80	 missionaries	 residing	 there	 each	 year.	 The	 small	 chapel	 in	 the	

sanatorium	was	built	according	to	the	style	of	the	Tokyo	cathedral.	It	is	an	

extraordinary	Neo-Gothic-styled	church	in	Hong	Kong.	After	the	founding	

of	the	People's	Republic	of	China	in	1949,	many	missionaries	left	mainland	

China.	Advancement	in	modern	medicine	also	reduced	the	need	for	the	
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Béthanie	Sanatorium.	In	its	centenary	year	in	1975,	the	building	was	sold	

to	land	developer	Hongkong	Land,	which	planned	to	demolish	the	building	

for	a	housing	estate.	However,	the	Hong	Kong	government	proposed	to	

exchange	another	piece	of	 land	(now	known	as	Chi	Fu	Fa	Yuen)	for	the	

Sanatorium	and	the	Dairy	Farm’s	cowshed.	It	then	became	government	

property	and	was	handed	over	to	the	Hong	Kong	University	Press	in	1978.	

Printing	machines	were	 then	 installed	 in	 the	building	while	 it	was	also	

used	to	store	books	and	archives	until	1997,	when	it	was	returned	to	the	

Government	Property	Agency.	In	2003,	the	building	was	taken	over	by	the	

Hong	Kong	Academy	for	Performing	Arts	and	renovated	for	the	School	of	

Film	and	Television.		

MEP	 founded	 the	Nazareth	Press	 in	1885.	The	Press	developed	so	

rapidly	 that	 the	MEP	purchased	Douglas	Castle	at	No.	144	Pok	Fu	Lam	

Road	in	1895	for	expansion.	During	the	peak	time	of	the	Sanatorium	and	

the	 Nazareth	 Press,	 there	were	 50	 employees	working	 on	 typesetting,	

processing	 fonts	 and	 operating	 printing	 machines.	 From	 the	

establishment	of	the	Nazareth	Press	to	1934,	on	average	there	were	more	

than	62,000	 copies	 in	 29	 titles	 published	 each	 year.	 Publications	were	

printed	 in	 various	 languages:	 18%	 were	 Chinese,	 nearly	 22%	 were	

Vietnamese	and	almost	12%	were	in	French,	and	there	were	even	Tibetan	

publications.	This	further	proves	the	unique	role	of	Hong	Kong	as	a	centre	

for	East	meeting	West.	
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Photo:	University	Hall	of	the	University	of	Hong	Kong	(former	Nazareth	Press)	

Owing	to	the	long	distance	from	the	city	centre,	the	Nazareth	Press	

needed	a	staff	quarters	nearby.	The	MEP	purchased	a	land	plot	from	the	

Swire	Group,	known	as	Taikoo	yeunghong	(foreign	company)	in	Chinese,	

and	built	the	quarters,	naming	it	“Taikoolau”	(Taikoo	building).	In	1935,	

MEP	began	planning	for	a	new	church	and	a	school.	At	 that	time,	there	

were	already	48	families	in	Taikoolau,	with	more	than	300	residents.	Most	

of	 the	 early	 residents	 came	 from	Shunde	 and	Dongguan	 in	Guangdong	

province,	and	were	recruited	by	missionaries	to	work	in	Hong	Kong.	Later,	

villagers	 from	 Yim	 Tin	 Tsai,	 another	 Catholic	 village	 in	 the	 New	

Territories,	also	came	here	to	live	and	work.	Our	Lady	of	Lourdes	Church	

was	 consecrated	 three	 years	 later	 in	 1938.	 The	 open	 area	 outside	 the	



92 Hong Kong Island 

 

church	 served	 as	 a	 playground	 for	 the	 children.	 Before	 fireworks	 and	

firecrackers	were	prohibited	in	1967,	residents	would	set	off	firecrackers	

outside	Taikoolau	during	the	Chinese	New	Year.	Sometimes	they	would	

even	hang	a	big	 chain	 of	 firecrackers	 on	 the	 church	 top	 and	 then	 start	

setting	 off	 from	 the	bottom,	 producing	 a	 spectacular	 sight.	 The	 faithful	

deeply	respected	Fr.	Rene	Chevalier	(MEP,	1909-1981)	who	had	served	

the	parish	for	19	years.	Fr.	Chevalier	regarded	Pok	Fu	Lam	Village	as	the	

evangelisation	 centre	 of	 the	 Southern	 District.	 During	 his	 time,	 the	

number	of	believers	increased	to	2,000.	The	jurisdiction	of	Our	Lady	of	

Lourdes	 Church	 was	 once	 extended	 to	 Lamma	 Island,	 where	 a	 small	

church	and	a	school	were	established	in	Yung	Shue	Wan	in	1957.		

After	 the	 Nazareth	 Press	 closed	 down,	 MEP	 transferred	 the	

ownership	of	Taikoolau	to	the	Hong	Kong	Diocese.	The	workers	also	left	

for	 other	 jobs.	 In	 1976,	 the	 land	 was	 redeveloped	 into	 now	 private	

residential	estate	Pokfulam	Gardens	after	the	diocese	sold	the	building.	

Our	 Lady	 of	 Lourdes	 Church	 was	 also	 rebuilt	 in	 1982	 in	 a	 new	 site,	

attached	to	Yu	Chun	Keung	Memorial	College	No.	2	at	No.	1	Chi	Fu	Close.	

After	more	 than	30	years,	 former	residents	of	Taikoolau	who	scattered	

across	Hong	Kong,	and	even	overseas,	have	remained	in	contact	and	have	

set	up	a	“Friends	of	Taikoolau”	group	to	maintain	their	friendship.	
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Holy	Spirit	Seminary:		
Fusion	of	Chinese	and	Western	Architecture	Style	

The	Holy	Spirit	Seminary,	located	at	No.	6	Welfare	Road,	Wong	Chuk	

Hang,	is	the	seminary	of	the	Hong	Kong	Diocese.	Its	predecessor	was	the	

South	China	Regional	Seminary.	Founded	in	1931,	the	regional	seminary	

formed	seminarians	from	Beihai,	Funing,	Fuzhou,	Dingzhou,	Guangzhou,	

Hong	 Kong,	 Jiangmen,	 Jianning,	 Jiaying,	 Qiongxian,	 Shantou,	 Shaoguan,	

Wuzhou	 and	 Xiamen	 to	 become	 priests.	 Fr.	 Thomas	Conney	 (SJ,	 1896-

1985)	 was	 the	 first	 superior	 of	 the	 Regional	 Seminary.	 Other	 priest-

teachers	included	Fr.	Daniel	Finn	(SJ,	1886-1936),	Fr.	Richard	Gallagher	

(SJ,	1887-1960)	and	others.	Besides	teaching,	Fr.	Conney	was	also	keen	on	

collecting	Chinese	relics	and	contributed	much	to	the	early	development	

of	 archaeology	 in	 Hong	 Kong.	 He	 conducted	 in-depth	 archaeological	

excavations	on	outlying	islands	of	Hong	Kong,	such	as	Lantau	Island.	He	

unearthed	many	 ancient	 relics	 and	 he	 also	 encouraged	 seminarians	 to	

search	for	them	and	purchase	relics	they	found	for	preservation.	He	also	

did	research	on	the	customary	practices	of	fishermen	in	Aberdeen.	

On	 the	 eve	 of	 Second	World	War,	 both	 the	 South	 China	 Regional	

Seminary	and	the	Aberdeen	Technical	School	were	requisitioned	by	the	

British	 as	 naval	 bases	 and	 staff	 quarters	 due	 to	 their	 proximity	 to	 the	

coast.	 The	 Chinese	 Catholic	 War	 Relief	 Organisation	 was	 established	

during	this	period	to	provide	humanitarian	services.	After	the	fall	of	Hong	
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Kong,	there	was	a	lack	of	funding	from	Europe,	all	the	seminarians	were	

transferred	to	St.	Joseph's	Seminary	in	Macau,	which	had	a	Third	Country	

status	as	it	was	a	colony	of	Portugal.	The	Regional	Seminary	was	reopened	

in	August	1945.		

Since	the	establishment	of	the	seminary,	more	than	250	seminarians	

had	been	ordained	as	priests.	Except	for	those	who	belong	to	the	Hong	

Kong	Church,	 they	serve	in	different	countries	and	regions.	While	 their	

main	duty	is	to	evangelise,	they	also	bear	the	role	of	facilitating	cultural	

exchanges	 between	 the	 East	 and	 the	 West.	 In	 addition	 to	 providing	

priestly	 formation,	 the	 seminary	 also	 offered	 free	 education	 to	 poor	

children	and	participated	 in	social	 relief,	 such	as	 the	publication	of	Vox	

Almae	Matris	 to	broaden	 the	priests’	public	 service	and	contribution	 to	

society.	 The	 seminary	 has	 trained	 many	 famous	 religious	 figures,	

including	the	late	Cardinal	John	Wu	Cheng-chung	of	Hong	Kong.	

The	Congregation	for	the	Propagation	of	the	Faith	in	Rome	disbanded	

the	seminary	in	1964	due	to	political	turmoil	and	handed	over	the	site	to	

the	 Hong	 Kong	 Diocese.	 It	 was	 officially	 renamed	 as	 the	 Holy	 Spirit	

Seminary	and	served	as	both	a	minor	and	major	seminary.	In	the	1970s,	

with	the	changes	in	social	environment	and	education	policies,	the	diocese	

gradually	 stopped	 accepting	minor	 seminarians.	 At	 the	 same	 time,	 the	

Holy	Spirit	Seminary	College	of	Theology	and	Philosophy	was	founded	as	
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an	 academic	 institution	 in	 1970	 through	 the	 collaboration	 of	 the	Hong	

Kong	 and	 Macau	 Dioceses,	 the	 Jesuits,	 the	 Salesians	 and	 later,	 the	

Franciscans.	

The	seminary	building	combined	characteristics	of	both	Chinese	and	

Western	 architectures.	 It	 belongs	 to	 the	 Chinese	 Renaissance	 style,	

representing	 the	 church’s	 vision	 of	 inculturation.	 It	 integrates	 features	

from	different	cultures,	 races,	and	religions	 in	an	outstanding	way.	The	

unique	 colour	 choice	 is	 very	 similar	 to	 that	 of	 the	 traditional	 Chinese	

residence	 in	 nearby	Wong	Chuk	Hang	 San	Wai.	 The	Our	 Lady	 of	 China	

Chapel	of	the	Holy	Spirit	Seminary	was	completed	in	1956.	It	was	built	in	

modern	Chinese	eclectic	style,	featuring	green	glazed	tiles	on	the	roof,	red	

pillars,	 grey	 walls,	 granite	 bases	 and	 intricate	 decorative	 patterns,	

blended	 together	 in	 a	 modern	 manner.	 The	 interior	 is	 spacious,	 with	

traditional	Chinese	geometric	patterns	on	display	on	the	roof	trusses,	the	

windows,	 and	 a	 Chinese-style	 wooden	 canopy	 over	 the	 altar.	 It	 also	

combined	the	use	of	bricks	and	masonry	in	an	interesting	architectural	

way,	 making	 it	 an	 invaluable	 architectural	 heritage.	 In	 1967,	 a	 new	

building	for	the	Seminary	College	was	erected	adjacent	to	the	seminary.	

However,	 it	 was	 not	 built	 in	 the	 same	 style.	 On	 the	 whole,	 the	 main	

buildings	of	the	Holy	Spirit	Seminary	and	its	chapel	have	maintained	their	

original	appearance	and	style.		
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Kowloon	

Since	the	Catholic	Mission	in	Hong	Kong	expanded	to	Xin’an,	Huiyang,	

Haifeng	and	Shanwei	in	the	1860s,	the	Foreign	Missions	of	Milan	(now	the	

Pontifical	 Institute	 for	 Foreign	Missions)	 used	Hong	Kong	 as	 a	 base	 to	

enter	and	serve	 in	 the	mainland.	In	October	1860,	 the	Qing	and	British	

governments	signed	the	Convention	of	Peking,	in	which	areas	to	the	south	

of	the	Boundary	Street	in	Kowloon	Peninsula	was	ceded	to	Britain.	Two	

months	 later,	a	priest	already	came	 to	 the	southern	 tip	of	 the	Kowloon	

Peninsula	from	Hong	Kong	Island	every	week	to	celebrate	Mass	for	the	

British	 soldiers	 stationed	 in	 Kowloon.	 Many	 reclamation	 works	 were	

carried	 out	 in	 the	 Peninsula	 since	 then,	 but	 most	 of	 them	 were	 done	

privately	before	the	Second	World	War.	Various	factors	had	limited	the	

development	 in	 Kowloon,	 where	 the	 central	 part	 was	 still	 labelled	 as	

“barren	 land.”	 It	was	until	 the	Qing	government	and	Britain	signed	 the	

Convention	 for	 the	Extension	 of	Hong	Kong	Territory	to	 lease	 the	New	

Territories	 to	Britain	 for	 99	 years	 in	 1898	 that	missionary	work	 there	

developed	 rapidly.	 At	 this	 time,	Kowloon	were	 still	mostly	 rural	 areas,	

scattered	 with	 many	 traditional	 villages.	 As	 more	 Portuguese	 faithful	

moved	 to	 this	 area	 and	 the	 Canossian	 Sisters	 began	 their	 missionary	

activities	at	the	southern	tip	of	the	Peninsula,	the	Rosary	Church	was	built	

to	become	an	important	mission	station	in	Kowloon.	The	missionary	work	



98 Kowloon 

 

then	extended	to	the	north	to	Sham	Shui	Po	and	Kowloon	Tong	ever	since	

the	“New	Kowloon”	was	counted	as	an	urban	area.	St.	Teresa’s	Church	and	

St.	Francis	of	Assisi	Church	were	built	successively.		

After	the	Second	World	War,	the	Civil	War	between	the	Kuomintang	

(Nationalist	Party)	and	the	Communist	Party	led	to	the	influx	of	refugees	

into	the	British	colony	in	the	1950s	and	1960s.	Many	squatter	settlements	

appeared	in	eastern	Kowloon,	such	as	Wong	Tai	Sin,	Diamond	Hill	and	Lei	

Yue	Mun.	 The	 poor	 living	 environment	 eventually	 led	 to	 a	 serious	 fire	

accident	affecting	six	villages	 in	Shek	Kip	Mei	 in	1953.	 In	 response,	 the	

government	 built	 some	 two-storey	 temporary	 shelters	 to	 resettle	 the	

victims.	The	Catholic	Church	assisted	these	refugees	and	victims	through	

social	services	and	relief	and	spread	the	Gospel	among	them.		

In	 response	 to	 the	 needs	 of	 the	 residents	 of	 Kowloon	 City,	 the	

Canossian	Sisters	opened	a	small	school	in	1940.	It	was	officially	opened	

as	the	Holy	Family	Canossian	School,	a	primary	girls’	school,	in	Kowloon	

City	in	1954	after	the	World	War.	The	school	was	located	in	a	post-war	

thriving	area	with	more	than	800	students	in	the	1960s.	In	addition,	Po	

Yan	 Primary	 School	 in	 Tung	 Tau	 Estate	 was	 founded	 in	 1965	 by	 the	

Missionary	Sisters	of	the	Immaculate	Heart	of	Mary	(ICM)	from	Belgium.	

It	was	the	first	primary	school	in	the	new	districts	of	Hong	Kong	with	an	

independent	 school	 building	 and	24	 classrooms	 that	were	 in	 line	with	
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government’s	standards.	It	became	a	model	school	for	foreign	guests	to	

visit.	 In	 1969,	 the	 Canossian	 Sisters	 set	 up	 Canossa	 Primary	 School	 in	

Wong	Tai	Sin	for	the	children	of	the	local	police.	Three	years	later,	in	1972,	

the	 nuns	 also	 set	 up	 a	 high	 school:	 Holy	 Family	 Canossian	 College.	

Meanwhile,	Tang	King	Po	School,	located	at	the	junction	of	Farm	Road	and	

Tin	 Kwong	 Road	 in	 Kowloon	 City,	 was	 established	 by	 the	Salesians	in	

1953.	It	was	named	after	philanthropist	and	industrialist	Tang	King	Po.	

The	 school	 was	 a	 technical	 school	 in	 the	 early	 days.	 It	 had	 a	 primary	

section	and	high	school	with	a	vocational	and	industrial	department.	Two	

years	 later,	 it	 also	 ran	 a	 free	 six-year	 primary	 evening	 school.	 The	

vocational	department	offered	courses	in	printing,	font	foundry,	binding,	

tailoring	 and	 shoemaking.	 The	 industry	 department	 was	 designed	 for	

students	 who	 were	 preparing	 for	 the	 engineering	 profession	 after	

graduation.	 In	 the	 1960s,	 it	 had	 enrolled	more	 than	1,500	 students.	 In	

addition,	 the	 Columban	 Sisters	 from	 Ireland	 also	moved	 to	Hong	Kong	

after	the	outbreak	of	the	Civil	War	in	mainland	China.	They	first	served	at	

the	Ruttonjee	Hospital	in	Wanchai	and	later	engaged	in	education.	In	1977,	

they	established	the	Leung	Shek	Chee	College	in	Sau	Mau	Ping.		
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Rosary	Church	in	a	Sino-Portuguese	Community	

Rosary	 Church	 is	 the	 oldest	 church	 in	 Kowloon,	 witnessing	 the	

history	of	co-development	of	Chinese	and	Portuguese	parishioners.	At	the	

beginning	of	the	20th	century,	political	turmoil,	such	as	the	Boxer	Uprising	

and	 the	Eight	 Power	 Expedition,	took	 place	 in	 China.	 In	 order	 to	

strengthen	 defense,	 the	 colonial	 government	 in	 Hong	 Kong	 set	 up	 a	

military	camp	in	Chatham	Road	of	which	many	Irish	and	Indian	soldiers	

were	 Catholics.	Missionaries	 came	 and	 served	 at	 the	 army	 barrack	 on	

weekends.	Owing	to	its	colonial	status,	Hong	Kong	was	not	greatly	affected	

by	China’s	political	 turmoil.	Local	 industry	 thus	gradually	developed	 in	

Hung	Hom	and	Yau	Ma	Tei	in	the	next	few	decades.	The	establishment	of	

dockyard	in	Hung	Hom	and	the	accelerated	development	in	the	Peninsula	

attracted	many	people	to	move	to	Kowloon.	This	was	especially	the	case	

in	 Tsim	 Sha	 Tsui,	 where	many	 of	 those	who	 settled	 in	 Kowloon	were	

Portuguese	Catholics.		

In	 1900,	 Father	 Giovanni	 Spada	 (PIME,	 1867-1950),	 a	 pioneering	

preacher	in	Kowloon,	borrowed	a	large	room	on	the	land	purchased	by	

the	Canossian	Sisters	at	the	junction	of	Austin	Road	and	Chatham	Road	in	

Tsim	Sha	Tsui	for	Sunday	Mass.	Due	to	an	increase	in	the	number	of	newly-

populated	Catholic	families,	the	Vicariate	Apostolic	built	a	chapel	with	a	

capacity	 of	 800	 in	 1901	 but	 soon	 it	 proved	 to	 be	 too	 small.	With	 the	
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donation	from	Dr.	Anthony	Simplicio	Gomes,	a	Portuguese	Catholic,	 the	

Rosary	Church	was	built	and	completed	on	May	8,	1905.	Father	Spada	was	

the	first	priest	to	work	there.	This	typical	Gothic-style	building	became	the	

only	Catholic	Church	in	Kowloon	that	was	open	to	the	public	for	more	than	

a	quarter	of	a	century.	It	was	also	the	origin	of	faithful	associations,	such	

as	the	Society	of	St	Vincent	de	Paul,	the	Catholic	Women’s	League,	and	the	

Youth	Association.	Initially,	the	faithful	were	mainly	the	Irish	and	Indian	

military	 and	 police	 officers,	 foreign	 merchants,	 and	 Portuguese	

immigrants	from	Macau.	The	development	of	the	urban	area	drew	in	many	

Chinese	people	to	settle	in	the	vicinity.	Believers	of	different	nationalities	

thus	 formed	 and	 enhanced	 a	 multi-ethnical	 Christian	 community	 in	

communion.		

	
Photo:	Rosary	Church	after	renovation	in	2003	
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In	the	1920s	and	1930s,	the	clerics	of	the	Rosary	Church	also	needed	

to	take	care	of	all	Catholics	in	the	territory	from	Kowloon	City	to	Yau	Ma	

Tei.	This	situation	lasted	until	the	building	of	St.	Teresa’s	Church	in	Prince	

Edward	Road	in	1932	and	St.	Francis	of	Assisi	Church	in	Sham	Shui	Po	in	

1955.	In	1949,	the	Rosary	Church	was	erected	to	the	status	of	a	parish.	It	

was	rebuilt	in	the	1950s	to	accommodate	the	influx	of	refugees	from	China	

and	 the	 growing	 number	 of	 local	 believers.	 The	 Antiquities	 Advisory	

Board	listed	it	as	a	Grade	II	historic	building	in	1990	and	reclassified	it	a	

Grade	I	historic	building	10	years	later.	

The	Canossian	 Sisters	 began	 its	 service	 in	Kowloon	 in	 1887.	 They	

built	the	St.	Mary's	School	(now	St.	Mary's	Canossian	College)	with	funding	

from	 Dr.	 Gomes	 at	 the	 waterfront	 of	 Tsim	 Sha	 Tsui.	 The	 school	 was	

officially	opened	in	1900	with	only	30	pupils,	mainly	Portuguese	boys	and	

girls.	 It	 continued	 to	expand.	 In	1903,	 two	buildings	were	added	 to	 the	

campus	while	the	St.	Michael's	Building	which	facing	Chatham	Road	was	

built	two	decades	later.	The	school	evolved	into	a	girls'	school	in	the	1930s.	

It	was	suspended	during	the	Japanese	occupation	and	reopened	in	1945.	

By	1953,	it	became	the	largest	girls’	school	in	Kowloon	as	the	number	of	

students	increased	gradually.	It	once	enrolled	more	than	2,700	students.	

This	school,	built	in	Western-style	architecture,	was	founded	by	foreign	

nuns.	As	 they	grew	old	and	deceased,	 the	baton	was	passed	 to	Chinese	

nuns.		 	
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St.	Teresa's	Church:	A	Compromise	of	East-West	Style	 	

Before	the	completion	of	St.	Teresa's	Church,	Catholics	 in	Kowloon	

Tong	needed	to	go	to	the	Rosary	Church	in	Tsim	Sha	Tsui	or	the	chapel	

inside	St.	Joseph's	Home	for	the	Aged	in	Ngau	Chi	Wan.	The	Masses	there	

were	presided	by	the	priests	of	Rosary	Church.		

In	 1923,	 due	 to	 population	 growth	 in	 Kowloon,	 the	 Vicariate	

Apostolic	began	to	look	for	places	to	build	new	churches.	On	February	11,	

1924,	a	group	of	influential	Catholics	wrote	to	Bishop	Dominico	Pozzoni	

(PIME,	1861-1924),	the	then	Vicar	Apostolic,	expressing	their	willingness	

to	 raise	 funds	 for	 a	 new	 church	 and	 urged	 the	 establishment	 of	 a	

preparatory	committee.	At	that	time,	the	Church	authority	has	purchased	

a	piece	of	land	on	Austin	Road,	but	it	was	too	close	to	the	existing	Rosary	

Church.	At	 the	same	 time,	 the	Sisters	of	 the	Precious	Blood	planned	 to	

construct	 their	General	House	 in	Sham	Shui	Po	with	a	chapel	attached.	

Kowloon	Tong	was	thus	chosen	as	the	district,	taking	into	consideration	

that	 a	 huge	 housing	 programme	 was	 developing	 there.	 The	 idea	 was	

supported	by	many	Portuguese	families	living	in	the	area.	On	November	

13,	1928,	the	Catholic	Church	won	the	bid	on	the	land	plot	at	the	junction	

of	Prince	Edward	Road	and	Waterloo	Road.		

Bishop	Valtorta	then	invited	Fr.	Adalbert	Gresnigt	(OSB,	1877-1965)	

to	design	the	church.	The	Dutch	Benedictine	was	the	acclaimed	designer	
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of	 the	 Chinese-style	 buildings	 of	 Fu	 Jen	 University	 in	 Beijing	 and	 the	

Siheyuan-style	 South	 China	 Regional	 Seminary	 at	 Wong	 Chuk	 Hang.	

Bishop	Valtorta	wrote	 to	Father	Gresnigt,	 hoping	 that	he	 could	 build	a	

Chinese-style	architecture	to	commemorate	St.	Theresa	of	Lisieux.	At	the	

same	time,	he	also	said	in	the	letter	that	a	Chinese-style	design	might	not	

be	acceptable	in	Hong	Kong.	Fr.	Gresnigt	sent	back	a	draft	in	January,	1929.	

As	expected,	the	design	was	not	well	received.	Fr.	Gresnigt	thus	combined	

the	ideas	of	two	other	architects,	A.H.	Basto	and	M.	Van	Wylick,	to	turn	St.	

Teresa’s	Church	into	a	Byzantine	church	with	a	domed	roof	and	a	tower.		

	

Photo:	St.	Teresa’s	Church	in	its	early	days	
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Bishop	 Valtorta	 consecrated	 St.	 Teresa’s	 Church	 on	 December	 18,	

1932.	 It	 was	 officially	 raised	 to	 a	 parish	 in	 1949.	 Ever	 since	 it	 was	

established,	 St.	 Teresa’s	 Church	 has	 been	 playing	 a	 significant	 role	 in	

worship,	education,	medical	 care	and	 social	 service	 in	 the	 district.	 The	

nickname	 “Bishop	 of	 Kowloon	 District”	 was	 given	 to	 the	 parish	 priest	

during	 the	 ministries	 of	 Fr.	 Carmelo	 Orlando (PIME,	 1907-1979), an	

Italian	priest,	and	Fr.	Francis	Wong	Tak-Cheung	(1930-1993).		

St.	Teresa’s	Church	is	designed	in	Byzantine-style.	Its	shape	is	like	a	

Latin	cross	and	features	a	balanced	symmetry	in	a	Romanesque	style.	The	

aisles	are	 defined	 by	 circular	arches	supported	 by	Corinthian	 columns.	

Cement	and	steel	were	used	as	the	materials	of	the	top	beam,	but	it	still	

reveals	a	sense	of	the	solemn	atmosphere	of	Chinese	palace	architecture.		

There	is	a	small	room	outside	St.	Teresa's	Church	used	by	the	13th	

Kowloon	 Scout	 Group.	 Next	 to	 the	 church	 were	 the	

primary	and	kindergarten	sections	 of	 St.	 Teresa's	 School	 Kowloon	 in	 a	

three-storey	 building.	 The	 school	 received	 great	 support	 from	 the	

Portuguese	Catholics	when	it	was	built.	Despite	of	its	closure	in	2008,	the	

school	had	witnessed	a	close	interaction	of	Chinese	and	Western	cultures	

in	 its	 57-year	 history.	 In	 addition,	 there	 is	 the	 building	 of	 the	 Caritas	

Community	 Centre—Kowloon	 next	 to	 the	 Church,	 which	 has	 provided	

various	social	services	to	the	district	since	its	completion	in	1967.		 	
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St.	Francis	of	Assisi	Church:		
A	Church	Developed	in	a	Chinese	Settlement	

Before	 Kowloon	was	 developed,	 there	were	 already	 some	 villages	

(tsuen)	in	Sham	Shui	Po	area,	including	Un	Chau	Tsuen	in	the	north,	Tin	

Liu	Tsuen	in	the	southeast,	Om	Yau	Tsuen	in	the	west	and	Ma	Lung	Hang	

Tsuen	 in	 the	northwest.	The	government	was	not	keen	 to	 develop	 this	

region	in	the	early	20th	century.	Tai	Po	Road	built	in	1902	was	the	only	

main	road	there.	It	was	followed	by	the	Castle	Peak	Road.	The	rest	of	the	

development,	 such	 as	 reclamation	 from	Nam	Choeng	 Street	 to	 Kweilin	

Street,	was	carried	out	on	a	small	scale	by	private	developers.			

The	 Precious	 Blood	 Sisters,	 originally	 the	 Third	 Order	 of	 the	

Canossian	Sisters,	established	their	General	House	and	a	clinic	near	Tai	Po	

Road	 in	 Sham	Shui	 Po	 in	 the	 1930s.	 They	 also	 had	a	 small	 chapel	 that	

allowed	local	Catholics	to	come	to	Mass.	In	the	early	1950s,	the	diocese	

intended	to	build	a	new	church	in	this	area.	In	1953,	a	notorious	fire	broke	

out	 in	Shek	Kip	Mei	squatter	area	and	the	government	implemented	an	

emergency	mass	housing	scheme	to	resettle	the	victims.	In	the	following	

year,	a	total	of	250,000	square	feet	of	land	behind	Shek	Kip	Mei	Tung	Lo	

Garden	and	the	nearby	hills	was	allocated	for	the	purpose	of	building	a	

church.	 Bishop	 Lorenzo	 Bianchi	 (PIME,	 1899-1983)	 presided	 over	 a	

foundation	 stone-laying	 ceremony	 for	 St.	 Francis	 of	 Assisi	 Church	 on	

March	25,	1955.	When	it	was	opened	on	Christmas	Eve	in	the	same	year,	

it	was	the	tallest	building	in	the	district.		
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Photo:	St.	Francis	of	Assisi	Church	

The	 church	 has	 Gothic-style	 architecture	 mixed	 with	 Chinese	

elements.	The	top	of	the	Church	is	a	red-tiled	sloping	roof	with	a	Chinese-

style	bell	tower.	The	interior	has	pointed	arches	decorated	with	stained	

glasses	 to	 highlight	 the	 solemn	 sacred	 space.	 The	 church	 has	 three	

archway	entrances	and	 two	spiral	 staircases	on	both	sides	of	 the	 front	

foyer	 that	 lead	 to	 the	upper	floor.	 It	 seems	 like	 the	master	opening	his	

arms	wide	to	welcome	all	people	who	enter	to	his	house.	When	going	up	

the	 stairs,	 one	 can	 see	 the	 “dougong”—a	 Chinese-style	 supporting	

architecture—supporting	 the	 ceiling.	 The	 entrance	 of	 the	 church	 is	

located	on	the	second	floor	with	Chinese–style	roof	beams.	Three	Chinese-

style	doors	echo	with	those	archway	entrances.	The	church	is	supported	
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by	12	arched	pillars,	which	symbolise	the	Catholic	Church	inheriting	the	

teachings	of	 the	12	apostles.	The	marble	altar	and	baptismal	 font	were	

given	 by	 St.	 Teresa’s	 Church	 when	 it	 was	 built.	 This	 shows	 the	 close	

relationship	between	the	two	communities.	In	1994,	the	altar	was	moved	

forward	during	a	major	renovation	in	order	to	conform	to	the	liturgical	

reforms	of	the	Vatican	II.		

In	October	1955,	the	church’s	affiliated	St.	Francis	of	Assisi’s	English	

Primary	School	was	completed.	In	addition	to	pastoral	care	and	education,	

the	parish	also	pioneered	 in	setting	up	 the	 first	government-registered	

credit	union	among	other	church	bodies.	The	St.	Francis	Credit	Union	was	

initiated	by	pioneers	of	credit	union,	Fr.	John	Collins	(SJ,	1912-1997)	and	

Mr.	Andrew	So	Kwok-wing.	It	has	been	running	for	half	a	century	since	it	

was	established	on	September	17,	1964.	The	Credit	Union	Movement	was	

driven	 by	 the	 West	 and	 introduced	 to	 Hong	 Kong	 to	 provide	 mutual	

economic	assistance	to	the	Chinese	people	who	suffered	a	lot	of	poverty	

after	the	Second	World	War.	Its	purpose	is	“not	for	profit,	not	for	relief,	

but	 for	 service”	 with	 the	 parishioners	 and	 their	 immediate	 family	

members	as	its	service	target.	It	encourages	the	members	to	make	good	

use	of	money,	to	develop	thrifty	habit,	and	to	save	money	in	a	planned	way.	

It	also	lends	money	through	secure	process	to	members	who	are	in	urgent	

economic	need.	The	Western	initiative	turned	out	being	a	perfect	match	

with	traditional	Chinese	custom	of	saving	and	the	spirit	of	mutual	help.		 	
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St.	Cecilia’s	Church:		
A	Stone	Church	Standing	on	Diamond	Hill		

There	were	many	ancient	Hakka	villages	in	eastern	Kowloon,	such	as	

Nga	Tsin	Wai	Tsuen,	Chuk	Yuen	Tsuen,	Ngau	Chi	Wan	Tsuen	and	Tai	Hom	

Tsuen.	 Tai	 Hom	 Tsuen,	 located	 at	 the	 foothill	 of	 Kowloon	 Peak,	 was	

originally	a	village	dominated	by	inhabitants	all	surnamed	Chu.	The	Chu	

clan	 originally	 resided	 in	 Changle	 County	 of	 Guangdong	 province	

(renamed	Wuhua	County	after	1911).	Their	ancestor	was	Chu	Kui-yuan,	a	

Hakka	stone	mason	who	 lived	 in	Shek	Tong	Tsui	on	Hong	Kong	 Island.	

During	the	rule	of	Qing	Emperor	Qianlong,	he	brought	his	wife	and	eight	

sons	to	move	to	Sha	Po	Tsai	in	Kowloon	and	made	his	living	by	quarrying.	

After	 the	 Second	 World	 War,	 this	 area	 became	 settlement	 of	 the	

mainlanders	who	escaped	the	subsequent	Civil	War.	The	new	immigrants	

built	 shanty	 town	 near	 the	 Diamond	 Hill.	 Therefore,	 when	 the	

descendants	of	the	Chu	family	returned	to	their	native	place	after	the	war,	

they	found	it	had	turned	into	a	squatter	area.	

Seeing	 the	 needs	 of	 the	 huge	 group	 of	 refugees,	 the	 Hong	 Kong	

Catholic	Diocese	set	up	the	first	permanent	mission	station	in	Diamond	

Hill	in	1952.	The	first	priest	to	work	there	was	Fr.	Luciano	Aletta	(PIME,	

1910-2000).	Diamond	Hill	at	the	time	was	divided	into	Tai	Hom	Tsuen,	

Upper	Yuen	Leng	and	Lower	Yuen	Leng.	There	was	a	quarry	famous	for	

white	granite,	so	the	place	was	named	“diamond.”	Similar	to	many	ancient	

churches,	 be	 them	 in	 China	 or	 abroad,	 built	 by	 stone,	 the	 Holy	 Family	
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Chapel	in	Upper	Yuen	Leng,	near	Hammer	Hill	Road,	was	also	built	with	

this	 local	 material	 commonly	 known	 as	 hemp	 stone.	 The	 church	 was	

completed	in	1953.	The	granite	wall	was	visible	on	the	façade.	Since	the	

houses	in	the	village	were	also	built	with	granite,	the	chapel	 integrated	

perfectly	into	the	local	community.	By	1957,	Holy	Family	Chapel	and	the	

nearby	Ngau	Chi	Wan	Tsuen	were	carved	out	to	become	an	independent	

parish.	Since	it	was	erected	in	the	area	for	many	years,	a	number	of	faithful	

associations	were	formed,	such	as	Chinese	and	English	lector	ministries,	

altar	servers	and	choirs.	There	were	as	many	as	3,000	parishioners	while	

many	 people	 received	 baptism	 every	 year.	 Every	 Sunday,	 the	 homilies	

were	conducted	in	Cantonese,	Putonghua	and	English,	making	it	a	special	

place	in	the	early	days	for	cultural	exchanges	between	East	and	West.	In	

addition,	 a	 Caritas	 Centre	 was	 also	 attached	 to	 the	 parish	 to	 provide	

general	medicines	and	relief	supplies.	Behind	the	chapel,	there	was	also	

the	now-closed	St.	Rose	Kindergarten.		

In	1963,	a	new	low-cost	Choi	Hung	Estate	was	built	on	the	eastern	

side	of	Tai	Hom	Tsuen.	It	was	one	of	the	earliest	public	housing	estates	in	

Kowloon.	In	response	to	the	government's	plan	to	redevelop	the	district,	

Holy	Family	Church	was	moved	to	Choi	Hung	Estate,	which	enjoys	a	more	

central	location	in	the	district,	and	continued	to	serve	residents	there.	The	

chapel	 in	 Diamond	 Hill	 was	 thus	 renamed	 St.	 Cecilia’s	 Church	 and	

affiliated	to	Holy	Family	Parish	in	Choi	Hung.	In	1979,	the	Catholic	Diocese	
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erected	 Diamond	 Hill	 as	 an	 independent	 parish	 again	 until	 it	 was	 re-

affiliated	to	the	Holy	Family	Parish	in	1996.	

Although	 St.	 Cecilia’s	 Church	 had	 been	 demolished	 and	 the	

parishioners	 were	 integrated	 with	 Holy	 Family	 Church,	 they	 still	 had	

deep	affection	 to	 Father	 Aletta,	 their	 longtime	 pastor,	 and	 a	 memorial	

Mass	was	held	on	the	10th	anniversary	of	his	death	in	2010.	What's	more,	

there	is	still	a	Facebook	page	of	the	Diamond	Hill	St.	Cecilia’s	Church	today.	

	
Photo:	St.	Cecilia’s	Church,	built	with	granite,	formerly	named	Holy	Family	Church	

	

	

	

	

Photo:	A	Stamp	Chop	of	St.	Cecilia’s	Church		 	
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St.	James	Church	In	Lei	Yue	Mun	

Besides	 Diamond	 Hill,	 Lei	 Yue	 Mun	 was	 another	 main	 post-war	

squatter	area.	During	the	rule	of	Qing	Emperor	Daoguang,	Lei	Yue	Mun,	

Cha	Kwo	Ling,	Sai	Tso	Wan	and	Ngau	Tau	Kok	in	eastern	Kowloon	were	

collectively	 known	 as	 the	 “four	 quarry	 hills,”	 inhabited	 mainly	 by	 the	

Hakka	people.	At	the	foothill	of	Devil's	Peak,	north	of	Lei	Yue	Mun	Village,	

it	was	a	wilderness	area	with	only	terraced	field	and	arable	land,	and	was	

filled	with	many	graves.	From	the	late	1940s	to	the	early	1950s,	some	of	

the	soldiers	of	the	Kuomintang	(Nationalist	Party)	and	refugees	who	fled	

from	the	north	during	the	Civil	War	in	China	built	a	village	called	Ling	Nam	

San	Tsuen	and	settled	there.	In	the	1960s,	the	government	reclaimed	Tsau	

Wan	into	Sam	Ka	Tsuen	Typhoon	Shelter	and	flattened	the	hills	in	Sam	Ka	

Tsuen	to	develop	the	Yau	Tong	industrial	zone.	As	the	surrounding	area	

began	to	develop,	transport	network	was	also	extended	to	the	area.	

In	 the	 1960s,	 missionaries	 began	 to	 evangelise	 to	 the	 fishing	

communities	in	Sam	Ka	Tsuen	and	nearby.	Fr.	Octaaf	De	Vreese	(1900-

1996)	of	the	Congregation	of	the	Immaculate	Heart	of	Mary	(CICM)	built	

St.	James’	Chapel,	St.	James’	Kindergarten	(now	converted	into	a	factory),	

Tak	Kei	School,	and	a	clinic	there.	Outside	the	chapel	(now	not	in	use)	of	

Tak	Kei	 School,	 there	was	a	 grotto	 of	 the	Virgin	Mary,	who	 represents	

protection	to	the	fishing	people	in	the	area.	For	the	Chinese	fishermen	who	

believe	in	folk	religions,	the	image	of	the	Virgin	Mary	is	like	the	Goddess	
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of	the	Sea,	who	likewise	represents	a	source	of	blessings	to	them.	St.	James’	

Chapel	was	 elevated	 to	 the	 status	 of	 a	 parish	 in	 1979.	 A	 new	 church	

was	 built	 in	 Yau	 Tong	 to	 replace	 it	 in	 1990.	 Besides,	 the	 CICM	

missionaries	also established	Po	Chiu	Catholic	 Secondary	School and	 Po	

Yin	Social	Services	Centre	in	the	district.	

Photo:	Father	Octaaf	De	Vreese,	CICM	

Photo:	St.	James’	Chapel	in	Lei	Yue	Mun
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Apostleship	Of	The	Sea:	An	Ecumenical	Pastoral	Ministry	

Apart	 from	 missionary	 work	 to	 the	 grassroots	 community,	 trade	

unions	 were	 also	 a	 pastoral	 focus	 of	 the	 Catholic	 Church	 when	 Hong	

Kong’s	 industry	started	to	develop	rapidly	after	the	Second	World	War.	

The	Mariners’	Club	was	originated	from	the	“Sailors’	Home”	in	Sai	Ying	

Pun,	Western	 District	 in	 1863.	 It	 served	 as	 hostel	 provided	 by	 Jardine	

Matheson	and	other	firms	for	seafarers	working	on	foreign	vessels.	Inside	

the	Sailors’	Home,	there	was	an	inter-denominational	church:	St.	Peter's	

Church.	 In	 1885,	 a	 year	 after	 they	 arrived,	 the	 Missions	 to	 Seamen,	

formerly	under	the	Hong	Kong	Sheng	Kung	Hui	(Anglican	Church),	was	

given	 permission	 to	 hold	 services	 at	 St.	 Peter's	 Church.	 In	 1901,	 the	

Missions	to	Seamen	opened	its	hostel	at	Johnston	Road,	Wan	Chai.	In	1930,	

it	 jointly	 registered	with	 the	Sailors'	Home	as	a	 seafarers’	organisation.	

Three	years	later,	they	opened	a	new	clubhouse	at	No.	40	Gloucester	Road	

in	 Wan	 Chai.	 However,	 it	 was	 severely	 damaged	 during	 the	 Japanese	

occupation.	The	new	Mariners’	Club	at	Middle	Road	in	Tsim	Sha	Tsui	was	

opened	 by	 Governor	 Sir	 David	 Trench	 in	 1967.	 Two	 years	 later,	 the	

Catholic	Apostleship	of	the	Sea	joined	in	to	form	an	ecumenical	ministry.	

The	 Danish	 Seamen's	 Church	 and	the	German	 Seaman's	Mission	 also	

joined	 the	ministry	 later.	 The	 second	 Sunday	 of	 July	 is	marked	 as	 “Sea	

Sunday.”	St.	Peter's	Seamen's	Church	was	the	only	ecumenical	venue	in	

Hong	Kong	that	could	have	Catholic	Mass	and	Anglican	worship	service.	
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In	 line	with	 the	 reconstruction	 of	 the	Mariners’	 Club,	where	St.	 Peter's	

Church	located,	a	thanksgiving	Mass	and	de-consecration	rite	were	held	

at	the	end	of	February	2018.	It	was	then	moved	to	a	temporary	location	in	

Jordan	to	continue	its	service.	

	
Photo:	The	Mariners’	Club	in	Middle	Road	

St.	Joseph’s	the	Worker	Chapel	was	another	diocesan	establishment	

closely	connected	to	workers.	It	was	located	at	the	junction	of	Hamilton	

Street	and	Nathan	Road	in	Yau	Ma	Tei.	The	chapel	was	established	in	1957,	

initially	with	the	name	St.	Joseph’s	the	Worker	Catechumenate.	It	was	built	
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because	 the	 diocese	 felt	 that	 there	 was	 a	 need	 for	 more	 churches	 in	

Kowloon	 to	 fill	 the	 geographical	 gap	 between	 Rosary	 Church	 and	 St.	

Francis	 of	 Assisi	 Church	 for	 the	 increasing	 Catholic	 population.	 At	 the	

beginning,	the	chapel	only	held	Mass,	and	administered	the	Sacraments	of	

Baptism	and	Confirmation;	whereas,	the	Sacrament	of	Marriage	had	to	be	

held	in	Rosary	Church.	At	the	time,	the	Canadian	Missionary	Sisters	of	the	

Immaculate	 Conception	 (MIC)	 ran	 full-time	 catechism	 classes	 in	

Cantonese	 and	Mandarin	with	 the	 help	 of	 local	 evangelists.	 Catechism	

classes	were	opened	to	children	and	workers	in	their	free	time.	In	the	first	

five	years,	more	than	half	of	the	5,000-strong	catechumen	got	baptised,	

achieving	an	ideal	result	of	cooperation	between	foreign	missionaries	and	

Chinese	 evangelists.	 These	 foreign	 nuns	 also	 visited	 the	 poor	 and	 sick	

people	in	neighboring	Kwong	Wah	Hospital.	The	chapel	was	integrated	to	

St.	Paul's	Church	in	Yau	Ma	Tei	in	the	late	1960s.	
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The	New	Territories	

The	Prefecture	Apostolic	of	Hong	Kong	was	established	in	1841.	Since	

then,	 the	 "Hong	 Kong	 Island	 and	 the	 surrounding	 six	 leagues”	 were	

separated	from	the	Diocese	of	Macau.	In	1849,	missionaries	began	their	

missionary	work	 in	where	it	 is	now	the	Tsuen	Wan	district	of	 the	New	

Territories.	In	the	1860s,	the	Chinese	and	British	governments	signed	the	

Treaty	 of	 Beijing.	 The	 jurisdiction	 of	 the	 Prefecture	 was	 expanded	 to	

include	almost	the	entire	Xin'an	County	(later	renamed	Bao'an	County).	

Missionary	work	was	expanded	to	areas	like	the	Kowloon	Peninsula,	Tai	

Po,	Sai	Kung	Peninsula,	Nan	Tau,	and	Wu	Kai	Sha.	In	1874,	the	Prefecture	

Apostolic	 was	 upgraded	 into	 a	 Vicariate	 Apostolic.	 Its	 jurisdiction	

expanded	again	to	include	Xin'an	County,	Guishan	County	(later	renamed	

Huiyang)	and	Haifeng	County.	Father	Timoleon	Raimondi	 (PIME,	1827-

1894)	was	appointed	the	first	Vicar	Apostolic	and	was	ordained	as	bishop	

on	November	22	the	same	year.	

Bishop	 Raimondi	was	 keen	 to	 develop	missionary	work	 and	 send	

clergy	to	preach	in	different	places.	The	scope	was	not	limited	to	the	ceded	

land	of	the	time—Hong	Kong	and	Kowloon	(south	of	Boundary	Street)—

but	also	got	into	the	inland	areas	which	were	still	under	the	jurisdiction	of	

the	 Qing	 government.	 For	 example,	 in	 the	 eastern	 New	 Territories,	

ecclesiastical	jurisdictions	were	established	in	Tai	Long	and	Sai	Kung	in	
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1867	 and	 1880	 respectively.	 The	 latter	 became	 a	 base	 of	 future	

missionaries	in	Hong	Kong.		

In	1898,	according	to	Convention	Between	Great	Britain	and	China	

Respecting	an	Extension	of	Hong	Kong	Territory,	the	British	government	

leased	 areas	 north	 of	 Kowloon’s	 Boundary	 Street	 and	 south	 of	 the	

Shenzhen	River	as	well	as	more	than	200	outlying	islands	from	the	Qing	

court	 for	 99	 years.	 The	 former	 Xin'an	 County	was	 divided	 into	 Bao’an	

County	governed	by	China	and	the	"New	Territories"	governed	by	Britain.	

This	meant	that	the	Church	also	needed	to	revise	its	missionary	strategy,	

gradually	adopting	Sai	Kung	in	eastern	New	Territories	and	Nan	Tau	in	

Bao’an	County	as	the	two	main	centres	of	mission.	After	the	British	leased	

the	 New	 Territories,	 the	 succeeding	 bishops	 expanded	 pastoral	 works	

there.	 In	 1905,	 after	 Father	 Domenico	 Pozzoni	 (PIME,	 1861-1924)	

becoming	 bishop,	 he	 first	 established	 the	 Tai	 Po	 mission	 station.	 The	

missionary	 work	 in	 the	 New	 Territories	 was	 closely	 related	 to	 the	

development	 of	 the	 area.	 In	 1926,	 the	 local	 Church	 divided	 the	 New	

Territories	into	the	three	ecclesiastical	districts:	East	(with	Sai	Kung	as	the	

centre	of	mission	work),	West	(with	Tai	Po	as	the	centre	of	mission	work),	

and	Islands.		

In	 a	 nutshell,	 the	 development	 of	 the	 Catholic	 Church	 in	 the	 New	

Territories	 before	 the	 1940s	was	mainly	 centered	 in	 Tai	 Po,	 radiating	
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north	to	Fanling	and	Sheung	Shui,	south	to	Sha	Tin	and	Tai	Wai,	and	west	

to	Yuen	Long	and	Tsuen	Wan.	Missionary	activities	in	Ma	On	Shan	were	

under	 the	 responsibility	 of	 the	 missionaries	 in	 Sai	 Kung	 of	 the	 New	

Territories	East	ecclesiastical	district.	After	the	Second	World	War,	many	

refugees	 who	 fled	 to	 Hong	 Kong	 lived	 in	 remote	 areas	 of	 the	 New	

Territories	and	the	Catholic	Church	took	on	a	more	active	social	service	

mission	in	these	communities.		
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Sai	Kung	Sacred	Heart	Church:		
Missionary	Activities	Integrated	into	the	Community	

Sai	Kung,	belonging	 to	Xin’an	County	of	Guangdong	originally,	was	

placed	under	the	management	of	the	Prefecture	Apostolic	of	Hong	Kong	

in	1861.	Three	years	later,	missionaries	went	there	to	carry	out	mission	

work.	 Fr.	 Simeone	 Volonteri	 (MEM,	 1831-1904)	was	 the	 first	 priest	 to	

preach	 there	while	 Fr.	 Gaetano	 Origo	 (MEM,	 1835-1868)	was	 the	 first	

priest	 to	 reside	 there.	 They	 were	 welcomed	 and	 supported	 by	 the	

inhabitants.	Soon,	the	first	chapel	was	opened.	By	1870,	there	were	350	

believers	scattered	in	12	villages.		

In	1912,	Fr.	Angelo	Ferrario	(PIME,	1876-1933)	returned	from	Italy	

and	went	 to	preach	 in	Sai	Kung	with	a	Chinese	priest,	Father	 John	Situ	

Teng-chiu	(1872-1947).	In	December	of	the	same	year	they	welcomed	the	

companion	of	another	priest	Fr.	Emilio	Teruzzi	(PIME,	1887-1942).	They	

successively	built	15	churches	and	chapels	in	Sham	Chung,	Yim	Tin	Tsai,	

Sai	Kung,	Wong	Nai	Chau,	Chek	Kang,	Tai	Long,	Tan	Ka	Wan,	Pak	Sha	O,	

Che	Ha,	Wong	Mo	Ying,	Lung	Shun	Wan,	and	Long	Ke,	including	the	Sacred	

Heart	 Church	 in	 Sai	 Kung.	 These	 small	 churches	 later	 developed	 into	

several	major	Christian	communities.	As	the	believers	were	scattered,	the	

priests	needed	to	travel	long	distances	to	visit	them.	According	to	the	1922	

annual	report,	there	were	1,500	Catholics,	12	catechists,	a	church,	and	10	

schools	with	260	students	distributed	among	22	communities.	 In	1924,	
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the	Sung	Tsun	Catholic	School	affiliated	to	the	Sacred	Heart	Church	was	

founded.		

	
Photo:	Sacred	Heart	Church	is	an	important	missionary	point	in	Sai	Kung	

During	 the	 Japanese	 occupation,	 Sai	 Kung	was	 severely	 damaged.	

Pirates	were	also	rampant.	Many	churches	and	houses	were	destroyed.	

Some	Catholics	died	of	famine	and	disease;	others	were	killed.	After	the	

war,	 Fr.	 Giorgio	 Caruso	 (PIME,	 1908-2004)	 returned	 to	 Sai	 Kung	 and	

missionary	 work	 could	 continue.	 Churches	 and	 primary	 schools	 were	

repaired	for	use,	and	there	was	an	increase	of	believers.	Nine	churches	

and	Mass	 centres	 served	 23	 villages.	 There	were	 also	 four	 church-run	

schools.	In	1949,	the	first	batch	of	post-war	catechumen	got	baptised	in	
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Sai	Wan	while	 there	were	 a	 gradual	 increase	 of	 inhabitants	 becoming	

catechumen.	The	re-opening	of	the	Holy	Spirit	Minor	Seminary	in	Sai	Kung	

became	the	formation	cradle	of	clergy	until	it	was	moved	to	Pok	Fu	Lam	

in	1957.		

In	 1955,	 the	 number	 of	 Catholics	 had	 increased	 to	 800,	 including	

many	boat-dwellers.	As	the	believers	continued	to	grow,	the	Diocese	built	

a	new	worshipping	venue	on	the	hill	of	Yau	Ma	Po	to	replace	the	small	

church	that	had	been	rebuilt	several	times	since	1880.	The	new	Sacred	

Heart	 Church	 was	 consecrated	 in	 1959.	 Severe	 typhoon	 affected	 the	

livelihoods	of	 the	boat-dwellers	 in	1964,	 the	priests	helped	 them	to	go	

ashore	and	rented	a	land	plot	from	the	government	to	build	a	village	in	Tui	

Min	Hoi.	This	Catholic	village	was	called	St.	Peter’s	Village,	with	a	small	

church	attached	to	it.	The	village	was	initially	managed	by	Caritas-Hong	

Kong,	which	provided	 livelihood	 training	 to	 the	villagers.	Later,	Caritas	

returned	 the	 management	 rights	 to	 the	 villagers'	 self-organised	

“Improving	 Life	 Limited	 Liability	 Cooperative,”	 which	 became	 a	 rare	

cooperative	village	in	Hong	Kong	that	is	available	only	for	rent	but	not	for	

sale.	Fr.	Adelio	Lambertoni	(PIME,	1939-2006)	had	served	at	the	Sacred	

Heart	Church	since	1967.	The	Italian	priest	helped	the	local	boat-dwellers	

and	the	poor	greatly,	and	he	received	support	from	people	of	all	walks	of	

life.	He	 later	 successfully	got	approval	 to	build	 the	Tai	Ping	Village	and	
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Ming	 Shun	 Village.	 By	 this	 time,	 the	 missionary	 service	 was	 extended	

further	to	the	south	to	Hebe	Haven.	In	1979,	the	Sacred	Heart	Church	was	

raised	to	a	parish	and	Sai	Kung	area	has	been	under	the	charge	of	the	PIME	

missionaries	until	today.		

	

Photo:	The	Chapel	at	St.	Peter’s	Village	in	Tui	Min	Hoi	
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Yim	Tin	Tsai	St.	Joseph's	Church:	A	Historic	Catholic	Village	

Yim	Tin	Tsai	 is	an	 outlying	 island	 three	 kilometers	 away	 from	Sai	

Kung	town	center.	The	Hakka	villagers	on	the	island	all	bear	the	surname	

Chan.	The	ancestors	can	trace	back	to	the	Chan	Meng	Tak	couple	in	Chong	

Yuan	Ha	Village	in	Shenzhen,	Guangdong	province.	One	offshoots	of	the	

Chan	clan	subsequently	moved	to	Yim	Tin	Tsai.	As	the	villagers	used	to	

make	living	from	the	saltpans,	thus	the	village,	which	has	existed	for	two	

centuries,	was	named	after	Yim	Tin	(salt	field)	and	the	word	“Tsai”	(̪)	

refers	to	native	place.		

In	1864,	Fr.	Volonteri	and	Fr.	Origo	visited	Yim	Tin	Tsai	 to	preach	

there.	After	two	years,	Fr.	Origo	baptised	seven	villagers,	and	Fr.	Volonteri	

baptised	 33	members	 of	 the	 Chan	 family.	 The	 Catholics	 donated	 open	

space	 to	build	a	chapel	and	a	 school	 (a	predecessor	of	Ching	Po	School	

founded	in	1920).	St.	Joseph	was	venerated	as	patron	of	Yim	Tin	Tsai	since	

the	villagers	believed	the	saint	had	once	made	an	apparition	and	scared	

away	the	pirates,	protecting	them	from	being	looted.		

In	1875,	the	villagers	of	Yim	Tin	Tsai	were	all	baptised,	and	it	became	

a	 truly	 Catholic	 village.	 In	 1879,	 Fr.	 Joseph	 Freinademetz	 (SVD,	 1852-

1908)	arrived	in	Sai	Kung	to	preach	and	served	in	Yim	Tin	Tsai	for	two	

years.	A	new	church	was	built	in	Yim	Tin	Tsai	in	1890	to	replace	the	old	
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chapel.	In	2003,	Pope	John	Paul	II	canonised	him	as	a	confessor	saint	for	

his	missionary	work	in	China	and	Hong	Kong.	

	
Photo:	The	restored	church	in	Yim	Tin	Tsai	

Entering	 the	 20th	 century,	 Yim	Tin	 Tsai	 turned	 a	 new	page	 in	 its	

evangelisation	work.	It	cultivated	a	number	of	vocations	for	the	Catholic	

Church	 in	 Hong	 Kong.	 In	 1917,	 villager	 Chan	 Dan-shu	 (1890-1975)	

became	a	priest.	Five	other	women	became	nuns	of	the	Sisters	of	St.	Paul	

de	Chartres	and	the	Sisters	of	the	Precious	Blood.	Fr.	Dominic	Chan	Chi-

ming	was	ordained	a	priest	in	1979	and	was	a	vicar	general	of	the	diocese	

for	almost	30	years.	
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In	1920,	Ching	Po	School	was	opened	to	educate	people	in	Yim	Tin	

Tsai	and	nearby	villages.	Until	1959,	 the	village	had	193	believers.	Life	

became	difficult	 due	 to	 economic	 recession	 in	 the	 1960s,	 and	 villagers	

began	 to	 move	 away	 from	 the	 island.	 The	 population	 of	 the	 village	

continued	to	drop.	However,	every	year	on	the	first	Friday	of	May,	Catholic	

villagers	from	the	city	and	different	parts	of	the	world	would	come	back	

to	celebrate	the	parish	feast.	Being	Hakka	ethnically,	the	villagers	recited	

the	 Hakka	 version	 of	 the	 “Lord’s	 Prayer”	 in	Mass.	 Today,	 some	 senior	

church	 members	 can	 still	 recite	 prayers	 in	 Hakka.	 This	 reflected	 the	

inculturation	endeavours	of	the	Catholic	Church	and	is	another	cultural	

testimony	of	East	meets	West.		

St.	Joseph's	Church	was	restored	in	1948	and	1962.	The	most	recent	

restoration	 was	 completed	 in	 2004.	 In	 1990,	 the	 Antiquities	 Advisory	

Board	of	Hong	Kong	listed	it	a	Grade	3	historic	building.	It	also	received	

an	Award	 of	 Merit	 of	 the	 UNESCO	 Asia-Pacific	 Awards	 for	 Cultural	

Heritage	Conservation	in	2005.		

	

	 	



 
 

New Territories 127 

 

Immaculate	Heart	of	Mary	Church	in	Tai	Po	Market	Town	

Tai	Po	is	one	of	the	earliest	mission	centres	of	the	Catholic	Church.	

The	 missionaries	 began	 expanding	 their	 area	 of	 service	 to	 Tai	 Po	 by	

climbing	 over	 Tai	 Mo	 Shan	 from	 Tsin	 Wan	 (today’s	 Tsuen	 Wan).	 Fr.	

Andreas	 Leong	 Chi-hing	 (1837-1920),	 Fr.	 Guiseppe	 Burghignoli	 (MEM,	

1833-1892)	and	Fr.	Luigi	Maria	Piazzoli	(later	bishop,	MEM,	1845-1904)	

were	the	first	missionaries	to	reach	Tai	Po.	In	1860,	Fr.	Raimondi	(later	

bishop)	 visited	Wun	 Yiu	 Village	 in	 Tai	 Po	 and	 recruited	 a	 young	 man	

named	 Ma	 Kam-siu	 as	 a	 catechist.	 Under	 cooperation	 of	 the	 Western	

missionaries	and	local	Chinese,	they	built	St.	Peter’s	Chapel	in	Wun	Yiu	in	

1863	and	St.	Andrew’s	Chapel	in	Ting	Kok	Village	the	following	year.	

Entering	the	20th	century,	Catholic	population	increased	gradually.	In	

1924,	the	total	population	in	the	Vicariate	Apostolic	reached	650,000,	of	

which	more	 than	 28,000	were	 Catholics	 and	 6,500	were	 catechumens	

spread	among	65	churches	and	367	chapels.	In	1926,	a	larger	St.	Andrew’s	

Church	was	built	in	Kam	Shan,	Tai	Po.	Fr.	Richard	Brookes (PIME,	1892-

1980)	was	the	first	rector	for	the	vast	New	Territories	West	district	with	

Tai	Po	as	the	mission	centre.	Given	the	vastness	of	the	area,	it	was	obvious	

that	having	only	one	priest	was	not	enough	to	cope	with	the	demand,	so	

in	1931	it	was	decided	that,	Fr.	Diego	D’ayala	Valva	(PIME,	1900-1989)	

was	also	to	be	sent	to	the	ecclesiastical	district.	The	vastness	also	limited	

the	development,	and	thus	Sunday	Mass	had	to	be	held	in	Catholic	families	
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in	different	mission	points	by	monthly	interval	as	there	were	not	enough	

church	venues.	In	1937,	St.	Andrew’s	Church	was	damaged	by	the	typhoon.	

A	building	on	Tai	Po	Road	was	rented	as	a	temporary	worshipping	venue	

until	after	the	Second	World	War.		

The	Catholic	Church	continued	to	develop	in	Tai	Po	after	the	war.	The	

premise	on	Tai	Po	Road	was	renamed	as	Sacred	Heart	of	Mary	Church.	

Later,	the	Chu	Ting-cheong	family	sold	their	villa	on	Wan	Tau	Street,	Tai	

Po	 to	 the	 Diocese	 at	 a	 low	 price.	 The	 new	 Immaculate	 Heart	 of	 Mary	

Church	was	opened	in	1961.	It	was	elevated	to	the	status	of	parish	in	1979.	

There	 are	 three	 bells	 in	 the	 Church.	 They	 came	 from	 the	 Immaculate	

Conception	 Chapel	 in	 Tai	 Long	 Village	 (this	 one	was	made	 by	 a	 bomb	

shell),	the	Epiphany	of	Our	Lord	Chapel	in	Sham	Chung	and	St.	Andrew’s	

Church	 in	 Kam	 Shan	 respectively,	 symbolising	 the	 mission	 of	 the	

missionaries	among	 the	Chinese	while	displaying	 the	Catholic	Church’s	

missionary	history	in	New	Territories.	

		

	

	

	

Photo:	St.	Andrew’s	Church	
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With	the	development	of	new	towns,	population	grew	even	faster.	The	Tai	

Po	Parish	has	added	Blessed	Anna	Wang	Mass	Centre	(renamed	as	Saint	

Anna	Wang	Mass	Centre	in	2000)	inside	the	Valtorta	College	in	1990,	and	

Blessed	Zhang	Dapeng	Chapel	(renamed	as	Saint	Zhang	Dapeng	Chapel	in	

2000)	 in	 the	 Sacred	 Heart	 of	 Mary	 Catholic	 Primary	 School	 in	 1992,	

invoking	the	blessing	of	the	Chinese	martyr-saints	 in	a	place	which	has	

witnessed	close	cooperation	between	the	foreign	and	Chinese	Catholics.		

	

Photo:	Immaculate	Heart	of	Mary	Church	
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Ss.	Peter	and	Paul	Church:	A	Church	in	a	Walled	Village	

Since	1840,	the	Catholic	missionary	work	had	reached	outside	Hong	

Kong	Island.	They	initially	set	up	a	school	and	a	missionary	station	on	the	

shore	 of	Tsuen	Wan,	 then	 later	 spread	 to	Tai	Po,	and	 from	Lam	Tsuen	

finally	reaching	the	Yuen	Long	plain.		

In	 Yuen	 Long,	 indigenous	 people	 have	 settled	 there	 for	 centuries.	

They	 viewed	 veneration	 of	 their	 ancestors	 as	 an	 important	 matter.	

Temples	were	always	prosperous	with	many	pilgrims	visiting	to	venerate	

the	folk	deities.	However,	the	foreign	missionaries	were	still	able	to	set	up	

multiple	 mission	 points	 there	 in	 the	 early	 20th	 century.	 The	 early	

development	 of	 the	 Church	 in	 the	 locality	 was	 characterised	 by	 the	

establishment	of	small	church	buildings	like	the	traditional	village	house	

found	in	the	New	Territories.	Catholic	liturgy	performed	in	these	Chinese-

style	buildings	was	a	sign	of	integration	of	a	religion	introduced	from	the	

West	with	the	local	environment.	After	the	Catholic	population	grew	to	a	

certain	 level,	 a	 proper	 church	 would	 be	 built	 to	 accommodate	 more	

followers.		
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Photo:	Fr.	Richard	Brookes																							Photo:	Fr.	D'ayala	Valva	

Fr.	Richard	S.	Brookes	was	a	pioneer	missionary	 in	Yuen	Long.	He	

served	as	the	rector	of	the	New	Territories	West	in	1926,	managing	areas	

that	covered	Tai	Po,	Yuen	Long,	as	well	as	Tai	O	and	Shek	Pik	on	Lantau	

Island.	At	that	time,	there	were	two	Chinese	catechists,	one	male	and	one	

female,	and	five	other	teachers	assisting	his	work.	Since	then,	missionary	

work	has	also	been	extended	to	Yuen	Long	Hui	(market	town).		

His	successor,	Fr.	Diego	D’ayala	recruited	many	converts	during	his	

tenure.	According	to	his	report,	there	were	around	150	Catholics	in	Yuen	

Long:	99	in	Yuen	Long	Hui,	35	in	Sheung	Che,	three	in	Ha	Che,	two	in	Wang	

Toi	Shan,	five	in	Shui	Lau	Tin	and	25	in	Cheung	Po.	Fr.	Valva	felt	strong	

competition	between	Catholics	and	Protestants	in	Yuen	Long.	Fortunately,	

Catholic	schools	were	valued	by	many	parents,	leading	them	to	become	a	
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robust	support	for	the	missionary	work.	In	fact,	he	believed	that	preaching	

in	schools	was	better	than	relying	on	catechists	alone.	

On	 June	 29,	 1927,	 a	 new	 rectory	was	 opened	 in	 Tung	 Tau	 Tusen	

(village),	 Yuen	 Long	 Kau	 Hui	 (old	 market	 town).	 They	 established	 a	

Catholic	 church	with	 Ss.	 Peter	 and	 Paul	 as	 patron	 saints	 and	 founded	

Shung	Tak	School.	Priests	often	traveled	to	different	villages	to	spread	the	

Gospel.	 The	 old	 church	 was	 actually	 a	 traditional	 village	 house	 with	

pitched-shaped	tiled	roof	and	a	Cross	painted	in	red	on	the	façade.	

In	 1952,	 Yuen	 Long	was	elevated	 as	an	 independent	 ecclesiastical	

district,	and	was	handed	over	from	foreign	missionaries	to	the	local	ones.	

Shuffles	of	clerics	also	brought	changes	to	evangelisation	from	a	Western	

way	to	the	Chinese	way.	Fr.	John	Baptist	Wong	King-in	(1911-1971)	began	

gathering	funding	to	build	the	new	Ss.	Peter	and	Paul	Church	in	Shui	Pin	

Tsuen.	In	1958,	it	was	officially	consecrated.	Fr.	Thomas	U	Uen-chi	(1914-

1987)	changed	the	asbestos	tiles	on	the	roof	to	ceramic	ones	so	that	the	

faithful	would	feel	cooler	during	religious	gathering.	The	wooden	beams	

in	 the	 church	 were	 also	 replaced	 with	 steel	 ones.	 In	 addition,	 he	

refurbished	and	replaced	the	pews,	and	built	a	new	confessional.	He	also	

built	a	small	Marian	Lourdes	grotto.	This	shows	that	people	of	the	Church	

do	not	always	stress	differences	in	cultures	but	also	stress	common	points	

in	doctrinal	expression.		
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Photo:	The	words	“Hong	Kong	Shung	Tak	Catholic	School”	painted	in	black	could	
still	be	seen	on	the	wall	before	the	red	cross.	

	

Photo:	The	façade	still	bears	the	Chinese	characters	of	“Catholic	Church”	(partially	
collapsed)	in	the	above	and	an	old	plaque	that	reads	“Shung	Tak	School.”	
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St.	Jude’s	Catholic	Church	In	Kam	Tin:		
A	Church	Integrating	Traditional	Values	

Pat	Heung	includes	eight	relatively	large	villages	to	the	east	of	Kam	

Tin:	Sheung	Tsuen,	Sheung	Che,	Wong	Toi	Shan,	Yuen	Kong,	Moon	Kong,	

Lin	Fa	Tei,	Cheung	Po,	and	Shui	Ngau	Tin.	It	was	surrounded	by	hills	and	

mountains	such	as	Kai	Kung	Shan,	Tai	To	Yan,	Kwun	Yam	Shan,	and	Tai	

Mo	Shan.	

As	 early	 as	 1926,	 two	 important	 mission	 points	 were	 already	

established	 in	Kam	Tin:	Holy	Family	 Prayer	House	 in	 Sheung	Che,	and	

Sacred	Heart	Chapel	in	Pak	Wai	of	Kam	Tin.	The	pastor	served	also	as	the	

supervisor	 of	 Kam	 Chuen	 School.	 In	 1962,	 Kam	 Tin	 became	 an	

independent	ecclesiastical	district	separate	from	Yuen	Long.	A	generous	

layman	Wong	Man-tim	donated	a	piece	of	land	on	Kam	Sheung	Road	near	

Kat	 Hing	 Wai	 for	 the	 building	 of	 St.	 Jude’s	 Catholic	 Church.	 Another	

Catholic	Shak	Chung-shan	and	his	wife	donated	half	of	the	construction	

cost	and	the	rest	was	funded	by	the	church	authority.	It	was	consecrated	

by	Bishop	Joseph	Julian	Oste	of	Chengde	Diocese	(C.I.C.M,	1893-1971)	on	

February	15,	1967.	

The	Cross	at	the	main	entrance	of	St.	Jude’s	Church	was	placed	at	a	

lower	position,	rather	than	the	highest	point	of	the	church	building.	It	is	

believed	to	be	related	to	the	village	custom:	no	roof	can	be	higher	than	the	

ancestral	hall	of	the	village,	and	the	design	reflected	the	Catholic	Church’s	

respect	for	local	traditions.	
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Photo:	Fr.	Philip	Chan	Chi-yan,	the	first	priest	of	St.	Jude’s	Catholic	Church	

	
Photo:	Kung	Kao	Po	reports	the	consecration	ceremony	of	St.	Jude’s	Church	

Although	St.	Jude’s	Church	was	elevated	to	parish	status	in	1979,	at	

that	time	Bishop	John	Baptist	Wu	Cheng-chung	did	not	have	any	priests	to	

send	to	the	parish	so	he	asked	for	assistance	from	the	Missionary	Sisters	

of	the	Immaculate	Conception	(PIME	Sisters).	Sister	Luigia	Mindassi	was	
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responsible	for	managing	this	rural	church	while	other	sisters	provided	

help.	Sister	Goretti	Yeung	Mei-ling	continued	to	serve	at	the	Yuen	Long	

parish.	A	priest	was	dispatched	 to	St.	 Jude’s	for	Mass	every	Sunday.	He	

would	also	visit	various	villages	 (Kam	Tin,	Cheung	Po	Tsuen,	Kam	Tsin	

Wai,	and	Lui	Kung	Tin	Tsuen)	and	hold	a	monthly	Sunday	Mass	in	each	

village	on	a	rotating	basis.	During	school	holidays,	with	the	help	of	young	

volunteers,	 outdoor	 activities	 were	 organised	 for	 the	 village	 children.	

Despite	different	nationalities,	the	Italian	Sisters	who	served	at	Kam	Tin	

until	1988,	built	up	and	maintained	close	relations	with	the	rural	people.	

Kam	Chuen	School	was	closed	in	1988	and	St.	Jude’s	Church	was	reverted	

into	a	Mass	Centre	the	following	year.	Since	1994,	it	was	placed	under	the	

management	of	Ss.	Peter	and	Paul	Parish	in	Yuen	Long,	with	only	one	Mass	

available	on	Sundays.		

	
Photo:	St.	Jude’s	Church	 	
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Cheung	Po	Tsuen	Chapel:	A	Church	Built	with	Green	Bricks	

Cheung	Po	Tsuen,	a	village	of	people	with	mixed	surnames	(including	

Tang,	Tsang,	Cheung,	and	Wong),	was	founded	during	the	reign	of	Qing	

Emperor	 Kangxi	 (1661-1722).	 Villagers	 made	 their	 living	 mainly	 by	

farming.	The	word	 “Po”	 of	 Cheung	Po	 (�	)	 generally	 refers	 to	water	

plants.	Given	the	fact	that	the	nearby	villages	were	named	“Ho	Pui”	(literal	

meaning:	river	back)	and	“Tai	Kek”	(literal	meaning:	great	curved	river),	

there	is	reason	to	believe	Cheung	Po	is	an	ideal	farmland	for	farming	with	

sufficient	water	source.	

St.	 John’s	 Chapel	 in	 Cheung	 Po	Tsuen	was	 consecrated	 by	 Fr.	 Situ	

Teng-chiu	on	June	24,	1928.	It	was	the	result	of	cooperation	between	the	

local	and	Western	Church:	the	construction	cost	was	raised	partly	in	Hong	

Kong	and	partly	in	Italy.	In	the	past,	apart	from	being	the	venue	for	church	

activities,	it	was	also	used	as	the	primary	school	of	the	village	until	1951.	

It	attracted	many	children,	 including	those	from	other	villages,	to	study	

there.	Fr.	Valva	once	praised	the	mission	zeal	of	the	Catholic	families	in	

Cheung	Po.	However,	since	the	1960s,	in	terms	of	religious	services,	the	

chapel	 was	 gradually	 replaced	 by	 the	 small	 church	 in	 Kam	 Tsin	 Wai	

(another	village)	and	St.	 Jude’s	Church	on	Kam	Sheung	Road.	St.	 John’s	

Chapel	has	been	vacant	since	1980s.	
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The	appearance	of	the	chapel	resembles	the	countryside	churches	in	

Europe,	but	it	uses	Chinese-style	building	materials,	such	as	green	bricks	

for	the	wall.	(The	green	bricks	are	made	of	mud	from	fishpond	and	burnt	

in	a	kiln).	These	bricks,	which	are	usually	harder	than	normal	bricks	and	

waterproof	with	good	heat	 insulation,	was	the	best	building	material	at	

that	time.	However,	they	were	quite	costly,	and	thus	not	commonly	used	

by	 ordinary	 people.	 This	 reflects	 how	 the	 missionaries	 cherished	 the	

building	of	a	church.	There	is	a	terrace	in	front	of	the	chapel.	Alongside	the	

fence	marked	 three	Chinese	characters	 that	 read	 “Catholic	 Church.”	 To	

both	 left	and	right	 sides	are	green	glazed-tile	decorative	windows.	The	

carved	 flower	 patterns	 not	 only	 allow	 good	 air	 circulation,	 it	 also	 lets	

natural	light	to	shine	through.	Near	the	roof,	the	skylight	also	increased	

the	 number	 of	 light	 sources	 in	 the	 interior—a	 typical	 Chinese	

architectural	characteristic.	

The	Cross	on	the	bell	tower	on	the	façade	is	the	main	symbol	of	the	

Catholic	Church,	commemorating	Jesus’	sacrifice	for	saving	all	humans.	On	

the	main	wall,	 the	date	of	construction	completion	was	marked	clearly:	

“AD1928.”	In	terms	of	Chinese	architectural	traditions,	marking	the	date	

of	construction	completion	is	not	uncommon,	but	it	is	rare	to	see	it	on	a	

church	building.	This	gives	another	example	of	the	integration	of	Western	

and	Chinese	culture.	
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Photo:	 Cheung	 Po	 Tsuen	 Catholic	 Church	 witnessing	 the	 development	 of	
Catholicism	in	rural	areas	

Photo:	The	stone	altar	against	the	wall	

before	the	Vatican	II,	engraved	with	a	

Cross	 and	 “IHS”	 which	 is	 the	

abbreviation	 of	 the	 Latin	 words	 “In	

Hoc	Salus,”	meaning	salvation	through	

this	 Cross	 (also	 stands	 for	 Jesus	

Salvator	 Hominis).	 The	 stone	 altar	

symbolises	 that	 Christ	 is	 the	

“cornerstone,”	“living	stone”	(1	Peter	

2:4).	It	also	represents	the	stone	that	

Moses	used	to	obtain	water	for	his	people	and	take	care	of	the	people.	 	

_-̀  I'
. 
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Our	Lady	of	Seven	Sorrows	Chapel:	 	
An	Ancestral	Hall	with	a	Cross	

From	 1923	 to	 1937,	 the	 British	 colonial	 government	 ordered	 the	

relocation	of	Tai	Wai	Village	 in	Shing	Mun	 in	order	 to	build	Shing	Mun	

Reservoir.	The	descendants	of	the	Cheng	clan	thus	moved	to	Pat	Heung	

Kam	 Tsin	Wai	 in	 1929.	 The	 Kam	 Tsin	Wai	 (wai	means	walled	 village)	

consisted	 of	 25	 village	 houses	 built	 by	 green	 bricks.	 The	 Hon	 Pang	

Ancestral	Hall	was	 also	 built	 at	 the	 same	 time.	 It	was	mainly	 used	 for	

celebrating	 important	 Chinese	 festivals.	 The	 ancestral	 hall	 was	 then	

converted	 to	 a	 Catholic	 chapel	 and	 Kam	 Chuen	 School.	 Later,	 it	 was	

transformed	 into	 a	 kindergarten	 and	 is	 now	 being	 used	 for	 holding	

meetings	of	village	affairs.	

	

Photo:	 A	 photo	 of	 the	 original	 Shing	Mun	Tai	Wai	 Village	was	 hung	 inside	 the	

ancestral	hall	
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Like	other	Hakkas,	the	Cheng	clan	believed	in	folk	religions	and	lived	

by	 farming.	They	were	good	at	 “Kylin-dancing”	and	martial	arts.	 In	 the	

early	days	of	relocation,	as	the	nearby	fertile	land	has	been	occupied	by	

the	prominent	Tang	clan,	there	was	no	arable	land	for	the	new	settlers.	In	

order	to	continue	farming,	some	villagers	walked	several	hours	every	day	

returning	to	their	fields	in	Shing	Mun.	After	harvest,	the	crops	would	be	

taken	 to	 sell	 in	 Tsuen	Wan.	 Most	 villagers	 worked	 as	 temps	 or	 were	

tricked	 and	 sent	 to	 Southeast	 Asia	 to	 work	 there.	 There	 were	 some	

villagers	 who	 wasted	 all	 the	

money	 they	 got	 from	

government’s	 compensation	 and	

the	 village’s	 public	 saving	 in	

improper	ways.	They	even	spent	

all	 the	 money	 they	 needed	 to	

repay	 for	 the	 construction	 of	

houses,	 leading	 to	 the	 seizure	 of	

the	 ancestral	 hall	 and	 some	

houses.	

	

	

	

Photo:	The	ancestral	hall	was	named	

after	 the	19th	 generation	descendant	

Cheng	Hon	Pang.	
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In	 1932,	 Fr.	 Valva	 became	 the	 rector	 of	 New	 Territories	 West	

succeeding	Fr.	Brookes.	Fr.	Valva	knew	some	Hakka	dialects	and	was	a	

friendly	 person.	With	 the	 help	 of	 educated	Chinese	 catechists,	 he	 soon	

gained	the	trust	of	many	villagers	in	Pat	Heung.	After	getting	in	touch	with	

the	elders	 in	Kam	Tsin	Wai	village,	Fr.	Valva	promised	 that	 the	church	

authority	would	redeem	the	ancestral	hall	and	the	detained	houses	from	

the	 property	 contractor,	and	 allowed	 the	 villagers	 to	 repay	 the	Church	

when	they	could	afford	it.	In	addition,	the	Catholic	Church	often	provided	

material	relief	to	the	poor	villagers,	improving	their	livelihood.	As	a	result,	

some	villagers	started	taking	catechism	classes.	During	the	Dragon	Boat	

Festival	in	1935,	Fr.	Valva	baptised	all	the	villagers,	and	the	whole	village	

was	converted	 to	Catholicism.	The	ancestral	hall	was	mortgaged	 to	 the	

Vicariate	Apostolic	at	HK$300	to	be	converted	into	a	chapel,	named	“Our	

Lady	of	the	Seven	Sorrows	Chapel.”	

The	words	“Catholic	Church”	were	engraved	on	the	roof	of	the	chapel,	

and	 a	 stone	Cross	was	 erected	 on	 the	 roof.	 The	 original	 plaques	were	

removed	and	 the	spirit	 tablets	of	 their	ancestors	were	 thrown	 into	 the	

nearby	Kam	Tin	River.	To	date,	there	is	no	spirit	tablet	of	their	ancestors	

in	their	houses,	nor	do	they	have	any	incense	burner	table	or	shrine.	In	the	

chapel,	there	is	a	stone	altar	next	to	the	wall	for	the	purpose	of	celebrating	

Mass.	 At	 that	 time,	 the	Mass	 liturgy	was	 still	 performed	 in	 Latin.	Most	

villagers	did	not	know	the	language	and	had	to	rely	on	the	altar	servers	to	
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respond.	After	the	Vatican	II,	they	started	using	the	Hakka	dialect	for	the	

Masses.	Although	the	female	villagers	were	all	illiterate,	they	could	recite	

the	old-style	“The	Lord	Prayer”	and	“Hail	Mary”	with	ease.	

Kam	Tsin	Wai	later	became	the	hub	of	the	missionary	work	in	Kam	

Tin.	The	church	also	supported	 the	running	of	 two	schools	 in	 the	area.		

Fr.	Valva	spent	HK$700	to	renovate	Kam	Chuen	School	and	continued	to	

run	it	in	response	to	the	demand	from	Catholics	in	Kam	Tsin	Wai	in	1948.	

Ten	 years	 later,	 the	Sei	Luen	School	was	 established	 jointly	with	 three	

other	villages,	namely	Yuen	Kong	Tsuen,	Ng	Ka	Tsuen	and	Shek	Wu	Tong.	

These	schools	agreed	to	have	the	rector	of	Yuen	Long	serving	as	the	school	

supervisor,	 responsible	 for	 the	

administration	 and	 funding.	 Each	

class	 would	 have	 two	 sessions	 of	

Bible	learning	every	week.	

With	the	completion	of	the	Shek	

Kong	Barracks	and	the	improvement	

of	Hong	Kong’s	economy,	there	were	

more	 job	 opportunities,	 and	 the	

villagers’	standard	of	living	improved.		

	
Photo:	 “Hung	 Tsz	 Hall”	 was	 named	 in	
memorial	of	Fr.	D’ayala	Valva	
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They	redeemed	their	homes	as	well	as	the	ancestral	hall.	Only	one	family	

who	has	moved	to	Kowloon	decided	not	to	redeem	their	house,	and	the	

property	is	now	still	owned	by	the	Diocese.	In	the	1980s,	that	house	was	

renamed	“Hung	Tsz	Hall”	(the	Chinese	name	of	Fr.	Valva,	Au	Hung-Tsz)	to	

commemorate	his	missionary	achievements.	The	usage	of	the	house	has	

changed	along	with	the	times:	it	has	served	as	a	priest	rectory,	a	classroom	

for	 Kam	 Chuen	 School,	 and	 a	 tutorial	 classroom	 for	 public	 exam	

preparation.	Now	it	is	used	as	a	storage	space.	

	

Photo:	A	news	on	Feast	Day	Celebration	of	Our	Lady	of	the	Seven	Sorrows	Chapel		

Although	 the	 Cheng	 clan	 has	 converted	 their	 ancestral	 hall	 into	 a	

Catholic	church,	 the	villagers	still	bring	 flowers	and	candles	and	sweep	

their	 ancestors’	 tombs	 on	 traditional	 Ching	 Ming	 and	 Chung	 Yeung	

Festivals,	 as	 a	 way	 to	 strengthen	 their	 kinship.	 As	 for	 weddings	 and	
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funerals,	they	are	all	conducted	in	the	church,	which	is	another	example	

of	the	integration	of	Chinese	and	western	cultures.	As	St.	 Jude’s	Church	

became	the	hub	of	faith	life	for	the	Catholic	villagers	in	Kam	Tin	area	after	

its	opening	in	1966,	the	villagers	started	going	there	for	Masses	instead.	

The	ancestral	hall	was	returned	to	the	Cheng	clan,	being	converted	into	a	

kindergarten,	until	it	was	closed	in	1971.	
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Ss.	Cosmas	and	Damian	Church	in	Tsuen	Wan:		
En	Route	Stop	of	Rural	Mission	

Tsuen	Wan	was	called	“Tsin	Wan”	(literal	meaning:	shallow	bay)	in	

ancient	times.	When	the	New	Territories	was	leased	to	Britain	in	1898,	it	

had	 a	 population	 of	 3,000,	 scattering	 along	 the	 seaside,	 in	 Shung	Mun	

River	 Valley,	 Kwai	 Chung,	 Tsing	 Yi,	 and	 Ma	 Wan.	 The	 locals	 lived	 on	

agriculture	and	fishing	and	practiced	folk	religions.	As	early	as	 in	1849,	

the	Catholic	Mission	started	preaching	in	Tsuen	Wan	and	set	up	schools	

and	mission	points	on	the	banks	of	Tsuen	Wan.	In	the	1860s,	Fr.	Giuseppe	

Burghignoli	(PIME,	1833-1892),	Fr.	Andreas	Leong	Chi-Hing	(1837-1920)	

and	others	started	coming	to	Tsuen	Wan	via	the	waterway,	then	climbed	

over	Tai	Mo	Shan	to	preach	in	Tai	Po.	Therefore,	Tsuen	Wan	had	become	

the	en	route	stop	for	Catholicism	to	spread	in	the	more	inland	areas	of	the	

New	Territories.	

On	January	21,	1861,	after	Fr.	Burghignoli	settled	in	Tsuen	Wan,	he	

established	a	small	school	with	a	capacity	of	40	students.	Before	the	war	

in	the	1940s,	Fr.	Valva	and	Fr.	Brookes	took	terms	to	offer	pastoral	care	to	

the	 Catholics	 in	Tsuen	Wan.	 They	 baptised	 some	 locals,	 and	with	 their	

support,	in	1934,	the	church	was	moved	from	a	hut	in	Chung	On	Street	to	

a	proper	house	in	Sam	Tung	Uk,	which	was	later	named	Sacred	Heart	of	

Jesus	Church.	At	 the	same	 time,	a	boys’	 school	and	a	girls’	 school	were	

founded	on	the	two	sides	of	the	church.	This	Tak	Sing	School	was	the	first	
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Catholic	primary	school	 in	Tsuen	Wan.	However,	missionary	work	was	

suspended	 during	 the	 Japanese	 occupation.	 Both	 the	 church	 and	 the	

school	were	closed	temporarily	until	1947.	Tsuen	Wan	was	carved	out	as	

an	independent	ecclesiastic	district	 in	1952,	with	responsibility	also	for	

the	pastoral	care	of	the	Catholic	fishing	people	at	the	typhoon	shelter	of	

Tsing	Yi	Island.			

During	the	1950s	and	1960s,	with	a	large	influx	of	mainland	Chinese	

to	Hong	Kong,	they	brought	along	a	huge	amount	of	capital,	technology,	

and	 cheap	 labor.	Many	 factories	were	 built	 on	Texaco	Road,	 Yeung	Uk	

Road,	and	Chai	Wan	Kok,	accelerating	the	industrial	development	in	the	

district.	At	this	time,	the	government	also	acquired	farmlands	to	create	a	

satellite	new	town	to	cope	with	the	demand	for	industrial	development	

and	housing.	Between	1961	and	1976,	60%	of	the	employed	population	in	

Tsuen	Wan	worked	in	the	manufacturing	industry.	Catholic	 institutions	

were	 providing	 social	 services	 actively.	 With	 the	 constantly	 growing	

population,	more	and	more	people	converted	to	Catholicism.	Sacred	Heart	

of	Jesus	Church	near	Sam	Tung	Uk	(now	known	as	Luk	Yeung	Sun	Chuen)	

could	not	meet	the	demand.	The	construction	of	depot	of	the	Mass	Transit	

Railway	and	residential	estate	Luk	Yeung	Sun	Cheun	led	to	the	demolition	

of	the	church	and	the	school.	The	Diocese	built	a	new	church	on	Tak	Wah	

Street	to	replace	it.	It	was	funded	by	the	Essen	Diocese	in	Germany.	Since	
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its	completion	in	1969,	Ss.	Cosmas	and	Damian	Church	has	been	the	venue	

for	Catholics	in	Tsuen	Wan,	Kwai	Tsing,	and	Tsing	Yi	districts	to	live	out	

their	faith	life.	In	the	1970s,	Fr.	Gabriel	Liu	Yu-ting	(1927-2016)	and	Fr.	

Mario	Marazzi	began	to	use	the	secondary	and	primary	schools	in	Tsuen	

Wan	and	Kwai	Tsing,	as	well	as	 some	residential	 flats	 in	Kwai	Fong,	 to	

serve	as	Mass	Centres.	These	Mass	Centres	were	successively	established	

into	parishes:	namely,	St.	John	the	Apostle	Parish	in	Shek	Lei;	St.	Thomas	

the	 Apostle	 Parish	 in	 Tsing	 Yi;	 St.	 Stephen’s	 Parish	 in	Kwai	 Fong;	 and	

Church	of	the	Annunciation	on	On	Yin	Street	in	Tsuen	Wan.	

	

Photo:	Ss.	Cosmas	and	Damian	Church	
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After	the	government	established	Tsuen	Wan	in	1961	as	the	first	new	

town	in	the	New	Territories,	many	working-class	people	and	grassroots	

moved	there.	However,	public	social	services	failed	to	meet	the	demands	

of	 the	 residents,	and	 the	Catholic	Church	assumed	 the	responsibility	of	

helping	 the	 deprived,	 especially	 in	 terms	 of	 medical	 services	 and	

education.	In	1962,	Caritas-Hong	Kong	established	the	Tsuen	Wan	Social	

Service	Centre	on	Shing	Mun	Road	to	engage	in	social	welfare	work.	Fr.	

Marazzi,	the	Italian	parish	priest	of	Ss.	Cosmas	and	Damian	Church,	served	

in	the	centre	from	the	late	1960s	to	the	early	1970s.	

Further	 to	 this,	 the	 changes	 in	 the	 political	 situation	 in	 mainland	

China	forced	many	religious	congregations	to	move	their	bases	to	Hong	

Kong.	 They	 helped	meet	 the	 demands	 of	 social	 services	 in	Hong	Kong.	

After	arriving	Hong	Kong	in	the	1950s,	the	Marist	brothers	once	taught	in	

St.	 Martin’s	 College.	 In	 1963,	 they	 founded	 St.	 Francis	 Xavier’s	 School,	

Tsuen	Wan.	The	Sisters	of	the	Helpers	of	the	Holy	Souls	also	moved	from	

mainland	 China	 to	 Hong	 Kong	 and	 established	 Mary	 of	 Providence	

Primary	School	in	the	1960s.	In	1976,	Mary	of	Providence	Kindergarten	

was	added.	Later,	they	also	founded	a	clinic.	Before	the	establishment	of	

Yan	Chai	Hospital	in	1973,	Catholic	Relief	Services	from	the	US	had	already	

opened	Kai	Ming	Clinic,	adjacent	to	Tsuen	Wan	Typhoon	Shelter	and	the	

Resettlement	Area,	serving	the	deprived.	It	was	once	entrusted	to	the	care	
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of	the	Helpers	of	the	Holy	Souls	and	later	became	what	is	now	known	as	

the	Caritas	Jockey	Club	Tsuen	Wan	Clinic.	As	we	can	see	from	the	above,	

the	 local	 church	and	 foreign	Catholic	 institutions	have	made	significant	

contributions	over	the	past	century	to	the	pastoral	care,	education,	and	

social	relief	services	for	the	people	in	Tsuen	Wan.	
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St.	Joseph’s	Church,	Fanling:		
Founding	Priest	Named	“King	of	New	Territories”	

Catholic	missionary	work	began	in	1926	in	Fanling,	a	crossroads	to	

various	 direction	 of	 the	 New	 Territories.	 After	 the	 war,	 in	 1949,	 Fr.	

Ambrose	 Poletti	 (PIME,	 1905-1973)	 was	 appointed	 rector	 of	 the	 New	

Territories	West	ecclesiastical	district.	He	believed	that	it	was	necessary	

to	set	up	a	district	in	Fanling.	Catholic	layman	Tang	Kun-leung	was	willing	

to	 lend	 his	 residence	 in	 Luen	Wo	 Market	 to	 say	 Masses	 for	 20	 to	 30	

Catholics.	 It	was	how	St.	 Joseph’s	Church,	Fanling,	 came	 into	existence.	

Two	years	later,	another	Catholic	Chu	Yan-kit	donated	a	piece	of	farmland	

near	Luen	Wo	Market	(now	known	as	Wo	Tai	Street)	for	the	building	of	a	

new	church,	 originally	 taking	 the	 name	Fanling	On	 Lok	Tsuen	Catholic	

Church.	 When	 the	 church	 was	 completed	 in	 1953,	 it	 was	 renamed	 St.	

Joseph’s	Church	and	was	under	the	management	of	Tai	Po	mission	centre.	

When	Fanling	ecclesiastic	district	formally	became	independent	from	Tai	

Po	in	1956,	it	served	the	areas	including	Sheung	Shui,	Fanling,	Sha	Tau	Kok,	

and	Ta	Kwu	Ling.		

Fr.	 Poletti	 was	 regarded	 as	Hong	 Kong’s	 doorman	 on	 the	 Chinese	

border	as	he	had	 to	make	daily	 treks	 to	 the	Lo	Wu	border,	helping	 the	

border	officials	to	identify	missionaries	expelled	after	detention	after	the	

Communist	 took	 over	 China	 in	 1949.	 These	 expelled	 missionaries	

included	Bishop	Alfonso	Maria	Corrado	Ferroni	of	Laohekau	(1892-1966),	
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who	had	 lost	 110	pounds	when	 released,	and	Bishop	Lorenzo	Bianchi,	

who	arrived	in	filthy	rags	like	a	beggar.	Fr.	Poletti	was	in	friendly	terms	

with	many	village	elders,	who	were	authoritative	in	the	New	Territories	

affairs.	He	also	had	a	close	relation	with	 the	police	and	British	military	

officials	at	the	border	that	he	was	given	permission	to	possess	a	gun.	This	

earned	him	a	nickname	“King	of	the	New	Territories”	among	the	Chinese.			

In	 the	 1920s,	 there	 were	 a	 number	 of	 country	 villas	 in	 the	

neighbourhood	of	Luen	Wo	Market	owned	by	Chinese	and	foreigners.	St.	

Joseph’s	Church,	Fanling,	is	now	the	only	surviving	building	of	its	type	in	

Luen	Wo	Market.	 It	 is	also	 considered	 a	 rare	 example	of	 a	 refined	and	

delicate	 church	 in	 the	 rural	 New	 Territories.	 It	 was	 listed	 as	 Grade	 3	

historic	building	by	the	Antiquities	Advisory	Board	in	2011.	An	expansion	

was	started	in	2018,	and	it	is	expected	to	be	reopened	in	three	years.	

	

Photo:	St.	Joseph’s	Church,	Fanling	 	



 
 

New Territories 153 

 

Ma	On	Shan	Tsuen	Catholic	Church:	A	Sacred	Site	in	a	Quarry	

The	 missionary	 history	 of	 the	 Catholic	 Church	 in	 Ma	 On	 Shan,	 a	

mountain	700	meters	in	height,	can	be	traced	back	to	1869.	At	that	time,	

there	were	only	a	few	small	villages	in	Wu	Kai	Sha.	The	missionaries	in	Sai	

Kung	often	came	here	to	preach,	and	in	the	same	year,	the	first	villager	was	

baptised.		

After	the	Second	World	War	ended	in	August	1945,	the	development	

of	the	Catholic	Church	in	the	New	Territories	East	also	turned	a	new	page.	

To	begin	with,	the	well-known	Ma	On	Shan	Iron	Mine	bloomed	rapidly.	At	

one	point,	there	were	more	than	4,000	workers	and	their	families	residing	

there.	A	fair	proportion	of	them	were	educated	people	who	took	refuge	in	

Hong	Kong	from	China	and	many	knew	the	Catholic	Church	in	different	

parts	of	China.	The	Franciscans	who	were	also	expelled	from	China	had	

been	serving	 the	mine	workers	and	 their	families	 since	1952,	and	 they	

built	St.	Joseph’s	Chapel	on	the	mountain,	which	was	largely	cut	off	from	

the	 town	 centre.	 As	 many	 people	 wanted	 to	 get	 baptised,	 to	 make	

attending	 Catholic	 services	 easier	 for	 the	 residents	 at	 the	 foot	 of	 the	

mountain,	the	foreign	friars	decided	to	build	another	church	by	the	seaside	

named	St.	Francis’	Chapel.	The	dedication	service	was	held	on	the	Feast	

Day	of	St.	Francis	in	1955.		
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Over	time,	the	mine	was	closed	in	1976	and	the	number	of	residents	

decreased.	The	government	had	been	planning	a	new	town	in	Ma	On	Shan	

since	the	1980s.	St.	Francis’	Chapel	(elevated	into	a	parish	in	1979)	was	

demolished	 in	 1984,	 and	 St.	 Joseph’s	 Chapel	 was	 closed	 in	 1999.	 The	

parish	moved	 its	 base	 to	St.	 Joseph’s	Primary	 School	 and	held	 services	

there.	Nowadays,	Ma	On	Shan	has	become	a	new	town	with	a	population	

of	more	 than	200,000.	The	new	St.	Francis’	 Church	was	 consecrated	 in	

1996	with	St.	Francis	of	Assisi	as	its	patron.	The	parish	serves	more	than	

2,000	Catholics	families	while	witnessing	the	Gospel	of	Christ	to	the	non-

Catholic	residents.	

	
Photo:	St.	Joseph’s	Chapel	in	Ma	On	Shan	 	
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Church	of	St.	Benedict	in	Sha	Tin:		
A	Church	Full	of	Chinese	Culture	

Although	Sha	Tin	is	a	populous	community	today,	the	Church	mission	

in	 this	 area	 began	 relatively	 late	 compared	 to	 other	 districts.	 The	

beginning	of	the	missionary	development	in	Tai	Wai	and	Sha	Tin	was	also	

the	work	of	Fr.	Poletti.	As	early	as	1953,	Fr.	Poletti	purchased	a	deserted	

TV	relay	station	in	Sha	Tin,	converting	it	into	a	small	chapel.	It	was	initially	

named	Sha	Tin	Prayer	House	affiliated	to	the	Tai	Po	district.	In	1954,	it	was	

renamed	Sacred	Heart	of	Jesus	Chapel.	Two	years	later,	Fr.	Lido	Mencarini	

(PIME,	1916-2007)	acquired	a	two-storey	villa	from	the	government	and	

converted	 it	 into	 Sha	 Tin	 Sacred	 Heart	 of	 Jesus	 Church.	 The	 new	 site	

covered	an	area	of	28,000	square	feet.	With	the	expanded	space,	 it	also	

attracted	more	people	to	come.	

As	the	government	pushed	for	developing	Sha	Tin	into	a	new	town,	

housing	estates	were	constructed	in	Lek	Yuen,	Wo	Che,	Tsang	Tai	Uk,	and	

City	One	Shatin,	leading	to	a	soaring	population.	The	number	of	baptised	

also	increased	significantly.	Sacred	Heart	of	 Jesus	Church	was	no	longer	

large	enough	to	hold	so	many	faithful.	The	diocese	then	sought	help	from	

the	German	bishops.	Receiving	funding	finally	from	the	Catholics	of	Essen	

Diocese,	the	donors	requested	the	new	church	to	be	named	after	a	German	

bishop,	and	thus	it	was	named	as	St.	Alfred's	Church.	Ten	years	after	St.	

Alfred’s	Church	was	opened	in	1977,	Bishop	John	Baptist	Wu	of	Hong	Kong	
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divided	Sha	Tin	into	three	parishes,	namely	St.	Alfred’s	Church,	Church	of	

St.	Benedict,	and	Holy	Martyrs	and	Blessed	of	China	Church.	

	In	the	early	days,	members	of	the	Church	of	St.	Benedict	could	only	

have	 Masses	 at	 the	 covered	 playground	 of	 Immaculate	 Heart	 of	 Mary	

College	 in	 Jat	Min	Chuen,	a	public	housing	estate.	Later,	 they	set	up	St.	

Benedict’s	Parish	Centre	at	a	rented	venue	facing	Yuen	Chau	Kok	Road.	In	

1993,	 a	 five-storey	 building	 for	 the	 Church	 of	 St.	 Benedict	was	 finally	

completed.	However,	due	to	the	lack	of	priests,	the	diocese	had	to	turn	the	

Holy	Martyrs	and	Blessed	of	China	Church,	located	in	The	Little	Flower's	

Catholic	Primary	School	in	Wo	Che	Estate,	into	a	Mass	Centre	under	the	

auspices	of	the	Church	of	St.	Benedict	parish.	

In	the	masses	held	in	the	Church	of	St.	Benedict,	during	the	Prayers	

of	 the	 Faithful	 and	 Eucharistic	 Prayer,	 the	 altar	 server	 would	 ring	 a	

Chinese	standing	 bell	 (�).	 This	 traditional	musical	 instrument	 aims	at	

allowing	the	prayers	to	reach	to	the	Heaven	and	help	the	congregants	to	

concentrate.	The	use	of	standing	bell	also	has	a	sense	of	Buddhist	“zen,”	

which	 serves	 as	 another	 excellent	 example	 of	 the	 fusion	 of	 Chinese	

traditions	and	other	cultures.	

In	addition,	American	Fr.	John	Ahearn,	the	first	priest	of	the	church,	

was	 passionate	 about	 Chinese	 culture.	 For	 example,	 a	 topographical	

inscription	is	placed	in	the	corridor	on	the	second	floor	of	the	church.	The	
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inscription	is	a	replica	of	the	Nestorian	Stele	from	Xi’an	Beilin	Museum.	It	

details	the	history	of	the	introduction	of	the	Nestorian	Church	(a	branch	

of	the	Catholic	Church	in	Central	Asia)	in	Tang	Dynasty	(618-907)	and	the	

scriptures	 and	 prayers	 that	 were	 used	 at	 that	 time.	 The	 Chinese	

decoration	 inside	 a	 venue	 of	 a	 religion	 introduced	 from	 the	 West	

represents	the	cultural	exchanges	between	the	East	and	the	West.	These	

rituals	and	 traditions	of	 the	Church	of	St.	Benedict	also	reflect	how	the	

missionaries	would	adapt	and	transform	religious	practices	in	response	

to	the	local	cultures.	

		 	
Photo	 (left):	 Church	 of	 St.	 Benedict	 has	 the	 liturgical	 tradition	 of	 ringing	 the	

traditional	Chinese	standing	bell	during	Masses	

Photo	(right):	The	topographical	inscription	replica	of	the	Nestorian	Stele	hung	on	

the	wall	of	the	church	corridor	
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To	 conclude,	 it	 is	 not	 difficult	 to	 see	 that	 the	 development	 of	

Catholicism	 in	 the	 New	 Territories	 after	 the	 war	 was	 building	 on	 a	

foundation	 laid	 before	 the	war,	with	Tai	 Po	 being	 the	 centre,	 radiating	

south	to	Tai	Wai	and	Sha	Tin,	and	radiating	north	to	Fanling	and	Sheung	

Shui.	All	of	these	have	been	developing	alongside	with	the	social	progress	

of	 the	New	Territories.	 In	 the	 late	 1970s	and	 early	 1980s,	 the	 Catholic	

Church	expanded	its	work	continuously	in	these	areas	in	response	to	the	

expansion	of	new	towns	in	the	once	countryside.	In	the	course	of	it,	there	

were	conflicts	and	exchanges	of	Chinese	and	Western	cultures,	changes	of	

religious	 personnel	 from	Westerners	 to	 Chinese,	 and	 the	 adaptation	 of	

Catholic	 buildings	 and	 liturgy.	 These	 also	 shows	 that	 the	 path	 of	

missionary	work	is	a	fusion	of	Eastern	and	Western	cultures.		
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Conclusion	

Foreign	 missionaries	 came	 preaching	 in	 the	 Chinese	 city	 of	 Hong	

Kong,	 the	 fact	 itself	 has	manifested	 the	 integration	 of	 the	Western	 and	

Eastern	 cultures.	 Among	 the	 44	 big	 and	 small	 religious	 congregations,	

some	 settled	 here	 long	 ago,	 such	 as	 the	 Jesuits,	 Franciscans,	 Salesians,	

Sisters	of	St	Paul	de	Chartres,	Canossian	Sisters,	Paris	Foreign	Missions	

Society,	 Pontifical	 Institute	 for	 Foreign	 Missions,	 Congregation	 of	 the	

Immaculate	Heart	of	Mary,	Marist	Brothers,	and	Helpers	of	the	Holy	Souls,	

etc.	 They	 have	 been	 running	 social	 services	 like	schools,	 hospitals,	 and	

care	 homes,	 as	well	 as	 printing	 business.	 In	 terms	 of	 the	 architectural	

designs	of	the	churches,	there	are	both	Western-style	buildings	such	as	

the	Cathedral	of	the	Immaculate	Conception	and	St.	Teresa's	Church,	and	

Chinese-style	buildings	such	as	the	Holy	Spirit	Seminary	and	the	chapel	

converted	 from	 Kam	 Tsin	 Wai	 Cheng	 Hon	 Pang	 Ancestral	 Hall.	 Both	

flexibility	and	tolerance	of	cultural	differences	can	be	seen	in	the	small	city.	

The	foreign	missionaries	not	only	introduced	Christianity	to	Hong	Kong,	

but	 also	 passed	 on	 knowledge	 and	 values.	 These	 interactions	with	 the	

traditional	Chinese	beliefs	and	cultures,	allowing	Hong	Kong	to	integrate	

both	cultures	 in	various	aspects,	obtaining	a	unique	perspective	 that	 is	

hard	to	find	anywhere	else.	
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More	than	100	years	ago,	the	missionary	work	in	Hong	Kong	started	

on	Hong	Kong	Island	and	spread	to	the	South	and	to	the	East.	It	gradually	

expanded	 to	 the	 rapidly	 growing	 Kowloon	 Peninsula,	 obtaining	 good	

results	 in	various	districts,	such	as	Tsim	Sha	Tsui,	Sham	Shui	Po,	Kwun	

Tong,	and	Kowloon	City.	In	New	Territories,	where	traditions	were	highly	

valued,	missionaries	had	to	adopt	to	 the	different	 lifestyles	of	the	long-

standing	 rural	 communities.	 With	 the	 aid	 of	 Chinese-style	 church	

buildings,	 localisation	 of	 the	 liturgy	 and	 integration	 of	 traditions,	

missionary	work	 has	 been	 growing	 in	 this	ever-changing	 environment.	

The	historical	fragments	reviewed	in	this	booklet	are	just	a	glimpse	of	the	

missionary	work	that	has	been	done	throughout	the	century.	Hopefully,	

through	reviewing	the	historical	traces	of	these	missionary	activities,	we	

can	gain	a	deeper	understanding	of	the	spirit	of	the	foreign	missionaries.	

These	missionaries	of	different	nationalities	not	only	responded	to	the	call	

of	God,	but	also	cooperated	with	their	Chinese	counterparts	to	reach	out	

for	spiritual	exchanges	with	deep	respect	to	the	Chinese	culture.	
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